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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
wEhmE T EREE T BT BT BBEERT
Consolidated income statement AR
for the years ended 31 March BE3IA3TH IR
Revenue A 3,401.7 1,634.9* 1,509.1* 1,457.8* 1,034.8
Loss for the year 1R
Continuing operations RS E TS - (132.5) (145.8) (144.4) (402.7)
Discontinued operations L EEETS - (45.2) (4.5) 110.0 -
Net loss for the year I e 1R (189.8) (177.7) (150.3) (34.4) (402.7)
Interim dividend paid SRS - - - - -
Final dividend proposed FEIR AR S - - - - -
Special dividend paid EIRAFRIBE - — - 198.8 —
Consolidated balance sheet LGhEEARE
as at 31 March 3A3THER
Assets HiE 2,9584 26482 26519 19817  1,705.9
Less: Liabilities and B A&
non-controlling interests FEVELRE 45 1,728.6 1,729.1 1,631.3 996.7 1,175.5
Shareholders’ funds JE A < 1,229.8 919.1 1,020.6 985.0 530.4
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT i BT BT BT
Per share data TCE R
Loss 518 (0.182) (0.170) (0.144) (0.033) (0.385)
Interim dividend paid E IR HIBE - - - - -
Final dividend proposed HEIR A B, - - - - -
Special dividend paid RIS - - - 0.19 -
Shareholders’ funds JBCHRE 5 1.175 0.878 0.975 0.941 0.507
* On 26 January 2018, the Group announced the disposal of its entire optical retail and wholesale businesses (the “Optical

Business”) to its controlling shareholder (the “Disposal”). The Optical Business is classified as Discontinued operations. The

completion of the Disposal took place on 1 June 2018.

201841726 H > A4 [ 5 A 1) FLAR M of e 1 FLAR R MR g 2 1 Mt 38265 (TIRBEERS D) (R EEIR)) » T i 6 A S B IR A
BRI EEERS o B SIHD R20184F6 31 H S8 -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 on
pages 173 to 176 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended 31
March 2020 and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's businesses are set out under Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 25 to 32.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2020, an important
event, the COVID-19 pandemic is affecting the Group and
its particulars are set out under Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 29 and Note 40 to the Financial Statements on
page 176.

Stelux is a company that cares about the way it does business,
the way we engage with our customers, our employees, our
suppliers, and others in general. Certain core principles underpin
the way we achieve our business objectives. We engage our
business partners and treat our employees in a fair, honest
and responsible manner to deliver sustainable results to our
shareholders.

Our vision to “Beautify and enrich lives through our products and
services” underscores the way we engage with our customers.
From our lifestyle products, ranging from trendy watches and
smart watches available at our physical and online stores, we
strive to deliver a personal shopping experience to our customers
engaging them through traditional and social media.

Customers looking for a wide brand selection will enjoy shopping
at multi-branded retailer “CITY CHAIN”, appealing to customers
who enjoy fashionable watches.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

As for the Group’s watch wholesale business, (in addition to
selling to City Chain), our customers comprise of a large network
of independent dealer stores spanning, Hong Kong, Singapore,
Brunei and Malaysia. Many of these dealers have been doing
business with the Group for an average period of over 25 years.
On average around 13% of our watch dealers operate at least 2
points of sales.

The Group is aware of the challenges brought on by underlying
structural changes in labour markets and employee expectations
towards work life balance and work fluidity. Hence our mission
to grow, respect and reward our employees as they develop
together with the Group becomes ever more important in
employee performance, satisfaction and retention. More details
on the Group’s employment policies can be found on pages 184
to 187 of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

The Group’s suppliers are an important component of our
businesses, ranging from upstream component vendors,
assemblers and manufacturers to more downstream third party
brand principals and distributors, where third party brands are
sourced. Some brand principals have been partnering the Group
for over 20 years. Credit terms granted by the Group’s suppliers
range from 30 to 90 days. More details on our suppliers are
set out on pages 188 to 189 of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

Businesses require stable relationships with their lenders.
Without exception, the Group maintains strong and active
communications with its lenders who provide important trade
and other short and long term credit facilities. These lenders
range from local banks with strong local connections to regional
and global banks with solid reputations.

The Group faces certain principal risks and uncertainties,
described below (in no order of preference):

Risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, fluctuations in the
global and local economic environments, political tensions and
government activities impact our business performance and
appropriate strategies and measures are adopted to mitigate these
risks. For more details, refer to pages 29 of the Management,
Discussion and Analysis and Note 40 to the Financial Statements.

Due to the challenging business environment, (particularly in Q4
FY2019/20 with the outbreak of COVID-19), there was an added
focus on cash flow management with extra measures adopted
to strengthen liquidity. For more details, refer to the “Finance”
section of the Management, Discussion and Analysis on pages
29 to 31.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

With the deadly outbreak and extensive spread of COVID-19,
our operations came under severe strain. In addition to increasing
efforts to provide a safe work place for our employees, our
operations also faced varying periods of lockdowns, movement
control or mandatory social distancing orders in all the territories
where we operate, thus to a large extent our physical store
operations were suspended. Whilst these operations have since
resumed, it is not possible to assess with certainty the likely
impact from any resurgent waves of infection.

As inventory levels impact sales, profitability and cash flows and
with watch production lead times averaging 12 months, effective
inventory management is important. Systems are in place to
ensure key functions including merchandising, store operations
and finance closely monitor metrics like, inventory levels, aging
and turnover ratios. The Group adopts a conservative approach
to ordering and purchasing stock. There are also measures to
fasten stock turn and to facilitate disciplined capital management
including flexible cross regional clearance initiatives.

Securing the right store location is another principal driver
of performance and affects Group turnover and profitability.
Leasing, store operations, finance and senior management review
and assess location suitability using a checklist of pre-agreed
criteria. A dedicated leasing team focusses on leasing strategies
and activities in our major markets.

Product sourcing impacts on Group turnover, gross margins and
inventory levels. CITY CHAIN being a multi-branded retailer,
a proportion of products are sourced from third party brand
principals or distributors and there is no assurance that supply
will continue on terms acceptable to the Group. CITY CHAIN
has a dedicated merchandising function to focus on sourcing of
non-house branded products and maintaining good relationships,
particularly with principal suppliers. We look to form medium
to long term strategic brand partnerships with our suppliers,
working closely with them to facilitate the sharing of fashion
trends and market information. To stay attuned to customer
tastes and preferences, market research on social media trends,
competitors’ offerings and market visits are carried out regularly,
and customer feedback is closely monitored.

The Group's financial risks and relevant management policies
can be found in the “Finance” section under Management,
Discussion and Analysis on pages 29 to 31 and Note 6 to the
Financial Statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

Laws and regulations governing consumer protection,
employment and personal data have a significant impact on
the Group’s retail businesses. The Group has an in-house legal
function and where necessary seeks external legal advice and
training to keep abreast of latest developments in different areas
of law. There was no material non-compliance with the above
laws and regulations for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Climate change and other social issues may at times impact our
business decisions and actions. Our environmental policy is
based on 3R’s — to reduce, reuse or recycle whenever feasible or
practical so as to reduce our environmental impact. Changing
the way we consume the earth’s resources requires the collective
efforts of individuals and businesses together with supportive
and progressive environmental policies enacted by governments.
The different regions where we operate in have varying degrees
of commitment to environmental friendly legislation, regulations
and practices, and in places with less awareness, there are more
constraints on our performance.

Further reporting on environmental issues can be found on pages
180 to 184 under Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 44.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2019: nil).

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

A conditional special distribution in cash of HK$0.19 dollar per
share was proposed by the Board on 23 January 2018 relating
to the disposal of the Disposal group and was approved by the
shareholders in the special general meeting on 19 April 2018.
The special distribution, amounting to HK$198.83 million, had
been paid on 14 June 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of HK$388,000.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$32.737 million (2019: HK$32.737 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (executive director and CFO)
Wu Chun Sang (independent non-executive)
Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent non-executive)
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent non-executive)

In accordance with Bye-law 110(A), Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
and Mr. Wu Chun Sang will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
being eligible, offers herself for re-election. Mr. Wu Chun
Sang has expressed his intention not to seek re-election as an
independent non-executive director as he has served the Group
in this capacity for nearly 16 years. The Company confirms that
Mr. Wu has no disagreements with the Board and nothing needs
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company
due to Mr. Wu'’s retirement.
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DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin are also directors
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong during the year and up
to the date of this report are: Ms. Caroline Chong Sue Peng, Mr.
William Hui Kin Wai, Ms. Stella Chow Yin Oi and Mr. Johnny
Chan Koon Kiu.

No director has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company’s directors have formal letters of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
During the year, Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin was eligible to
an annual bonus determinable under the terms of a KPI based
executive bonus scheme with respect to his management of
the Group. Provision for the bonus under the executive bonus
scheme for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$570,000 (2019: HK$820,000). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong did
not participate in the executive bonus scheme for the year ended
31 March 2020.

Apart from the foregoing and continuing connected transactions
of the Group, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s businesses to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chumphol KANJANAPAS (aka Joseph C. C. WONG), aged 60,
was appointed executive director of the Company in 1986. Mr.
Wong undertook his tertiary studies in the United Kingdom.
He graduated from the University of Bradford with a B.Sc. in
Industrial Engineering (First Class Honours). Mr. Wong also holds
a M.Sc. (with Distinction) in Operational Research from the
University of Southampton. Mr. Wong is the Founding Honorary
Patron of the HKU Foundation for Education Development and
Research and has been serving the Board of Directors of the
Foundation for over 20 years. He is also a member of the Court
of the University of Hong Kong. He was awarded an Honorary
Fellowship by the University of Hong Kong in 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors

Wallace KWAN Chi Kin, aged 50, joined the Group in
November 2011 as Group Finance Director and was appointed
an executive director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company in July 2013. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social
Science Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
also holds a MBA from the University of Manchester and a LLM
in Corporate & Financial Law from The University of Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan has 28 years of experience in
financial management having worked at an international audit
firm and several listed companies.

WU Chun Sang, aged 63, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a Macau
Registered Auditor. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Lawrence WU Chi Man, aged 61, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated
from Bristol University, United Kingdom with a BSc(Eng) and
PhD in Aeronautical Engineering. He is a Professor at the
Department of Materials Science and Engineering at the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers (HKIE). He is also a Council Member of
the HKIE. He received the Taishan (Z L% %) Scholar award
from the Shandong Provincial Government in 2012.

Agnes KWONG Yi Hang, aged 60, holds a PhD in Molecular
Immunology from the University of Hong Kong and an MBA
from Troy State University in the USA. She was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2006.
She has a background in consulting with a major focus on
healthy and environmentally sustainable living.

Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Caroline CHONG, aged 58, joined the Group in 1997. She
graduated from the University of Kent, United Kingdom with
a Bachelor of Arts (Law) (Hons) degree. She is admitted as a
Barrister in England and Wales, and, Hong Kong. She heads
Group Legal and Corporate Secretariat, and Group Human
Resources.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not set up or operate any
share option scheme for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up
to the date of publication of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(@)  The Company - Ordinary shares

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares
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AN ) B L S F R 8 E20204F3 31 H 1EAE
FE K B B AR T 5 H S 4 w57 BOE T AT
JREHERT ] -

EEvER

202043 H31H » AR AR RS 5 JO0 & 1k
B (T35 25 SN BB ) 563 52 W A7 2 B 5e it
FTrcsk - EHFHMARRN T Z BT BN B4R 7
AT ] AR B 72 B (e 3 5 B N B AR B S X VAR 2
FEFR) 2 By ~ MBS KBS A 2 S &
WA BUREE LTS N ESIE TR RET S 2
HE Sy JI) 111 2B B AR S T S A8 i 2 R R SR A
o

(@ AwE]—EEk
REDTAZBRORABERD ZFE

Approximate

RIZER percentage of
Personal Family ~ Corporate/ Other the. t(ftal shares
Name of Director interest interest  trust interest interest Total In issue as at
31 March 2020
120205
3A31EZM
3L Ve HEBRTRAE
ESnA B AR5 REER R it Y ZBRED®
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 - 549,341,014 52.49
HA e (Note 1)
(Mtit1)
Notes: i

(1) As at 31 March 2020, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(1) 202043 H31H - FBA FR 2 w48 i H
/A H]Active Lights Company Limited 47 4222 #]
855,200/ 5 - Klayze Holdings Limited BAfE
F— TR E T (EFE)) 22 FE N Sk A 28
A RRA R T E AT B 55%HER o HAIHY
PR RAG R AN > WO i 5 ST e B
A B2 ) 2 HE A T B A2 71855, 200 M HBE 173
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) EEoER )
(b)  Subsidiaries — Preference shares (b) B} feg 2 F — (B e
Approximate
percentage of
the total
preference
Number of shares shares in issue
BB as at 31
Corporate/ March 2020
Personal  Family trust Other 1202053 A
interests  interest  interest Interest Total 31HMLZEHE
= BITEER

BAEZ ZEEzR Flis Hidfx wy HHYEsH

(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited —f& /1%’

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 - 209,000 99.52
BRI oA

(i) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — &6/

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - - 600 16.67
FAI L

(iti)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares®
Stelux (Thailand) Limited —f&5E /13

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - - 5,100 100
FAI L

B () A RA A 10
2020 4F4F- )



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) BB A

Notes: BFRE -

(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited %7/ 7l
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right BRI BB 2 ] o B S I A 1 SR B A AR Y (8]
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. FERLE,  RLSTG SERE A 43 BUAT: ] oAt 232 )

2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the 2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited 242
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right A B A R o BB B A SR AR
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. 1] 5 FRCJR, > (BN R 4 AT AT HLAt 2 ) o

(3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. (3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited % A2\ &) (4 B 8§ 28 ) o
Joseph C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting TR AR A R I 28 W BT REA 195,100 LB o
power of such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue JBe = A % B0 Ja 2 ) R A8 . 6 %0 150 22 HE T 4 47 Y [i]
of the 5,100 preference shares held by him but not to any other FERLE, B3I SR S A AT HE A ) o

profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of B L SCRr g4 A - MRIEA A AR IERE S KON E
the Company or their associates have any interest or short A A5 565 3 5 2 A6k T "B A7 8 e T L Bk A 2 ] R
positions in the shares or underlying shares and debentures S PITAR b TiT2 F A T R 5 A By I AR HE ST ]
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within PR > AN RIS - R AT BN B ER S
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register F1% Mt 28 N\ ML S T A 2 ) A A A B 35 T (4
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise 8 I7 N 3 B R 91 55 XV BT ) 2 28) 1Y J% M4 BSORH B
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the 3 B A5 vh A AT AT HE 4 BRIR A ST A ) A T
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed HZ R AR SRR

Companies or no such interest or right has been granted or

exercised.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT REZHFRPEXRHIATURE ZRRER
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons had interests in the R 8 25 2 3 B R 491 2 3 3 oAk 1T B A 2 6w it e
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the FiEk o BUF ALIR20204E3 431 HIR AL H 2 ik
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 3 SRR B e B A A

of the SFO:

1 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT BERSERPEFRHETFUREZRRER )
TO THE SFO (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company REABRZRBREBRG 2T
Number of shares Approximate
RoEE percentage of
Personal Family  Corporate/ Other the total shares
Name of Shareholder interest interest trust interest interest Total In issue as at
31 March 2020
20205
3A31H2H
=| HEBITRAE

RERM A B ARz KE#E ErtiER Hituhgzs L ZBHNBEDL

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 — 549,341,014 52.49

A et (Note 1)

(Htat1)

Notes: W& -

(1) As at 31 March 2020, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200 (1) #A20204F3 431 H » 8 HA B2 v 78 1t 5 K} e
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights /v 7] Active Lights Company Limited A7 42 7]
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee 855,200/ 547 - Klayze Holdings Limited PAYE 7
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which — M ERE (MFRE)) 2 ZRE NS A A
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. PR T2 BT M 18 B 2 55%ME 6 o B A8 4G
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be AERAEREZ Z N > SO A i 5 RE R S LA
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s PR 7 22 M 2 M AT A5 F1855,200 By

interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

B () A RA A 12
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any
person (other than a director or chief executive of the Company
or his/her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 March 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 55%
— five largest suppliers combined 72%
Sales
— the largest customer 1%
— five largest customers combined 4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least 25%
of the issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REEZRIPERGIAT URE 2 RS ()

M b SCAT P8 & 4h 5 202043 A31H » AL
)RR 4 A 2 I A6k 1 55 3 3 o A6k T B AE 2 B R
Pt sk o BB AT AL GERERARN
A Z e mATEBON B S B 2 W8 BR AR i A
U3 ) 22 Ry ESORH B R Hp A R R ER A

EESNBE - HEIED

AR TR A PRSI0 0 B [ AT T BB Ay © A ]
A AT A T 2 D A 1 S B e AR A R A
Tty o

TEEFRHER

AR T P L B A AR 4 T DR S A % i
BE AT

PRI
— Fe KA R 55%
— HRHEER A 5T 72%
PHEHH
—REF 1%
—HREF&GF 4%

A EFIANEER - WEZHRAN LA A
O T EAR 5 % L b 2 BRI M o A
R AL o

AN AR RS SR R BT A AT A A B A
W EEEB I B AT A A o

RHNBRIERE
RRIEA L R AT 28 PRS2 R B A Y R #E 55

W AR H AR R E BT P R D25%
HARNLRA -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the relevant parties and are in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group. The continuing connected
transactions are subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and exempt from
independent shareholders” approval.

The Group’s internal audit function conducted an audit to verify
compliance of the following continuing connected transactions
with the Listing Rules and a summary of the audit findings were
presented to the independent non-executive directors as part of
their annual review of the continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2020

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
following continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
all these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The directors confirm that the Company’s auditor has issued
an unqualified letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group below in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

KRR S

AT 45 268 B W6 58 7 T 6 TR R T 4045 O 581
P AR Tih R B — R e SE AR G SR — i & H
WHEDTRRE T o R B I 2 B R B ST A VS W
B35 AT IR A laE g BRI (T E T A D) 56
TAATA B AFTEAR B ~ R L iRlE > I
FA IR S IR A HLHE o

AL B R RO T T > D A4
TEH A PR 1 2 o BEL 1 T R R B B A - R A R
ML L SR A 8 S IR AT B A 5 AR P B A
B2 o W — &0 o

AEEEE2020F3 831 B LM BEE 2 ER
B3

MR BRI 14A 5506 » A28 Rl 98 57 IR 47 L
RO LN SRR L S o B R A
LM

(@  TAAEEE B HH SER R AR R AL
(b)  #&— B R EE AP RKRT AL 5 )

(©  MRIFME %55 52 5 i HE Bl op ol 1% 2 F- & 2L
AT AR 2 R S RCRE B R 2 ) IR T S

R v T 2 A1 11 7 v B R S ME U] 28

300058 (15 5T) [ s B4 %5 G R B A% sl g B LA 2
EENE TAEN 25 EH S ZE 74055 & s LT
RIVRR S B 4 S8 BRI T 2 5 (M R SRR R 14 ) > AR )
T2 BRI 52 S AN 42 [ 55 8 B W 50 ) 1R AR 0

WRAERR > AR LTRSS 14A560% - AR
BICRT L A AR 4R 8 DA B R 0 R A B G AC )
P8R T FLRR A o AN Rl L ) 7 8 T o U 4 1 A2 3
il R AR I AS

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) HERHMRS ()
Summary of the continuing connected transactions: BB A 2

1. Renewal of leases or licensing of office premises, parking 1. ENHESEFTARLESF - FEN

spaces and warehouse spaces kRRE
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps Notes
BmAL REMHE WA (2 ) FELR B E
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT e AT L
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties (7,883) (7,883) (i), (iv)
(“MPIL”) as Landlord ENELYE & (vii)
BATEY) SE B A R R (THIEE]) -
EREE
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”)  Leasing of a warehouse and (1,115) (1,115) (i), (iv)
as Landlord licensing of parking space & (vi)
Active Lights Company Limited (TALCL)) 8 & £ i % {2 8 {37 7]
EREE
MPIL, as Licensor Licensing of parking spaces (362) (362)  (iii), (iv)
RN EIDN {2 E 37 2] & (vii)
MPIL as Principal Provision of management and 2,460 2,460 (v) & (vii)
B - AR property agency liaison
services
PR AL P R Wy SE A
gt ks A s
1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BHERBMR S ()
Notes: MisE :

Bk 5B sE W A > AP 5 BT A T8 e 38 B AN |k
201943 721 H BT RIS 2 835 i HAR R R 25 -

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as referred to
in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2019 unless otherwise
indicated.

NS

Leasing of properties

(i)

On 21 March 2019, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL”) and
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL”), wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, each individually as tenant/
licensee, entered into the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy Licence
Agreements 2019 with MPIL in respect of the following properties:

(i)

201943 H21H » BRE 2 () B RA W
(TSHL) Be AR vl A W B Jogg 2 i) 40 0 838 6 A B A
A (s ) (& AMBIEATE 7 A)
SR FEET 7201 94F B i 6 O B 000 19 ok
A BT

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor of L/E SN B L2 7R g K2 8 —
Stelux House B

Premises B: ~ portion of 21st floor of Stelux House LESGE BOGREEE FL2 1 — 5

Premises C: office unit number 2206A on the 22nd floor of L/ESe G ZE 02212206 AE Z HFA
Stelux House AL

Premises D:  storeroom 6A on the 16th floor of Stelux House WED : LR O 6M6AREE R

Premises E: storeroom 1B on the 17th floor of Stelux House WIZEE - LR O 7 BREEE

Premises F: storeroom 6A on the 22nd floor of Stelux House YIZEF - LR D22 e AT E

For Premises A, B, C, D, E and F , the term was for three years
from 1 April 2019 up to and including 31 March 2022.

The total monthly rental for Premises A, B and C amounted to
HK$637,470 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). The total monthly licence fees for Premises D, E and
F amounted to HK$19,440 (inclusive of rates, government rent
and management charges). All rents and licence fees are payable
monthly in advance in cash by the tenants/licensees on the first
day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rents of all the above-mentioned premises were
determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account a
rental valuation conducted by an independent property valuer
dated 5 March 2019 and as such reflected the prevailing market
rental values/licence fees of the subject premises. Accordingly,
the directors considered the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy
Agreements 2019; and the TSWCL Tenancy Agreement were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL (as tenant of Premises A) has been granted
the naming right of Stelux House and each of SHL and TSWCL
has been granted an option (but not an obligation), to renew
the tenancy agreements for the Premises A, B; and the TSWCL
Tenancy Agreement with the landlord every three years for three
more years for a maximum of 9 years commencing from 1 April
2022 at the then prevailing open market rent.

WIZEA ~ WI2EB ~ WIZEC -~ WIZED - W EE YT
RS H20194E4 A1 HEFF 2202243 A31H
(BFZH) AL > A=A -

WA - W 2EB W CIHAE A T 4 45 v
637,47070 (RELFE 200 ~ B b J 3 PR ) -
WZED ~ W) 2EE W ZERRRE A R 2R AL RE B
HH19,44070 (G20 - BURF AR J A 2R 2) -
T FHL 4 Bl ml A R B B RS 4 Rl i A1
J& A H &S -

[l BT W A B A FLA T AR RN R RIS E
7 w1 e — 13 M8 57 ) FEAGAE Rl iR 2019473 A 5 H AE
HE I FEL A (S e AT R 2 2 W 2 AT T Bl 4
FEAT AR o UL > AL > 20194F B
Fp UL BT T e R S L B e 4 —
PIZEMEHGT S - JBATAH » WA AN R Kk
WA -

78k > SHLUE R W SEAZ TS ) SR T 2 v
Dz Ar A LR SHL R i 6% 45 1 s 2EA
Fo 2B Kom i Sk b A B W s M B BRI HE (1H
WETTAT) W A B T R BT A B
AR BRI R AN BRATI = 4F > H12022
FAHTH GRS B -

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Leasing of warehouse and licensing of parking space

(if)

On 21 March 2019, Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL") (as
landlord/licensor) and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(as tenant/licensee), entered into the Warehouse Leasing and
Licence Agreements 2019 with respect to the following warehouse
and parking spaces in Hong Kong:

(@ Warehouse space A at an industrial building in Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Kowloon Bay Building”); and

(b)  One vehicle parking space at an industrial building in
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a monthly license
fee of HK$5,800 (inclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges)

for a term of three years from 1 April 2019 up to and including 31
March 2022.

All rental and licence fees are payable monthly in advance in cash
by the tenant/licensee on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

The monthly rental/license fees were determined on an arm’s
length basis taking into account the prevailing market rates in the
vicinity, which indicated that the renewal rentals/licence fees were
favourable to the Group. Accordingly, the directors considered
the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Agreements 2019 were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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FEBBRS A
ByEE - ()

HERERFEM

(ii)

201943 H21H > Active Lights Company
Limited (TALCL)) (TE &y 23 /Fral N) RAA Fl—
i) 2 I A 7 (PE 2SS #E5F A N) 51572019
SRR AR S R AT A > A A LA i
18 AT

@  BOAEE LB ILREE i LR ([JLRE
BT ) Z A K

(b)  FUEIUEJLREE — I T2 K B 2 — {f Bl
PR B A e A R R 2 5,800
JC (BLIEZE 00 ~ BUM R A FRAER) -

T 1201942471 HERF 5202243 31 H (82
T2 H) B =AF

P AT REL < R vl e 2 R AL R T A
JEA B H B AT o

ARG Fal R 2 T AR R E - G
L WA B 2 BRAT T A > BB B AU AL
S/ FE ] AR A SR o (R - SR
Ky o 201O5F A JHOAR B K FF T Ifh ke b — AR 2 M
WIS BATAE - SRS AL F MR 2 %
HEFIEE



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Licensing of parking spaces

(iii)

On 21 March 2019, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company (each individually as licensee) entered into the
Carparking Space Licenses with MPIL with respect to the following
parking spaces:

(@) eight parking spaces at Stelux House at a total monthly
license fee of HK$30,100 (inclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges);

for a period of three years from 1 April 2019 up to and including
31 March 2022. The license fees are payable monthly in advance
in cash by the licensees on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length
basis taking into account the prevailing market rates for parking
spaces in the vicinity. Accordingly, the directors considered the
terms of the Parking Space Licenses reflect normal commercial
terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises, storerooms,
warehouses and parking spaces primarily for office, administrative
and storage purposes generally over a long period of time. In
order to avoid possible disruption to its business due to relocation,
the Group intends to continue to lease/licence the subject
office premises, storerooms, parking spaces and warehouses
following the expiration of the relevant leases/licences. The
directors consider it to be in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to continue with use
as long as the relevant rental/ licence fee and other terms are on
normal commercial terms or better to the Group so as to avoid
relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the Group
will have to incur.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (i) to (iii)
above, have been aggregated for the purpose of classification
in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, and the
aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$9,360,000.

FEBBRS
BEE © ()

EEARFE

(iii)

201943 H21H » AN w25 T 4 & M i A #)
(%% AW A o 2 T ) BELI 3 5T 57 45 |7 T
Ik RS B DL A

(@) BOERRE L R HL A 35 ] FE T
2 #EH30,1007C (R AE £ 0 - BUN LT
JAE )

I A 120194E4 01 HEF 42022483 A31H
(BL453% B) B =4 o FFal i B 2% el 2 vl
ARG H DR & TN -

B R 2 T AT R IR E - SR R MR
R {5 A B AT AL A o RISt R
Ry o A HL AT o T A — M T SR A ARRT
S AR L AT A A ) RO R A

DS

AR W 25— ER I A B A S -
32 BN > —RERAE - ATER
g o bt SR8 Wl RE S S U e 8
AR B A BARLAY, 3 vl o 6 1 A AR B 1
R A B A W - AR - R A
[ o HEARRR o BRI ST 2 R
AR R i S R SO R R AR A A
) T el A 412 [ T A0 S AR OB R RAE R T - A4
AR T AR S AR A RO 2 BE B A 2 -

RPE LR A 14A.810 » DL EG) £ Gii) Fr#im s
5 By E A et A 2 KRB 2C 5 0 T E 2020
E3A 3T H IR B AR R I R ARAR A Sy T
9,360,0007T ©

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Provision of management and property agency liaison services

(v)

On 21 March 2019, Stelux Properties Agency Limited (“SPAL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent, renewed
the management and property agency liaison services agreement
(“Service Agreement 2019”) with MPIL, as principal, for a term of
three years from 1 April 2019 up to and including 31 March 2022
for the provision of the following services (“Services”):

(@) contract administration with respect to contracts entered
into between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;
(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and
(d)  other miscellaneous administrative services.

SPAL has been providing the Services with respect to Stelux
House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant knowledge and
experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services provided
by the Group, whilst the remuneration received by the Group
is enough to cover the relevant costs incurred by the Group in
providing the Services. As such, SPAL continued to provide the
Services to MPIL following the expiration of the preceding service
agreement on 31 March 2019.

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$205,000 per calendar month
(in the first year ended 31 March 2020) payable in advance in
cash on the first day of each and every calendar month. Parties
to the Service Agreement 2019 shall negotiate and agree in good
faith to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the
second year and the third year by not more than 10% over that in
the preceding year with reference to the actual increase in costs
(including but not limited to the related staff salaries) incurred
by the Group with respect to the provision of the Services. In
the event that no agreement is reached between the parties in
negotiating the remuneration for the next year, the remuneration
shall remain unchanged.

The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2019. Accordingly,
the directors considered the terms of the Service Agreement 2019
were on normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERBRS ()
Notes: (continued) MisE - ()
(v)  (continued) (v) (48)

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement 2019, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing
connected transaction was set at HK$2,460,000 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2020.

ZIRRIE201 9T IRF Wik T 2 A 4 > R%4a
BRI 22 2 # 2220204F3 A 31 H 1R BB B 2 4R B
T BR&FEF T B 2,460,000 7C °

Relationships between counterparties HLZ2 G ¥ 2 Bl

(vi)  ALCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited (vi)  ALCLAZREATRAF ([F8HL ) 2 2 E WA T -
(“Yee Hing”). The Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong, is a HOAE S A B R A DS s L ST A
beneficiary, holds 55% of the total issued shares of Yee Hing. As B2 55% o A ERIN B E /AN FAES >
Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong is a director of the Company, each of TSCL M TSCLIZ ALCLE) B v A 9 S A= 2 BT A 7] >
and ALCL is an associate of Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong and hence is a W A S AN E] 2 B o
connected person of the Company.

(vii)  MPIL is a 30% controlled company held indirectly by (vii) AN F) RN 1 S A TR A W EERE I3 0% 1%
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, who is a director of the Company. HE o

2. Master Property Agreement 2. YEEHE
Notes: FisE -

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as
referred to in the Company’s announcement dated 26 January
2018, unless otherwise indicated.

WRIESCFE T A TR - & RIS SRR N BT R B
ANFHMA201841 H26 H Z A6 T i # B
ZER EIGIREE

Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps  Notes
AL REMHE WA (i) FELER Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000
LR LR
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known Leasing, sub-leasing or 5,522 8,500 0
as Joseph C. C. Wong) and the Joseph licensing offices, shops
Family Members and warehouses by the
WA A N H AT R B Retained Group to the
Disposed Entities
R B 48 I o) A ) 5 AL
&~ B AT R e
RN V&g
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known Leasing, sub-leasing or (7,415) (13,500) (ii)

as Joseph C. C. Wong) and the Joseph
Family Members

BRI SeE T AR R

licensing offices and shops
to the Retained Group by
the Disposed Entities

e by B B 1 O B R AR
&~ ST A
EVS ]

B () A RA A 20
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) RERBR S ()

2. Master Property Agreement (continued) VSRR ()

* Disposed Entities includes Optical 88 Group (BVI) Limited, eGG 72018461 H » Bt P # @45 Optical 88
Optical Boutique Group Limited, Thong Sia Optical Group Limited Group (BVI) Limited * eGG Optical Boutique
and Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd disposed on 1 June 2018. Group Limited * Thong Sia Optical Group

Limited 5% Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd °

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as a result of the disposal R E 2019453 A31 H IF4EEE » R IR g
of the Optical Business on 1 June 2018, the Master Property CLR20184E6 01 H H & » BLEE (R E) 4 1R
Agreement was entered into between Stelux Holdings Limited (“the ST (5 S B ) Bk B BE B8 5 A Optical
Retained Group”) and the Disposed Entities, including Optical 88 Group (BVI Limited * eGG Optical Boutique
88 Group (BVI) Limited, eGG Optical Boutique Group Limited, Group Limited * Thong Sia Optical Group
Thong Sia Optical Group Limited and Optical 88 (Thailand) Limited % Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd#T 3234 1
Ltd., commencing from 1 June 2018 and expiring on 31 March % MBS H2018%FE6 01 H A E £20214F3
2021. Under the Master Property Agreement, the Retained Group H31 AT o ARSEY A o (0 AR 1 B
and the Disposed Group will lease, sub-lease or license certain R R AR A FELE T A S L
offices, shops and warehouse to each other. and is renewable TR s ] SRy R [ R AR > M
upon mutual agreement between the parties provided that the HA 708 < B B 5 S A B R B R o
requirements of the Listing Rules related to connected transactions
shall be complied with in connection with such renewal.
(i) The office, shops and warehouse leased, sub-leased or (i) o B ] o ol B AL~ 0 R T {68 A O

licensed by the Retained Group to the Disposed Entities are NE R

as follows:

Number Region Nature Location

ECh #E {31 3k

2 HK Shop 65-68, Upper Ground Floor, Olympian City Il, 18 Hoi Ting Road, West Kowloon

il i VY JUREE 2 1 8 LI Ik — U1 T~ 5 65-685%
5 Macau Shop Em Macau, Rua da Palha N20 Beco da Palha
T Ji5 ffi N 1A, San Vo Res-do-chao F and G
7 SEA Shop JEM —shop
T
9 SEA Office 63 Ubi Avenue 1 #06-04 Singapore 408937
A
10 SEA Warehouse No.32, Jalan BP 6/6, Bandar Bukit Puchong 2, 47120 Puchong, Selangor Darul Ehsan
I
11 SEA Office G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A Bandar Puteri, 47100 Puchong, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
WA=
12 SEA Shop Mall Ngamwongwan — shop
Tl
13 SEA Shop Future Rangsit — shop
JE &

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Number Region Nature Location
fmoR & “E #hht
17 SEA Shop Central Rama IlI
I i
18 SEA Office CP27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza, 34, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala
b /NEH Lumpur, Malaysia
19 SEA Office 31 Ubi Road 1 #02-06 Singapore 408694
WA=
20 SEA Shop Ayuthaya Park
T i
The total monthly rental for the above properties approximated a2 B A R AR R A B s 1 460,0000T (O
HK$ 460,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and AL 2 B~ BURM L R A R o FITAT 1 19/2087
management charges). All rents incurred during FY19/20 were BUFE R R M TR R Sh o B2y
paid during the year. The continuing connected transactions as PR AR R 28 ) CARE L TR RIS 1 4A 810 & UF
set out under 2(i) above have been aggregated for the purpose of FEEL > M 20204F3 H 31 H 1k I AR BE i 45 B
classification in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, | BRABEHA) 74 W5 58,500,0007C °

and the aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31
March 2020 was approximately HK$8,500,000.

(i) Alternatively, the office and shops leased, sub-leased or (i) SeAh > g EER R EEEAE - oM
licensed to the Retained Group by the Disposed Entities are ST T A E BRI
as follows:
Number  Region Nature Location
R #h & HE ik
HK Shop Shop 27A, 27B & 27F, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin
1 s T YW HIYS 53827 A ~ 27B [ 27F9E6H
Shop
6 SEA S Rental for SH140 — Johor City Square (1347 Sqt ft)
Shop
14 SEA I i Future Rangsit Il - shop
Office 347, 349 Muang Thong Thani, Bondstreet Road, Bangpood Subdistrict, Pakkred District,
16 SEA W Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand

B () A RA A 22
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
2. Master Property Agreement (continued)

The total monthly rent for the above properties approximated
HK$620,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). All rents incurred during FY19/20 were paid during the
year. The continuing connected transactions as set out under
2(ii) above have been aggregated for the purpose of classification
in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, and the
aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$13,500,000.

The monthly rents of the above properties in 2(i) and 2(ii) above
were determined on an arms-length basis taking into account
publicly available information of similar properties leased, sub-

leased or licensed by independent third parties.

The above continuing connected transactions also constitute
related party transactions and are disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements on page 167. For operating lease rental in
respect of the office premises, the amounts shown in note 36(a)(ii)
to the financial statements on page 169 were calculated at
effective rents in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

To the extent permitted by Bermuda law, and as permitted by
the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may
be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability
incurred by the director save where incured or sustained through
his/her own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the
financial year and is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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KEBEBRS

2. WIERBHEE

Py 2R B H A G ERA) By it 620,000 (48
FFEZERN - BUM MR R R o BRI 19/208
AR B A RO & CORAE R A o Rak2 (i) IE
PR A BRI 2 ) AR BT RIS 1 4A 810 & D
FHA > MIAZE 202043 H 31 H 1k BB B (1947 B
[ BRAEA A 2 55 13,500,0007C ©

a2 i) B2 i) FE A P 00 B TG TR T R
JI > S 2% R S R = O L~ AR s AT A A
KRR A P ERME I o

R A B 52 5 IR LA B3 5 R
167 BB R M FE36 N IEER o MbIFA
M EM AN S > 95169 E MBS R MEE36(a)i)
BTG 2 4 AU AR A A s T R A A A 1 o
WSk e R B R AL S A -

EEFFHRERYT

A A 2 AR R AR R EE S R A R R
FURFH R A o EAFAEAS 2w L P 0
ARAL - MRS H A SR A S0ER ~ K
W NI T B A o IS R v ) R R A S
A B JBE T B 2 Stk A R A IR AT 2 A K

A T 508 5 M A
BRI+ o L S A L T 0 A B
AR (0 -
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS (continued)

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director
or a former director of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be
indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against
any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval
of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong
Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Company on 14 April
2020 and RSM Hong Kong were appointed by the directors
on 16 April 2020 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. Ernst &
Young confirmed that there were no matters in respect of those
circumstances that in their opinion needed to be reported to
the Shareholders of the Company. The Board also confirmed
that there were no other matters in relation to the resignation of
Ernst & Young that needed to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders of the Company. There was a change in auditors
in FY2018/19. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM
Hong Kong as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Last but not least, | express my most sincere thanks and gratitude
to colleagues and staff members for their commitment, hard work

and loyalty to the Group during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

BESFRRERS (A

AR R e s B I 2 ) ([ M B S 2 ] 1) 2 AL
P A ) A A A A ) S T R A i
TR A > AT 7 i A 2 R L
HH A TR A I A B 2 ) s o R ) A B
AV S B3 o iR ) /ARh o i DEER LI
A o LA I R 01 5 1 A S 2 AL VAR S IR 75 2
AR

AT

BB R CKE B R SR G R ARBS EEA >
PRI R M B AR IR 8T -

R20204E4 A 14 H > ok Erslhl 7 BT B BHT A
DS FIREBEAT > 1R 20204E4 A 16 H 28 B SE & st
5 BT I 2 AT DA SR R AR T 2 A A i e
B o kg EHIm LS BT E R > A B T
BB AN w) I AR B s S M B e -
T IS R 4 B Ak B B S T B AT
B3 H TR AR TS A S BB EETE © 22018/19 8L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

o Group Turnover down 29.0% to HK$1,034.8 million

J Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company of
HK$402.9 million

o Group Inventory down 33.4% to HK$373.0 million

For the year under review, Group turnover decreased by 29.0%
to HK$1,034.8 million (FY2018/19: HK$1,457.8 million) and a
loss attributable to Group equity holders of HK$402.9 million
was recorded as the worsened socio-political climate in Hong
Kong since June 2019, the ongoing US-China trade war and the
COVID-19 pandemic outbreak since late January 2020 exerted
severe pressure on the turnover and operating performance of
the Group.

The Group would have reported a loss of HK$145.8 million in
FY2019/20, after excluding the following non-cash items totalling
HK$257.1 million:

—  the accounting impact from HKFRS 16 Leases of HK$12.3
million

— an impairment of HK$76.9 million relating to right-of-use
assets mainly arising from retail stores with declined store
profitability

- an impairment of HK$66.3 million due to revaluation of
investment properties

- a stock provision expense of HK$95.4 million mainly
relating to slow-moving watch movements given the
uncertain watch retail environment

—  an impairment of intangible assets of HK$6.2 million due
to reducing recoverable amount

Compared to FY2018/19, the Group reported a loss of HK$144.7
million after excluding a gain on Disposal of the Optical Business
of HK$111.8 million recorded in FY2018/19 following the
completion on 1 June 2018, by the Group of the disposal of its
entire optical retail and wholesale businesses (the “Discontinued
Operations”) to its controlling shareholder and a loss from the
Discontinued Operations of HK$1.7 million.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Group gross profit margin was maintained at around 48.8%
(FY2018/19: 50.7%) as promotional strategies were implemented
to stimulate consumer demand and to reduce inventory to
enhance liquidity.

In FY2019/20, the Group continued with measures to further
reduce operating costs:

e selling expenses (excluding expenses related to investment
in brand building) fell 20.6% mainly due to reduced rental
expenses and other overheads at shops;

J Group general and administrative expenses fell by 21.6%;

o In FY2019/20, capital expenditures were significantly
reduced by 62.1% to HK$11.4 million (FY2018/19:
HK$30.1 million). Shop numbers fell by 15.5% in line
with Group strategy to close non-performing shops and
rationalise shop portfolio to improve shop productivity;

o The Group’s inventory declined by 33.4% vs that at the end
of March 2019 as a stock provision expense of HK$95.4
million for slow-moving watch movements was recorded
with a view that the consumption of watch movements will
remain stagnant given the current sluggish retail climate
and uncertainty around the magnitude of recovery of retail
and tourism in the near future. Excluding the impact of the
provision expense of watch movements, Group inventory
balance at the end of March 2020 declined by 16.3% or
HK$91.4 million year-on-year as a result of strict inventory
control and tightened stock procurement.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil per ordinary share).

A A [ 14 B R SR AR AR 49 48.8% (201 8/1 9 B4R
BE 1 50.7%) KT > Sl A AT AR &5 5 s LA 3k
TH B TR Bk A RS 4 TR o

A2019/20BA LA > A% 5 90 46 48 B it 45 T HE it
DAt — 25 Wi DA A

o BRSO (O S A R AR AT R B S0
N FE20.6% > £ A R A9 A 4 S RO
o B B S B

. SR — B AT RN F%21.6%

o JR2019/20 W BUFRE - B A BR S K W D
62.1%ZFHKS11.415 & (2018/1 9B BUAE -
HK$30. 116 &) - JEf%H FF15.5% » B
A A 15 8 PR 2% B0 O 9 T il S MR il AL
A DASR TR I 8 A 2 1 00 SRS HAAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

CITY CHAIN GROUP

The City Chain Group operates around 185 stores in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China (the “Greater China”), Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia together with on-line stores for “City
Chain” and “Solvil et Titus”.

The City Chain Group reported a 33.7% decline in turnover to
HK$773.3 million (FY2018/19: HK$1,166.5 million) and a loss
before interest and tax (LBIT) of HK$206.1 million (FY2018/19:
HK$98.0 million) with an impairment loss of HK$76.9 million
being right-of-use assets of the Group’s retail stores arising from
the adoption of the new HKFRS 16 Lease.

As part of the CITY CHAIN Group’s key strategy to shift to
an omni-channel model, we have continued to invest in our
e-commerce business. Due to COVID-19, we accelerated our
pace of investment, adopting the necessary infrastructure and
expertise, increasing allocation of marketing expenditure on
our online operations such as social networking platforms to
maintain quality interactions with consumers to boost online
sales and to enhance the online brand presence of CITY CHAIN.

Greater China

Turnover for CITY CHAIN operations in Greater China fell by
42.3% to HK$477.1 million (FY2018/19: HK$826.3 million)
amid a difficult retail environment in Hong Kong/Macau which
resulted in a wider LBIT of HK$209.2 million (FY2018/19: LBIT
HK$98.9 million). In line with our shop consolidation strategy,
27 shops were closed. An impairment loss of HK$71.9 million
being the right-of-use assets of the Group’s retail stores in Greater
China and a deficit in valuation of investment properties of
HK$29.5 million contributed to this wider LBIT.

Following streamlining operations, the operating expenses in
Greater China fell by 21.7% in FY2019/20. This falling costs
trend is expected to continue in FY2020/21.

Our online business in Hong Kong performed up to expectations
whilst cost efficiencies at our Mainland China watch e-commerce
business improved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Southeast Asia

Before the outbreak of COVID-19 in Q4 FY2019/20, our
Southeast Asian operations in Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand
were generally impacted by weak sentiment during the year
due to declining country exports. Therefore, with less jobs and
lower variable income, consumers were more conservative with
spending. Since March 2020, the situation seriously worsened
when economic activities were severely disrupted by lockdowns
and movement controls imposed by individual governments as
our physical stores were temporarily closed.

Turnover at our Southeast Asian operations declined by
12.9% to HK$296.2 million (FY2018/19: HK$340.2 million)
with the number of shops falling by 6.6% due to the closure
of certain non-performing shops. Despite the challenging
business environment, with continuous efforts on cost control
and productivity improvement, our Southeast Asian operations
reported an EBIT (excluding exchange difference) of HK$3.1
million. (FY2018/19: HK$3.4 million)

Due to our quicker pace of investment online, we saw an
uplift in online sales together with a strengthening of our brand
presence on different online market place platforms.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

Turnover for this division comprising our supply chain and
wholesale trading subsidiaries decreased moderately by 10.2%
to HK$261.5 million (FY2018/19: HK$291.2 million) and a LBIT
of HK$65.0 million was posted. Excluding the provision expense
of HK$95.4 million for slow-moving watch movements, this
division reported a profit during FY2019/20, a decrease of 24.2%
compared with FY2018/19.

As the sole distributor for the “SEIKO” and “GRAND SEIKO”
brand of watches in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Brunei and
Malaysia, our wholesale trading unit launched various marketing
campaigns, which were well received, and with prompt service
support promoted sell-through to retailers.

REgE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

COVID-19 AND THE SHORT TERM OUTLOOK

In the territories where we operate, all of our stores have
re-opened following the relaxation of controls by most
governments. However, the outbreak and rapid spread of
COVID-19 have caused seismic disruptions posing a significant
threat to the global economy and the duration and true extent
of these disruptions are uncertain, whilst closer to home here
in Hong Kong, we still continue to feel the impact of ongoing
socio-political tensions. These external conditions severely
impacted Group turnover in April and May 2020, and amid
such a challenging external environment, it is difficult to assess
the economic recovery for the remaining 1H FY2020/21.
The Group will continue to adopt appropriate measures to
meet the headwinds, including closely monitoring cash flow,
operating costs, capital expenditure, inventory management;
closing non-performing shops and applying for COVID-19
related government relief/subsidies. The financial impact of
cost containment measures will continue to be reflected in
FY2020/21.

OUR COMMITMENT TO CHANGE

We remain committed to an omni-channel business model and
notwithstanding the harsh external conditions will continue not
only to prioritise but also accelerate deployment of resources
in this area. Therefore, in the coming months, we will invest in
appropriate infrastructure to grow our online presence and also
enhance synergies between our online and offline businesses.

FINANCE

The Group’s capital management, currency and interest rate
movement are constantly monitored and reviewed by the
management of the Group to address and manage relevant
financial risks relating to the Group’s operations. The Group
maintains prudent treasury management policies to address
liquidity to finance both short-term and long-term working
capital needs for business operations. Funds are generated from
business operating activities and banking facilities in the form of
term loans and short-term trading facilities. Forecast and actual
cash flow analyses are continuously monitored. Maturity of assets
and liabilities and requirement of financial resources for business
operations are prudently managed.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

HEBRBESRBEREHIR

A4 A R M > A0 B A A U
BRI O ER S E o SR > BRI i 1
FEEE R PR AR D R A SRR EIRE > HAaER
F TSR I R o TR B R R Y o R ] R
FEW R > RREE B > A2 k&
BRI R S B o G555 AMER e S R 4 )
#20204F4 H K5 H & 65 > LT 75 Pk
W AN ER S > LBk LITEFF2020/2 14F B4R
AR ARG DL o SR B AR TR AN A A
JifE RE S A BRI Bk > 95 %8 D) B P B~ A AR
A GBI - FEEE R BAPH B AERYE b
T HH G R SeE SR T A R A5 SR IBURF R B, ARG
A 2 T 4 il 1 B S s B AR A 2020/2 1 AT
AERE ML o

BERAIH

il R P A R - A R AR R R A
SHE RS > M PR I R 1 - B > 4R
R I AR A R A B AR 265 - DURTHE
B AR LR > DI R AR F AR B R AR 3
5 11 .58 i [ R

B3

A S A B 4 D) B B AR AR T AR B
WS TR A5 ) > LB AR B TR B 1) B S
JEUBR o A5 AT oA 10 B 5 TS, DA
FA SR B B ) R I E R AR E 1
A B E SR B2 EE DL A IS O B 5
Rl S GRAT RVE o AR N AR S BUA TR A
RACHL G - A P S AL B H AR
EHEEN M EEHE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Group gearing ratio was 88.6% (31 March 2019: 40.3%) with
shareholders’ funds standing at HK$530.4 million (31 March
2019: HK$985.0 million) and net debts of HK$469.8 million
(31 March 2019: HK$396.8 million). The net debts are based
on the bank borrowings of HK$651.4 million (31 March 2019:
HK$688.3 million) less bank balance and cash of HK$181.6
million (of the Group as at 31 March 2019: HK$291.5 million)
of which HK$54.6 million were pledged (31 March 2019:
HK$56.6 million). The bank borrowings comprised of HK$115.8
million repayable within one year and HK$ 535.6 million with
scheduled repayment after one year but repayable on demand
and were classified as current liabilities. The increase in gearing
ratio was due to the fact that certain non-cash expenses (such
as stock provision and impairment of investment properties,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets) were recorded during
FY2019/20, and thus reducing shareholders’ funds. The Group’s
cash inflow from its operations was HK$159.1 million. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases, the repayment of lease liabilities
is included in financing activities and therefore the cash inflow
from its operations increased. The unutilized banking facilities as
at 31 March 2020 was HK$192 million.

The Group’s major borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars and
mostly based on a floating rate at HIBOR or bank prime lending
rates. As major revenues of the Group are in Hong Kong dollars
and Macanese Pataca, the natural hedge mechanism was
applied.

As at 31 March 2020, the current assets and current liabilities
were approximately HK$718.1 million (31 March 2019:
HK$1,033.8 million) and HK$1,017.6 million (31 March
2019: HK$958.6 million), respectively. The current ratio was
approximately 0.71 (1.08 as at 31 March 2019). On the adoption
of HKFRS 16 Leases, the Group recognized the commitments
under operating leases for future periods as lease liabilities,
whereas, under the previous accounting standard, no such
liabilities were required. Therefore, the net current assets is
lower.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's total equity funds amounted
to HK$537.1 million.

Prior to the date of this report, the Group obtained a one-off
waiver from a bank from strict compliance with certain covenant
requirements of bank borrowings amounting to HK$429.697
million.

The Group does not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group does not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

The Group does not have plans for material investments or
change of capital assets.

As at 31 March 2020, certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and bank deposit amounting to HK$640.4
million (31 March 2019: HK$712.3 million) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Capital
expenditures was under control and reduced to HK$11.4 million
(FY2018/19: HK$30.1 million).

The investment properties were revalued by an independent
valuer as at 31 March 2020. An impairment loss of HK$66.3
million was recorded in the year ended 31 March 2020
accordingly.

The deferred tax asset balance decreased by HK$11.2 million
and this expense was charged to the income statement during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease was mainly from a
decrease in tax losses recognised as deferred tax asset.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES, EEZERMHE EEHEK BERESEI
REMUNERATION POLICIES, BONUS AND TRAINING HE
SCHEMES

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular B2 T DAL B K N B R T O A YE R
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market TR R B AR o S0 E BEA TR o AR
practices in the relevant countries where the Group operates. As 202043 A31HA1,12007 (201943 A31H -
at 31 March 2020, the Group had 1,120 employees (31 March 1,5501%) 18 B o 48 1 it 2E A K MR il A B 3R B £
2019: 1,550 employees). The Group offers KPI related bonuses (B SESBURTE e 2 e T HEMIIES -
to eligible employees based on the performance of the Group B F TR B HEAR B O B Bl B = R B RLR - BB
and the individual employee. The Group also provides related JeACHE

training programmes to improve the quality, competence and

skills of its employees.

Joseph C. C. Wong =AY
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer LI RATE A
Hong Kong, 26 June 2020 ik - 20204F6 26 H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STELUX HOLDINGS INTERNATIONL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 EERE

Key audit matter
Net realisable value of inventories

The net realisable value of
inventories is identified as a
key audit matter because of the
magnitude of the inventories
combined with the judgements
associated with determining
the amount of allowance for
inventories.

As at 31 March 2020, the
Group recorded inventories of
approximately HK$373.04 million
net of provision for inventories
of approximately HK$296.961
million.

The write-down of inventories to
net realisable value was estimated
by management through the
application of judgement and the
use of assumptions.

During the year ended 31 March
2020, a provision for inventories
of approximately HK$91.004
million was recognised to the
consolidated income statement
based on management’s
assessment.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimation and judgement applied in determining
the net realisable value of inventories included:

- Understanding the inventories
allowances/write down policy of the
Group;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy
of the inventory ageing reports; and

- Evaluating the key assumptions and
estimates applied by management to
determine the provisioning percentages
applicable to individual ageing categories
of inventory by comparing to current year
and historical sales trends.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BERE

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Refer to Notes 17 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The impairment of property, plant
and equipment, and right-of-use
assets is identified as a key audit
matter because of the significant
judgement involved in assessing
the amount of impairment of
property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group
had retail store assets recorded
under property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$13.199
million and HK$146.823 million,
respectively.

The carrying amount of the retail
store assets is written down to
their recoverable amount when
the assets carrying amount
exceeded their estimated
recoverable amount.

Management determined that
each retail store is a cash-
generating unit and monitors
their financial performance for
the existence of impairment
indicators, such as stores making
a loss and early closure of stores
before the lease term.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment process for identifying impairment
indications include:

¢ Understanding management’s process for
identifying impairment indicators;

¢+ challenging the judgements made by
management in identifying impairment
indicators;

¢ Obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared
by management, understanding the major
assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts for each cash-generating unit and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation;

¢+ Comparing the major assumptions such
as growth rates, budgeted sales and gross
margins to historical results and evaluating
their reasonableness in light of current and
expected future market conditions; and

¢ Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of
the impairment assessment by management
in the consolidated financial statements.
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B2 EERE

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on
trademarks

Refer to Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The impairment of trademarks is
identified as a key audit matter
because the assessment which is
based on past performance and
management’s expectations for
the future market development
involved significant judgment and
estimates.

As at 31 March 2020, trademarks
of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$48.262
million.

Trademarks with an indefinite
useful life are carried at costs and
are not amortised.

Management tests annually
whether the trademarks suffered
any impairment by considering
the economic benefit to be
generated from trademarks. The
recoverable amount is determined
based on a value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used
pre-tax cashflows projections
based on financial budgets
prepared by management.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment on trademarks include:

¢ Understanding from management the
business plans associated with these
trademarks;

o Assessing the appropriateness of impairment
method used and evaluating key assumptions
such as growth rate and discount rate
applied by management with the assistance
of our in-house valuation specialists; and

¢ Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of
the impairment assessment by management
in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BERE

Key audit matter
Going concern assessment

Refer to Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March
2020, the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$402.684 million and,
as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately
HK$299.541 million. These
conditions may create doubt
about the Group’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The Group's financial statements
were prepared on a going concern
basis. The directors’ assessment in
respect of going concern is set out
in Note 2.

The going concern assessment is
identified as a key audit matter
as significant management
judgement is involved in
determining whether a material
uncertainty exists and in
estimating the Group's future cash
flows and funding requirements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in respect of the directors’
assessment of going concern included:

Obtaining an understanding of the inputs
and key assumptions of the cash flow
projections prepared for the purpose of the
going concern assessment;

Challenging the inputs and assumptions
used in the cash flow projections by
benchmarking them against historical trends
and data and observable external economic
data;

Assessing the availability of unused banking
facilities during the forecast periods by
inspecting relevant documentation and
evaluating whether the facilities were
sufficient to meet the Group's funding needs
with refence to the cash flows projections;

Performing sensitivity analysis on the cash
flow projections;

Assessing the possible mitigating actions
identified by management in the event that
actual cash flows are below forecast;

Challenging the directors’ assessment that
there was not a material uncertainty in
relation to going concern based on our
understanding of the Group’s expected
liquidity requirements during the forecast
period; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures included in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises the information
included in Management Discussion and Analysis (but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, and Report of the Directors and Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which are expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the Other
Information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read Report of the Directors and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to the Audit committee and take appropriate action considering
our legal rights and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, B AL T B g A SR TE T o FAM e TR
we determine those matters that were of most significance in THBAWER G B R R Bt i iy % R
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current J R S A R T o FRAM A A B A o v
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these FIH - BRIFEREEBIR AR A RS L
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes TH o BTN S LR OL T o AR A BETE AR
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely A7 S % v A o T Y T R A AR Y
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be INRFIE > AP E AN EAE R T R IE o
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this tH H A 7 A BT A 1 B R E H A AR B

independent auditor’s report is Mr. Liu Eugene. L1 Pinta S
RSM Hong Kong PSS ey TR 9
Certified Public Accountants B EFTIm
Hong Kong Tk
26 June 2020 20204F6H26H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mElaER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FsE BT AT
Continuing operations FEEEXK
Revenue A 8 1,034,794 1,457,779
Cost of sales B A (529,403) (718,595)
Gross profit EF 505,391 739,184
Other losses HoAhEE 9 (68,292) (19,982)
Other income HAA 10 53,705 41,624
Selling expenses S (444,765) (594,852)
General and administrative expenses — % AT (186,095) (237,428)
Other operating expenses HoA 728 3 (190,809) (19,101)
Finance costs A LA 11 (50,607) (24,920)
Loss before tax BRI ATES 1B 12 (381,472) (115,475)
Income tax expense JIr SR 3 15 (21,212) (28,967)
Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ FRFEEEXBNER (402,684) (144,442)
Discontinued operations RIEEEXK
Loss for the year from discontinued operations  4F A % I 3655 1Y 46 33 - (1,706)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations i % IF & 3B 1 i i 33 - 111,766
Profit for the year arising from discontinued ~ FR#& L& EEB R FHE
operations - 110,060
Loss for the year FREE (402,684) (34,382)
Attributable to: LU REAE
Equity holders of the Company E/NTILETEE RN (402,898) (34,551)
Non-controlling interests TP ek 2 214 169
(402,684) (34,382)
Loss attributable to the equity holders of RATESHE ABLEERE
the Company arising from:
— Continuing operations — FRUE TS (402,898) (144,611)
— Discontinued operations — KB - 110,060
(402,898) (34,551)
Loss per share BRER HK cents HK cents
From continuing operations REFELEXRK - Al
- Basic and diluted — R R 16 (38.50) (13.82)
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERKILEEEK
- Basic and diluted — AR R 16 (38.50) (3.30)

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

A EEREA o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meETHEkER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L
-

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3E BT AT
Loss for the year FREE (402,684) (34,382)
Other comprehensive loss: Hitb2HEE :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently F-7% i] H 7740 2 14 7
to profit or loss: HIEH
Exchange differences of translation of ¥} 375 1 [ 56,26 45
foreign operations (42,789) 7,171
Release of exchange reserve upon He L S B AR
disposal of discontinued operations T .ty P i 11 33 - (14,978)
(42,789) (7,807)
Items that will not be reclassified HEANEENAHE
to profit or loss: R HIEH -
Gain on revaluation of property, PREUEDIZE - Heas I st
plant and equipment, net of tax 14 Al i it - 202,040
Change in fair value of equity RN T-(ELZE 2 FA 2 T i 4
investments at fair value through other IR A A4 & 1Y
comprehensive income A SR ) 22 (9,526) 2,596
(9,526) 204,636
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FRBRBIE
for the year, net of tax Hp2m (&8) Kk (52,315) 196,829
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FAZEEBR),WEEE
for the year (454,999) 162,447
Attributable to: LUT (L
Equity holders of the Company LN/l EnESZEDN (454,525) 163,211
Non-controlling interests FEPEIBHE A 474) (764)
(454,999) 162,447
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for &N AEHEFEAEEER
the year attributable to the equity 2EEE) WS EE
holders of the Company arising from: KA :
Continuing operations FRAUE s (454,525) 68,129
Discontinued operations b 2 - 95,082
(454,525) 163,211

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these S50 176 FUAY M A A 45 G MBS IR AR
consolidated financial statements. A EER R o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2020 202043 H31H

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i BT WA T
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LERR T e G ] 17 131,315 165,411
Investment properties 'a-e7ES 18 519,800 586,100
Prepaid lease premium TEATHH 5 A 19 - 11,135
Right-of-use assets S 20 198,704 -
Intangible assets Eii31A v 21 57,541 65,633
Deferred tax assets R APl T 28 38,384 49,553
Equity investments at fair value through #0718 HA A T i 45
other comprehensive income HIHR A AR BUE 22 5,444 14,970
Deposits and prepayments P4 T T R0H 24 36,638 55,080
Total non-current assets FREBEELEE 987,826 947,882
Current assets REBEE
Inventories i 23 373,040 559,829
Trade and other receivables 25y B A REN R 3K 24 163,454 182,488
Pledged bank deposits HEAPSRAT A7 3K 25 54,579 56,649
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl EY) 25 127,016 234,869
Total current assets REEERAE 718,089 1,033,835
Total assets BERE 1,705,915 1,981,717
EQUITY BRfE
Capital and reserves attributable to the ~ ZNAFERFEABERAR
equity holders of the Company (N
Share capital il 26 104,647 104,647
Reserves Gl 27 425,799 880,324
Shareholders’ funds BRES 530,446 984,971
Non-controlling interests TP P 2t 6,655 7,129
Total equity REERE 537,101 992,100

B () A RA A 46
2020 4F4F- )



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2020 2202043 H31H

2020 2019
Note HK$/000 HK$'000
Bt BEEAT T WA
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities PR AERLIE A 28 32,933 31,004
Lease liabilities iEN == 29 118,251 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEREE 151,184 31,004
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 B A E AT R 30 172,583 237,472
Income tax payable JREAT T A58 16,288 32,840
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B A B 31 651,449 688,301
Lease liabilities HEAMRE 29 177,310 -
Total current liabilities REBAEEE 1,017,630 958,613
Total liabilities E BB 1,168,814 989,617
Total equity and liabilities REREERE 1,705,915 1,981,717

The consolidated financial statements on page 44 to 176 were HHEIE2020%6 7 26 H AL L% & &R 544 5
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2020 and were 176 B &6 AT R 3% -
signed on its behalf.

Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
=R AER
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
T RATECAH TTICHTH R BT P 75 A 7

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these S50 H 176 FAYM M A 45 G MBS IR 1R
consolidated financial statements. Al SR o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L
-

Attributable to equity holders
of the company

AARERHEAELS
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital  Reserves Total interests equity

e @i act FERER EREER
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
g AT (4 TV -4 T (4§ DTV -3

(Note 27)

(f&E27)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 818 104,647 915,943 1,020,590 8,193 1,028,783
(Loss)/profit for the year R (EHR) - (34551)  (34,551) 169 (34,382)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) A2 ks, () - 197,762 197,762 933) 196,829
Dividend paid (note 32) TR (HE32) - (198,830)  (198,830) (300)  (199,130)
Changes in equity for the year FERSEH - (356190 (35619 (1,064)  (36,683)
At 31 March 2019 ®2019F3A318 104,647 880,324 984,971 7,129 992,100
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A818 104,647 880,324 984,971 7,129 992,100
(Loss)/profit for the year AR (1) /R - (402,898)  (402,898) 214 (402,684)
Other comprehensive loss oAb 2R - (51,627)  (51,627) 688)  (52,315)
Changes in equity for the year FERGEH - (454,525)  (454,525) 474)  (454,999)
At 31 March 2020 #2020F3A318 104,647 425799 530,446 6,655 537,101

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these B50E E176 E M A IS4 A MM EN AR
consolidated financial statements. CIER A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Witk BT AT
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRERE
Cash generated from operations G S 4 34(a) 228,101 127,813
Interest paid AR (50,607) (24,920)
Hong Kong profits tax paid S RSB 4,329) (8,825)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded E 28 [ A i F A5 10 40
Overseas profits tax paid AT ARG BE (15,641) (25,023)
Overseas profits tax refunded B EYEIREZ] VIR G 1,551 492
Net cash generated from EETHMENRERRE
operating activities 159,085 69,577
Cash flows from investing activities REFHNRERE
Purchase of property, WA ~ B St
plant and equipment (11,446) (31,723)
Proceeds from disposal of property, MY - W i s
plant and equipment A 897 2,737
Interest received e ALE 836 1,096
Dividends received EL s S 1,014 2,798
Proceeds from disposal of business H B 25 TS A H 33 - 340,013
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETH (A FEHRE
investing activities FEE (8,699) 314,921
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHNRERE
Drawdown of bank borrowings FRIURAT B 143,357 215,725
Repayment of bank borrowings ERERAT B (180,158) (485,907)
Capital element of finance lease BT A&
payments - (58)
Principal portion of lease payment ST B A AR Ay (192,316) -
Increase in pledged bank deposits HEAPSRAT ARG - (56,649)
Dividend paid EARE - (198,830)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBMANRESFE (229,117) (525,719)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4 K BLa 55 HY) D 1F4E (78,731) (141,221)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  FHIIY B & B &5 (E Y
of the year 234,869 382,997
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3% 55 B) ff) g 2 (29,122) (6,907)
Cash and cash equivalents at FERNRERAEEEY
end of the year 127,016 234,869
Analysis of balances of cash RERRESEYER
and cash equivalents: B
Cash and cash equivalents — & KB &% EY 25 127,016 234,869
The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these S50 2176 FUAY MM AR 45 G MBS IR 1O R

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, Hamilton, HM11 2 Church Street, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of Stelux Holdings International
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in Note 39
to consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$402.684 million as of
that date, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
approximately HK$299.541 million.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Included in current liabilities are bank borrowings of
HK$651.449 million which contain a repayment on
demand clause. Based on the Group’s credit history
and historical relationship with the banks, the executive
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will demand immediate repayment but rather such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6.1(d).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date will amount
to HK$138.961 million.

In order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have taken
measures such as, closing down under-performing retail
stores; and implementing various cost control measures in
order to reduce the costs of operations.

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period, unutilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$192 million as at 31 March
2020, other potential sources of funding, and the above
measures, and therefore the directors have concluded that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet in
full its financial obligations as they fall due during that
period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)
15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC) 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires
a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 did not have an impact or leases where
the Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

BRAAHTET RAMER] B R MBI ERER (4

(@)  Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@ ERHITREETEBUBHREER

53

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 as from
1 April 2019. The Group has elected to use the
modified retrospective approach and has therefore
recognised the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at
1 April 2019. Comparative information has not been
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS
17.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes
to previous accounting policies and the transition
options applied are set out below:

(i) New definition of a lease

The change in the definition of a lease mainly
relates to the concept of control. HKFRS 16
defines a lease on the basis of whether a
customer controls the use of an identified asset
for a period of time, which may be determined
by a defined amount of use. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the
right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

The Group applies the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that were
entered into or changed on or after 1 April
2019. For contracts entered into before 1 April
2019, the Group has used the transitional
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are
or contain leases. Accordingly, contracts that
were previously assessed as leases under HKAS
17 continue to be accounted for as leases under
HKFRS 16 and contracts previously assessed as
non-lease service arrangements continue to be
accounted for as executory contracts.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact

HKFRS 16 eliminates the requirement for a
lessee to classify leases as either operating
leases or finance leases, as was previously
required by HKAS 17. Instead, the Group is
required to capitalise all leases when it is the
lessee, including leases previously classified
as operating leases under HKAS 17, other than
those short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets which are exempt.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied the incremental borrowing
rates of the relevant group entities at the date
of initial application. The average incremental
borrowing rates applied by the relevant group
entities range from 2.9% to 12.8%.

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group
applied the following recognition exemption
and practical expedients at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16:

] elected not to apply the requirements of
HKFRS 16 in respect of the recognition of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets to
leases for which the remaining lease term
ends within 12 months from the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e.
where the lease term ends on or before
31 March 2019;

3.

BRAAHTET RARER] BB MBI EER (4

(@

FERFET REETERMBHRELER

(#&)

BB AR 1695 F L (A5)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

o used hindsight based on facts and
circumstances as at date of initial
application in determining the lease term
for the Group’s leases with extension
options;

J excluded initial direct costs from
measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application; and

° relied on the assessment of whether
leases are onerous by applying HKAS
37 as an alternative to an impairment

review.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
for leasing transactions in which the Group
recognises the right-of-use assets and the related
lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease
liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12 Income
Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BT RLETEBMEREER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) (@ EAFITRELETEBUMBREER
(#&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) IR AR 16 9E [T (A7)
(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) ARFE B o B R S ()
(Continued)
The following table reconciles the operating NREHA2019F3A31HZ
lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 to the ReE i EURYE B 20194E4 71
opening balance for lease liabilities recognised H e 58 2 FH B B A 00 45 B
as at 1 April 2019: IR
HK$000
AT
Operating lease commitments as disclosed as at  jA20194F3 31 H 5% 2 5%
31 March 2019 LR 439,707
Less: W

Commitments relating to leases exempt from MR S AL 2 R R BRI

capitalisation:

— short-term leases and other leases with — FLATH & ORI BRI R 201 948
remaining lease term ended on or before 3131 H 8 Al i
31 March 2019 Z H AR (23,904)
— leases of low-value assets —REEEEME (8)
— contracts signed before 31 March 2019, but ~ —J*20194:3 H31 H {47 » {HjiA
leases commenced after 1 April 2019 20194F4 71 H BRI & (24,393)
Add: i
Lease payments for the additional periods where 7S 58 2 H A M 2 194 T 1=
the Group considers it reasonably certain that — ZEFERE T ZESMUI IO FL B 3UE
it will exercise the extension options 97,741
489,143
Less: W
Total future interest expenses ARACHI B B S (32,548)
Present value of remaining lease payments, TRH20194F4 1 H Z B &2k
discounted using the incremental borrowing FIZRAEBL 2 5 T A R BUE
rate as at 1 April 2019 456,595
Add: hn
Finance lease liabilities recognised as at R201943 H31 HfERR 2 Bl
31 March 2019 HERAR 51
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 #A20194F4 4 1 H iR 2 & A fif 456,646
Represented by: wHep
Current lease liabilities B E AR 194,093
Non-current lease liabilities FE BN & B 262,553
456,646
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised at an amount equal to the
amount recognised for the remaining lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised in the statement of
consolidated financial position at 31 March
2019.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS
9”) and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

So far as the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 on leases previously classified as finance
leases is concerned, the Group is not required
to make any adjustments at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16, other than changing
the captions for the balances. Accordingly,
instead of “Finance leases payables”, these
amounts are included within “Lease liabilities”,
and the depreciated carrying amount of the
corresponding leased assets is identified as
right-of-use assets. There is no impact on the
opening balance of equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

BRANHTRT RS BB M B REER ()

FERFET REETERMBHRELER
(#)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) @)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BB IR ARG 1 695 R B (78)

(i) Lessee accounting and transitional impact (i) ARFE B o B R S ()
(Continued)

LRSS SR
RIS T 6% S 5 4 AR
ETa 7 X

The following table summaries the impacts
of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position:

Effects of adoption of HKFRS 16
RAERRBREER
E 0%

Carrying
amount as at Recognition As at
31.3.2019  Reclassification of leases 1.4.2019
R2019%
3A318 R2019%
ZIREE EXNNE HERR 4A1R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A AT AT AT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Right-of-use assets fi e - 4,320 452,687 457,007
Property, plant and ERE YT
Equipment (notes i and i) (Htzki Kii) 165,411 (2,339) - 163,072
Prepaid lease B E
Premium (note iii) H0 1B (3 11,135 (11,135) - -
Current assets REEE
Prepayments FAT O 18,762 (667) - 18,095
Liabilities af
Lease liabilities HEam - 3,959 452,687 456,646
Finance lease Al B (FfaTiv)
Payables (note iv) 51 (51) - -
Other payables (note v) — JLAbIESFHERR (Hf7Ev) 20,838 (13,729) - 7,109

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Lessee accounting and transitional impact
(Continued)

Note:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In relation to assets previously under finance
leases, the Group recategorises the carrying
amount of the relevant assets which were
still leased as at 1 April 2019 amounting to
HK$51,000 as right-of-use assets.

The Group reclassified the reinstatement under
property, plant and equipment to right-of-use
assets as at 1 April 2019.

Upfront payments for owned used leasehold
land arising from Thailand subsidiary was
classified as prepaid land lease payments as at
31 March 2019. Upon application of HKFRS
16, the non-current portion of prepaid land
lease payments amounting to HK$11.135
million was classified to right-of-use assets.

The Group reclassified the obligation under
finance leases of HK$51,000 to lease liabilities
as current liabilities at 1 April 2019.

The Group reclassified the provision of
onerous contract to right-of-use assets and
accrued rental to lease liabilities as at 1 April
2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(@ Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

(iii)

Impact of the financial results and cash flows of
the Group

As a result of initially applying HKFRS 16,
in relation to the leases that were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS
17, the Group recognised right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$198.704 million and
lease liabilities of approximately HK$295.561
million as at 31 March 2020.

Also, in relation to those leases under HKFRS
16, the Group had recognised depreciation
and financial costs, instead of operating lease
charges. During the year ended 31 March
2020, the Group recognised depreciation
charges of HK$212.221 million and finance
costs of HK$25.273 million from these leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. AW RLEITEBMEREER )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) CHEMEEKREMNTITIREIETE
effective BRI MR E R
The Group has not early applied new and revised A A I e LR T A 20194E4 H 1 H
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet BH ify 2 PV A i 0L L 1 o A 3
effective for the financial year beginning 1 April AT M KB AT 7 s B 5 s B ) o 5%
2019. These new and revised HKFRSs include the SRR S KA T A v R R I AL
following which may be relevant to the Group. LT AT RE BAS 2w A B A HE R o

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

RUTBEHRZ%E
BRI ST HREN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 April 2020
KEAE w1 A s B i s YR J S 3 5% KWL E 20204F4H1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material 1 April 2020
RigTT g RHERE 1 9t R FEEsHE A e 202044 H1H
HIZE 85
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 April 2020
HKFRS 7
REERT B B A HE ISR 958 ~ il ) B AL HE i A 20204F4H1H
B R RIS 3958 K A v s o YE I
795
The Group is in the process of making an assessment I [ B A T BT B
of what the impact of these amendments and new FA S A Y A 40) 45 JE R B8 B M o
standards is expected to be in the period of initial R BELT 54 - HRITE 18 4
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption Hi oo PR AN EZ S E R AR S A VS R
of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on A B B AT AR R o

the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g.
investment properties and certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

4.1 Business Combination

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

ETEEHEE

AN K T S R Y R S A R A
B BRLCT G RHEUR P A B 25 (BE
Vo3 Rk oy b THAR A TEFHR) o
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A ) L A B 5 R R P R ) B
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WP Jag 2 ] 45 A 4 I 3 HL B A e RE R
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V9 PR 77 2 B o B R i R % T 5 [l i 1Y
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A 2 Wz H A P R T A 2
A AT AR o AR - A A 2 hI R L
Z HAF LA A RIAIRE -
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Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised LENZ S - Ghx AR B A e
gains on transactions between group companies are T LA%E - f‘ﬂ%;F;ZﬁCEﬂﬁ RREUR T
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated T B > 5 IR BLE IR

unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. TESHEEGE)
4.1 Business Combination (Continued) 4.1 ¥EBE/HE)
Non-controlling interests in the results and equity P FE 2t L BRI 2 R A B AR R A
of subsidiaries are shown separately in the income s RMGE BRI R - LG HER
statement and statement of comprehensive income, BE)RMEEABERANZRT]

statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling A AJ [ A5 BEL I A o M A A T I
interests that do not result in a loss of control as HBUREHETIRE 2 22 5y o B AR B R
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A A NHIZE G o PEb VENE f 5 B 5
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment PR a K I PRI ERE AR AR T (H 2
between the carrying amounts of the controlling R R R - LS LA B JB 2 W 22 AR
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative HAREAE o BIRPEMIVENE 2 2 T B
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between B A Bl 2 ST AT AR 2 A AT Ay 22
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling FAEA L AL HEA N A R 45 A0 79 8 S
interests and any consideration paid or received TR rh iR

is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity A B R e RIRE - JR[R] e R R sk
account for an investment because of a loss of R BI M | — R E 2 55 A
control, joint control or significant influence, any AR 22 A BRIRE > N B S 2 AT £
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its BB i BT R R HATHE - ARIR
fair value with the change in carrying amount T {588 BB 1 0 i AR o L HCAR ABR S
recognised in the income statement. This fair value EBE AT~ S ERME EE L
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes REAMESS » BEAFE AP IR T -
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest LBEAb - S5 A A 2 T o 4 e 0 B 5
as an associated company, joint venture or financial EHA B AT SRR A £ 2
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised HENEAREERAEEZ T A
in other comprehensive income in respect of that M o WG AT RE R AR ST A7 AL 2 T A 4R
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly TifE R 2 < B P A0 s U5 i A e )
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may ZHRUE /R SCE B R R A 5
mean that amounts previously recognised in other T 2 ) — SRR o M5 b S sl
comprehensive income are reclassified to the income BN ) 1A PR i A P D (R R
statement or transferred to another category of equity B S F e RE S OO B - IR AE
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. A JFL At 22 THT WA i e R ) 42 L 91 R AV <6

TR TE RS R EOR 2 R4S o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business Combination (Continued)

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

J equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in
the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
. consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

4. EESTHBEGA)

4.1

EBast )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. IEETHE®R
4.1 Business Combination (Continued) 4.1 EBEGtAHD
e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity o LA IR WU I Ty 2 RORE A
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value W 2 2 1 A v T P i
of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded WEAT R EEFHEZLATE
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the IKr > L2 BH DA 2SI AR o o
fair value of the net identifiable assets of the SRR~ O RR R P OB A
business acquired, the difference is recognised JEHTEA 2 HE A F AR R
directly in the income statement as a bargain JIT WS Y S B R E 2 A
purchase. SE > HZE RO R U aR R
T o
Contingent consideration is classified either as ARME B R R  SREE - A
equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as SRR SRR A EEEE
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to WA &5 it RIERR AP EEEE) -

fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, o 675 & 0 70 B B A > WO T LR RRA
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s 2R T B A B AR R 3R I S i
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is HZ A -PEE R aE > RSt
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any PR AT A Wi 4 B 1R AR S i A R A
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are R o

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

4.2 Separate financial statements 4.2 BIBBHRR
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost A B JE 2 ) 1) 8 4% AR B ek (B 51
less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable W o WA TR AL 5 B Y B E AL AR
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are A o Ay G A s F I SE AR R E
accounted for by the Company on the basis of ST ISPNI

dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries ik 7% B g 2 ) ) 5 A RS R A
is required upon receiving dividends from these e g 2 D i DR MRS 8 T ) 2 T i
investments if the dividend exceeds the total AR A % S B0 R 8 S B R
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the AT 114 i T (0 2 430 ) RO
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying (BOH5 P52 R 5 G WS #oR A O BR T
amount of the investment in the separate financial (E > R SR 5% 55 IS R ZE 3 72 5 4
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the EOETT AR -

financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker.

The Company has appointed the executive directors
as the chief operating decision makers to review the
operating results of the Group on a consolidated
basis, and makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(@)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the functional
currency of the Company and presentation
currency of the Group.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognised in
the consolidated income statement. All foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement within “other
gains, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

4. EESHBEGA)

4.3

4.4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

b)

()

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when fair
value was determined. Translation differences
on assets and liabilities carried at fair values
are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. For example, translation differences on
nonmonetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in income statement as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available-for-
sale financial assets/equity investments are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

o income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

S
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. IFESTHEHE)

4.4 INEBRE ()

4.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)  Group companies (Continued) (c) ZE[E T2 Al (4)

e all resulting currency translation o A BE S ZE A HA 2 T
differences are recognised in other W it R T R
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising AR ANREE o R EAL AT 5N

from the translation of any net investment HHFRE LRGSR EEZ

in foreign entities, and of borrowings, are ifE 58, 22 %A 3 70 Hoth 4 T U 25 R

recognised in other comprehensive income. TR o o Hh B i A1 SE B B IR

When a foreign operation is sold or any AH R AR — 43 1 AR A £ K

borrowings forming part of the net investment 5 - G BEE 5, 25 0 € R i B

are repaid, the associated exchange differences EHOBERE  AF AR

are reclassified to the consolidated income R —FR) o

statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on WA i — [ ¥ SN EL R T EE AR 2 T

the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as BN SR TR LA SN

assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and e KA IR

translated at the closing rate. B/

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial () HEGI TR A

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified
to the consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTEEK )

4.5 Property, plant and equipment 4.5 PP - WERRE

69

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or
when it is part of a disposal group classified as held
for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets (or disposal
groups) held for sale and discontinued operations”.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified ~ Shorter of remaining lease term

WIS ~ e B i R S RAS Tl AR
Pt B ZBUBE R AR o B S A
B ELAR IR B Y a2 U T H Y SO
WY WA BRI R R
LA R R R A R A T i
Y B SR I A — R i > IR RHE T
B Sl IR A B A YE SR 5 9
MM o FEAE AT (0 5 2 ) 1Y
(IR By G | R[4 1L s i
TEGRHBOR PR — w0 -

“ BRIE B A B 2 R A KR 7 A 4 W] BE IR
AZREEE > AR IE H A RE AT SE A
> HAR A A Gt AEE 2 MRk
{0 BCAfE 0 2% 8 S (A28 19 DL T
SE) o wHA TR SR E B COE A
T (P B AR R A AL RRERD o T
HCb A R R 2 BT S 7 A B O ]
TR W R AR o

T b R ST - I T
fHE A TP A L JBR A A I A i
ot 7 < 478 DL AR TR Al s AT
JHAES PR 0 P HL A 2 R R (0 - P
PR

FEEE 3 P I AR R AL S A 4R PR

as finance lease or useful life AE ) (DA 2 1 1)
Buildings Shorter of the unexpired lease L Ex BRI E20 2 5047
term or 20 to 50 years (DA )
Equipment and leasehold 3 to 10 years or over BN 3E10F S E M
improvements the lease term REA R
Furniture and fixtures 3to 15 years EiyE3 3FE154
Motor vehicles 5 years gt 54F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBER A

4.5 W HBRIEGE)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
Freehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment loss, if any. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in the consolidated income
statement within “Other (losses)/gains, net”.
Valuations are performed to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its
carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements
in the revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income statement. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual
transfer from the revaluation reserve to retained
earnings is made for the difference between the
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of an asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s
original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the revaluation reserve realised
in respect of previous valuations is transferred to
retained earnings as a movement in reserves.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBEKR )

4.6 REWHE

4.6 Investment properties

71

Investment properties principally leasehold land and
buildings are held for long-term rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group. Investment property is
initially measured at fair value at the date of transfer
from property, plant and equipment. Differences
between the costs and fair values of the properties
are recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequently,
they are carried at fair value. Changes in fair values
are presented in consolidated income statement as
part of other income.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of a property for subsequent accounting is its
fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group
accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment”
up to the date of change in use, and any difference
at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference
between the fair value of the property at that date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEETBERH@
4.7 Intangible assets 4.7 BREE

(a)  Goodwill (a) PHE
Goodwill is subsequently measured as PR AR e M k4 8 T L o
described in Note 4.8. Goodwill on acquisitions S B B S T 2 R T AT
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. EE o WERAN TS EE
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for AT WA L > A B
impairment annually, or more frequently if 1 BN DU A B R AT RE ) B
events or changes in circumstances indicate {EIRF > B EAR % U AT
that it might be impaired, and is carried at cost H e g A i 2 5 E 1R )
less accumulated impairment losses. Gains W o B B i s KOs R
and losses on the disposal of an entity include 54 B C & A o R
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the fH -
entity sold.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units 7R 2 AL B (L Bk 9 0 T 2z B
for the purpose of impairment testing. The EEARA o ALY H
allocation is made to those cash-generating T 32 B B R TS A
units or groups of cash-generating units that DF 1) B < 7S A B BB 4 A
are expected to benefit from the business AL RIE o % AE B Bl R
combination in which the goodwill arose. The Az AR % ¥l v 0 B H Y B
units or groups of units are identified at the BT B A A A - B AR
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored BOTER o
for internal management purposes, being the
operating segments.

(b)  Trademarks b)
Separately acquired trademarks are shown at eEL U N ) TR R R SR AR B
historical cost. Trademarks have an indefinite MR o PHIEAA MR 48
useful life and are not amortised but tested H R ZE S > (R 715 48 0 W (E
annually for impairment. HEAT R o

(c)  Technical know-how () HELM

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of 30 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale
and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is
considered highly probable. They are measured at
the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal, except for assets such as deferred
tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets and investment property that are
carried at fair value and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt
from this requirement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

and discontinued operations (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or
subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal
group) to fair value less costs of disposal. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value
less costs of disposal of an asset (or disposal group),
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss
previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of
a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised
while they are classified as held for sale. Interest
and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a
disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and
the assets of a disposal group classified as held for
sale are presented separately from the other assets in
the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group
classified as held for sale are presented separately
from other liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet.

A discontinued operations is a component of the
entity that has been disposed of or is classified as
held for sale and that represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
is part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of
such a line of business or area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
The results of discontinued operations are presented
separately in the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEGA)

4.10 Financial assets 410 €@EE

75

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. All recognised
financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

. amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

J FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash
flows of the investment comprise solely
payments of principal and interest and the
investment is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and
sale. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income is recycled from
equity to profit or loss.

. FVTPL if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVTOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair
value of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

S
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEKR )

410 £@EE )

4.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an election to designate
the investment at FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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S
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEKR )

411 e@MEEREHE)

4.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

77

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-
looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTEEGE)

411 e@MEEREHE)

4.11 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, if any,
the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTEBEHE)

412 eRER

4.12 Financial liabilities

79

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEESTHBER )

4.12 Financial liabilities (Continued) 412 SBERF )

4.13

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy
or the termination of a contract.

Inventories

Raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and
subcontracting fee. Costs are assigned to individual
items of inventory on the basis of weighted average
costs. Costs of purchased inventory are determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Provision for inventories are
recognised in the consolidated income statement
within “other operating expenses”.
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A RS R R B o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. IEREFBRE®R
4.14 Cash and cash equivalents 414 RERREZEY

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flows MGG B EREIME - Ha
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes Lo B e Y A5 F o8& - BT
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial FHA $R B 2 4 Rl M A~ LA
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid W ER B RE JRE W H & =1
investments with original maturities of three months HERUR - T BPRE S 2 OB
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts L T B ) (7 B LR SIS R
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant PARSRATIE S o SRATIE IR AR A E
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank BERNRE & E S RANTIR o

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet.

4.15 Share capital 4.15 B
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental P s Sy E R o 4 B R R R AT
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares T S PR RE 2 B B A A R 4 R B
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of T TR RIH 2 380 (TERBIIR) o

tax, from the proceeds.

4.16 Borrowing costs 4.16 ERRA
General and specific borrowing costs that are R R WO i R S A
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction G L — R E B AURA - TR
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised S8 J B HE A A LB T R U
during the period of time that is required to complete BRI EAAL o & B EE SR
and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. R IR ] YR A 77 T A dBE 5 ) o i
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take g -

a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary e 8 BRI A & EAR A ST 2
investment of specific borrowings pending their WG PR 2 BB > HA S
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the B AL 2 EEHORA TR
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in JIT A A A 5 R AR 7 JEL A 30 ] A i
which they are incurred. 4t R A HERE o

81 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEKR )

4.17 Taxation 4,17 F1E

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEEKR )

4.17 Taxation (Continued) 417 BIE ()

83

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless
the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through
sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax for
such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EERETHEH)
4.17 Taxation (Continued) 4.17 BTH (4)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing LA S5 L e 0 R T AR AL B
transactions in which the Group recognises the right- BN ER SRR RERIAN &
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the ALE R EM NS E S E R
Group first determines whether the tax deductions R REAL BT -
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.
For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions AR AT A R B
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group GyiliE o A B g i A A A
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing A7 BRI T A s g e J 251 298
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences ZHUE o R R AR ERE R e >
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are A R R RE 7 A A TR
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on SLN G AR e R I S AL B A 1A e
right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the W o
principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when BTG LT RER AT A R B
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current A B BB JE 1 AR AR > Sl T B[]
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they — BB M B RO T B A B AR
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation VA g AR A A B L B B TH
authority and the Group intends to settle its current e f iy - IR AE B T A X AT
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. ARG o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18 Employee benefits

(@)

(b)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an
expense for bonuses. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTHEHE)

4.18 EEEH (4

4.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Termination benefits (c) Aul#EF
Termination benefits are payable when H kAR AR R B A IE R IK H
employment is terminated by the Group before B A B2 B 4 11 T8 ) AR B
the normal retirement date, or whenever an R I DA R S L A A
employee accepts voluntary redundancy AT o AL EFLAIT H A (LA
in exchange for these benefits. The Group Ly E) TSR IR AR A - (a)
recognises termination benefits at the earlier A AR S R BE BT £ 5% 45 AR
of the following dates: (a) when the Group FIIRE 5 K (b) BT 6l S8 AL o] i 5
can no longer withdraw the offer of those s R 5 3 7 R R A K
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises K E IR BHE AR AP a2 A B
costs for a restructuring that is within the HRAE B o 7252 Z &) Dbk
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment JEh R R S DL T o BEAR
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer FITIRIETE 4 Z AR B
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the ANBGEE o 70 WIRR H
termination benefits are measured based on - A T 2 SO B AR R R
the number of employees expected to accept B BUE -
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

(d)  Employee leave entitlements ) EEEAEY

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESHBEKR )

4.19 B4E

4.19 Provisions

87

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of watch products for general repairs of defects
occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group on certain products are recognised based
on sales volume and past experience of the level of
repairs and returns, discounted to their present values
as appropriate.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

B N 8 A A RS BLA Y
TR S E PR AT TR R AT
A T REVHFE IR - HE S RHREH
A SE MR A - IR TR A o ok
PRACE s 1R AN B DR R 1A o

Wh Z EE 35 - RIEAT R 2R &
TR HH PR T A R A e A T
FEHACHERE o B EaZ IR S5 LA
HETE - EIRR T RETEARAK >
AT 7R RR A -

1A )5 1 T AR T B AR B S LA
BiAl R 5 E 2 BUE R - B
IR 117 355 3 B W 2 Wy TR S i AT 2
SE TRV < WA o R (] 2 3L AL 1 9
AR Ry LS B -

A B L DR A 0 R 1 3 T B B AR
A o AL HRE TR AR
S PR RE R R AR B B B SO TR A
BB BOKP- O K BR AT » SIE 1 RG BL
EHBUE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHBEKR )

4.20 WARER

4.20 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred
to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)

Sale of watch products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised

at the point in time when control of the asset

is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide

customers with rights of return and volume

rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates

give rise to variable consideration.

(i

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer
with a right to return the goods within
a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods
that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled. The requirements
in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied
in order to determine the amount of
variable consideration that can be
included in the transaction price. For
goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised. A right-of-return asset (and
the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to
recover products from a customer.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

b)

()

Sale of watch products (Continued)
(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be
provided to certain customers once the
quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified
in the contract. Rebates are offset against
amounts payable by the customer. To
estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely
amount method is used that best predicts
the amount of variable consideration. The
requirements on constraining estimates
of variable consideration are applied and
a refund liability for the expected future
rebates is recognised.

The Group do not have expected future
volume rebates and no refund liability is
recognised as at 31 March 2020.
Other income
Building management services income and
shared services income are recognised when
the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

4, FESTEEKR B

4.20 WARER ()

(a)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTBEHE)

4.20 WARER ()

4.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

91

(d)

(e)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts

) FLEHA

FLB AR BB A B % %
MERF AL HE - DU B AR 10 A B
S il T H 2 TR A 0 e g

the estimated future cash receipts over the [ (e 78 A 00) PR M T B A
expected life of the financial instrument or a RAH GO A BH 55
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net Z IR TR T o

carrying amount of the financial asset.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

4.21 Contract liabilities

(e) MEHWA

IS JE AT T B S WA B B HEE )
Tl SLIRF - BT S AH B 22 48 97 F
i AR AT RE A AL - T B
AR AT LA A] 5E R D ©

421 EHEE

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer BH AR AL T & P UORA
goods or services to a customer for which the fiE (BB O 21 00) 1 2 1] 2% 5
Group has received a consideration (or an amount R IR B AT o MR F IR AL
of consideration that is due) from the customer. If a VB 8 o 5 R T % 5 R SR

customer pays the consideration before the Group

transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EEREHBER®@
4.22 Related parties 4.22 BAEEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: TENINEDL T > — 7 A4 2y BRAS £ 8]
A B

the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow Subsidiary of the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group; (If the Group is itself such a
plan) and the sponsoring employers of
the postemployment benefit plan;

@ I —ZAANLHZANLZH
ES ) B YNe =

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

54
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[F] 42 I HE 5
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715 8
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(b) &7 B EH > WA DR e
W
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(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTHE@HR)
4.22 Related parties (Continued) 4.22 BB AL (H)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following (b)  BZJTEM o AL AT LR R
conditions applies: (Continued) WA ()
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly (vi)  RZECHEZ () BT ek A N R
controlled by a person identified in (a); il i ) 5
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) Fraghlz N t¥ A
influence over the entity or is a member EPN 2 VIR VT3 ¢
of the key management personnel of the (EzEB AR 2 &
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and BEMERE 5 K&
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group (vili) % B lCH T g 46 ) 2 AT
of which it is a part, provides key o] BB ] 18] A S B A
management personnel services to the S I BN IR A A
Group or to the parent of the Group. N B RH -
4.23 Leases 4.23 HE
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses RISL— B A HIRE o ALEEFEAL G402
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A BRAEHE o A A EE— B
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys TR 2 ol 2 Wk 91 & 7 T A DA R IO
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a i MEHEREEHE - WEEA
period of time in exchange for consideration. Control HEFE ] A1 ) ST e e e
is conveyed where the customer has both the right TR T A RS A £ I o B
to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain PETIHE
substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.
(i) The Group as a lessee (i) AEBELRRA
Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 E2019%F4 7 1 H &7 F i) BUOR
Where the contract contains lease component(s) i & # S B R Ay RIFTHE
and non-lease component(s), the Group has ARy > A 4R B R A Iy JF
elected not to separate non-lease components & T A B &
and accounts for each lease component and L A o3 B AT AT AR B Y JF FHL
any associated non-lease components as a HR > ARSI B — w4 -
single lease component for all leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. EESTHEE )

4.23 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily laptops and office furniture. When
the Group enters into a lease in respect of a
low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised
as an expense on a systematic basis over the
lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.23 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, except for
the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life
and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at
fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-
use assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FESTHEHE)

4.23 Leases (Continued)

(i)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2019 (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
properties and lease liabilities separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.23 Leases (Continued)

(i)

(if)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Policy applicable before 1 April 2019

Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group, as lessee, has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-
term and long-term payables. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
income statement over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases is depreciated
over the asset’s useful life or over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership at the end of the lease term.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Group as lessee are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group as a lessor

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. The respective leased assets are included
in the balance sheet based on their nature.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.24 Dividends distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements (apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a)  Going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future operational performance
and the expected future operating cash inflows;
and the continuous availability of banking facilities.
Details are explained in note 2.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b)  Significant increase in credit risk

The ECL are measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage
2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define
what constitutes a significant increase in credit
risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information.

(c)  Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement
date for leases that include renewal options
exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the Group
to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in
other properties leases have not been included in the
lease liability because the Group could replace the
assets without significant cost or business disruption.
See Note 29 for further information.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in circumstance that is
within the Group’s control. During the year, no lease
term has been reassessed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting

period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, the income tax was
charged to profit or loss based on the estimated profit
from continuing operations is disclosed in Note 15.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses at least annually whether
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets exhibit any indications of impairment. The
recoverable amounts are determined based on value-
in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use
of judgements and estimates. Management believes
that any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the
above key elements in the value-in-use calculation
would not result in material additional impairment
charges.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets as at 31 March
2020 were in Notes 17 and 20 respectively.

(c)  Fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including (1) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition
and location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
(2) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (3)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 March 2020 is disclosed in Note 18.

(d)  Impairment of goodwill and technical know-how

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill
and technical know-how have suffered any
impairment. The Group reviews goodwill and
technical know-how for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the related
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amount has been determined based on
higher of value-in-use calculation and fair value less
cost of disposal. The calculation requires the use of
judgments and estimates.

The carrying amount of goodwill and technical
know-how as at 31 March 2020 and valuation
assumption used in determining recoverable amount
is disclosed in Note 21.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e

)

Impairment of trademarks

Trademarks with an indefinite useful life are carried
at costs and are not amortised. Management tests
annually whether the trademarks suffered any
impairment by considering the economic benefit
to be generated from trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used pre-tax cashflows
projections based on financial budgets prepared
by management. Management determined the
financial budget based on past performance and
its expectations for the future market development,
which involved significant judgment and estimates.

The carrying amount of trademarks as at 31 March
2020 and valuation assumption used in determining
recoverable amount is disclosed in Note 21.

Deferred tax assets

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the tax
losses or certain temporary differences in the relevant
tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is based
on the projected profit in respective jurisdiction
and entity and the Group uses its judgement to
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing on balance sheet date. It could
change as a result of the uncertainties in the market
conditions.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets recognised
as at 31 March 2020 is disclosed in Note 28.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(g)  Fair value measurement

The Group’s unlisted equity investment was classified
as equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and measure at fair value
using market approach with reference to the price to
earnings multiple of comparable companies listed
in the market. This valuation requires the Group to
make estimates about price to earnings multiple, non-
marketability discount, and hence they are subject to
uncertainty.

The fair value of the equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income as at 31 March
2020 is disclosed in Note 22.

(h)  Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations at the balance sheet date.

The allowance for inventories was made for the year
ended 31 March 2020 is disclosed in Note 23.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(1)

Impairment of trade receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount
of impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables
and contract assets based on the credit risk of trade
receivables and contract assets. The amount of the
impairment loss based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being
revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables (net of impairment loss) is disclosed in
Note24.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank borrowings. The main purpose of net debt is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.
The Group’s overall risk management policies focus
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seek
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. Risk management is carried
out by management under the policies approved
by the board of directors of the Company and it
identifies, evaluates and monitors financial risks in
close cooperation with the Group’s operating units.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MR RER (4
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 HEEMEZEGE)
(a)  Foreign exchange risk (a) SrEEMEFE

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysia ringgit, Thai baht, Renminbi and
Swiss Franc against the Hong Kong dollar.
The Group regularly monitors its exposures to
foreign currency transactions.

The Group’s bank borrowings are principally
denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant group entity. Management does not
anticipate any significant foreign exchange risk
associated with the Group’s bank borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. B RRER ()
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 HEEMEZEGE)
(a)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (a)  SMEEME 7 ()

The approximate impact to the Group's loss
before tax that might be resulted from the
reasonable possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates against the Hong Kong dollar to
which the Group has significant exposure at 31
March 2020 is summarised below. The analysis
includes balances between group companies
where the balances are denominated in a

202043 A31H » AL
T B %) N A1 I R
FIOT B A ) M L B H AR
1) B I s TR A R 2B A B 4
T o B M L3 AR A\ 2
(&5 Bk - T a% 45 Bk )0 DL BR AR 4
91 Y 2 RE B R A i B N T
ﬁo

currency other than the functional currencies of
the Group entities.

2020 2019

(Increase)/
decrease Decrease
in loss in loss
before before
Increase income Increase income
in foreign tax from in foreign tax from
exchange  continuing exchange  continuing
rate  operations rate  operations

HEEE
ERRBLA FrigieiE
BERW SEH BRI AT
SNEER (), HMEERESR JEs R
#938 b0 P30 5% 0%
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT T T
Singapore dollars Hrmdoo 5% (156) 5% 100
Malaysia ringgit LSY I EHRC 5% (506) 5% 24
Thai baht ES 7S 5% 407 5% 468
Renminbi PN 5% 1,747 5% 1,670
Swiss franc Fig 12 BB 5% 8,885 5% 8,697

3l A BE BE 2 5% (2019
A1 5%) 1% 3 bR B AT R 1R A AR
A ) 4 BEAELAR S T ) 52228 o

Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates
by 5% (2019: 5%) would affect the loss before
income tax by the same amount but in the
opposite direction.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MR RER (4
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 HEEMEZEGE)
(b) Interest rate risk (b)  FIFE G

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances as disclosed in Note 25. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank borrowings
as disclosed in Note 31. Bank borrowings
at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. The Group’s policy
is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2020, if interest rates of bank
borrowings at variable rates had been 50 basis
points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, loss before
income taxes would have been HK$3.257
million (2019: HK$3.441 million) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MR RER 4
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 HEEMEZEGE)
(c)  Credit risk (c) 1FEMESE

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties arises from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets
(mainly include deposits with banks and trade
and other receivables) as disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The table below shows the credit quality and
the maximum exposure to credit risk based
on the Group'’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March 2020. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

(c)

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIBERBRER D
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 HEEMEZEGE)
Credit risk (Continued) 17 B i (48)
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 AR
EEFR 2HRABEEFR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-R8 ERE EZRBR LA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRAT BRAT BRI BB BRT
2020 2020
Trade receivables (note a) FEdRRR (HHE 2) - - - 79,995 79,995
Financial assets included in ~ EL4#% 4 R JLAbIEN
deposits and other MRk s
receivables (note b) (BH3E b) 114,067 - - - 114,067
Pledged bank deposits EMRETIEK 54,579 - - - 54,579
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESHY 127,016 - - - 127,016
295,662 - - 79,995 375,657
2019 20194
Trade receivables (note a) FERR K (k2 - - - 85,542 85,542
Financial assets included in @544 R LA
deposits and other TR G
receivables (note b) (fff3t b) 133,264 - - - 133,264
Pledged hank deposits MR 56,649 - - - 56,649
Cash and cash equivalents Re LB &S Y 234,869 - - - 234,869
424,782 - - 85,542 510,324
Note: B
(@ For accounts receivable to which the (@) A e A AL 7 SRR A HE
Group applies the simplified approach WA HR R I Bk (L > DA 8 45 R it
for impairment, information based on the 7y BE R 0 e R S I R
provision matrix is disclosed in Note 24 to the HEE 24 ©
financial statements.
(b)  The credit quality of the financial assets (b)  E A e FE AT BOE - HAHE

included in prepayments, other receivables
and other assets is considered to be “normal”
when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets
had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition.

WA SR 0 e A WY A
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. R RER 4
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 HEEMEZEGE)
(d)  Liquidity risk (d) RBETEE

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
banking facilities to meet obligations when due
and to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying businesses,
management aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping credit lines available and
to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of
banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity
requirements both in the short term and long
term.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MEEMBER A
6.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 6.1 MHEEBEZE
(d)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) B EEEE )
Repayable Between Between
on demand/ 1and2 2and 5 Over
within 1 year years years 5 years
EEXEE/
1ERT 1226 R 2B5ER SENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEfT AR BT
As at 31 March 2020 18202043 H31H
Bank and other borrowing (note) BT BB (D) 674,574 - - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 191,602 75,263 38,304 28,733
Trade and other payables B 5 BRI 168,342 - - -
1,034,518 75,263 38,304 28,733
As at 31 March 2019 1201943 H31H
Bank and other horrowing (note) SRAT O AL SR () 708,210 - - -
Finance lease HEHE 57 - - -
Trade and other payables B RAM R IR 227,106 - - -
935,373 - - -
Note: FFeE -
Certain bank borrowings contain a repayment on A TR TR R B AR
demand clause which can be exercised at the bank’s AT RAT R RER BT IR - AR A S
sole discretion. Based on the Group’s credit history M iy %ﬁ:ﬁﬂi&ﬁiﬁﬁ E‘J}% /ﬁvﬁﬁﬁ
and historical relationships with the banks, the 17 AT SR GR A AT G 2R
executive directors do not believe that it is probable BPRFAER > Sif AR PRI FUE (9 R
that the banks will demand immediate repayment EI%S%?%?%W?%%& o PUR 2 #r
but rather such bank borrowings will be repaid in BURARGE T BRSO R B i - A7
accordance with their scheduled repayment dates. ] e L 3 ) 5 A SR B A R
The analysis below shows the cash outflows based AT
on the scheduled repayment. The amount includes
interest payments computed using contractual rates.
Between Between
Within 1 and 2 2 and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years

1T 1226 R 2E3ER 3FELE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T BT

At 31 March 2020 202043 31 H 138,961 233,226 113,622 239,634

At 31 March 2019 #*20194F3H31H 133,325 121,301 175,766 332,051
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. MERREE )
6.2 Categories of financial instruments 62 TMIASE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Financial assets: EREE:
Equity investments at fair i3 ST (BLA75 2 FC A 4 T i 2 57
value through other A R 3 £
comprehensive income 5,444 14,970
Financial assets at amortised cost: VUSRS A R Y 40
— Trade and other receivables — ¥ 5 B H A B
and deposits & 194,062 218,806
- Pledged bank deposits — L ERAT A7 54,579 56,649
— Cash and cash equivalents — Bl& KB &S Y 127,016 234,869
381,101 525,294
Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost:  DASESH AR 5 19 45 A 1
— Trade and other payables — B 5 R AR IR 168,342 227,106
— Bank and other borrowings — SRAT A R 651,449 688,301
819,791 915,407
6.3 Fair value 6.3 ADFE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial SR B A R R RO
assets and financial liabilities as disclosed in the G e m A IRE (E A 2
consolidated balance sheet approximate their ATAEARA -

respective fair value.
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6.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HXEREEGE

6.4 EBEXREBRER

6.4 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (including current and non-current
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds’ as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

A 1) A I R R B A B [

I AR A D 5 PR AR [ A 7 L
foRE a5 A A SRR AR - ) AR I
A A 45 DL B A 2 B
5o

ﬁrT%%jﬁH*&%‘ﬂﬂﬂ% AR 1T

AR SO PR A e B R 1
%L%ﬁﬁi AT M i 4 S A
BURAEF -

BRSE R oA s R AR — B0 ARERE L)
0 LA 2y BE PR A R S o (A
L SR TR B DL A SRR RT L - 3
B R A (B G B AR
%:ZFJ?/TZ{JIL@J&#/}ILEJ/Em B 4
KBS EHW RN o BRI A A
GAEEABRII RG4S -

The gearing ratios of the Group were as follows: BRI -
2020 2019
HK$/000 HK$'000
BT T AT
Bank and other borrowings (Note 31)  #47 J A B3k (fF5131) 651,449 688,301
Less: W
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) B4 S BB 55 (HY) (Bft¥25) (127,016) (234,869)
Pledged bank deposits (Note 25) HEHPERAT A7 3K (B 5E25) (54,579) (56,649)
Net debt FEDS 469,854 396,783
Shareholders’ funds i A 530,446 984,971
Gearing ratio R 88.6% 40.3%
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2020 4F4F- )



115
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

@i

Fair value hierarchy

The Group classified its financial instruments and
non-financial assets into three levels:

Level 1 The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 2 The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques
which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on
entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.

Level 3 If one or more of the significant inputs is

not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3. This is
the case for unlisted equity securities.

The Group’s finance department led by the Chief
Financial Officer (the “CFQ”) is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments.

The finance controllers report directly to the CFO. At
each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the CFO.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. AVESEGR
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) i 2AFEEEE
The fair values of the non-current portion of deposits A I B 0 2 e B wt BARAT B
and bank borrowings are calculated by discounting KL AHEE > AR E R AR
the expected future cash flows using rates currently AR - 15 BB S B 2 H
available for instruments with similar terms, credit 2 TH 2 BRE8 A AR B 5t A TE
risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non- RABL BT E - ALER20204F3 H
performance risk for bank borrowings as at 31 March 31 Hogt it B8R AT B3 3 2 A R 4 J
2020 was assessed to be insignificant. B iR A I AR o
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 28 E38 act

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT BT BT

Recurring fair value measurements BEMNTLERNE
14

At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31R
Financial assets tREE
Equity investments at fair value through /A F-HE I AL 2 Hk 4
other comprehensive income FUBRAI B
— unlisted equity securities — I LA - - 5,444 5,444
Non-financial assets FEWEE
Investment properties EV8SE/ES
- commercial building LE == - - 519,800 519,800
- - 525,244 525,244
At 31 March 2019 and date of transfer #2019F3A318 K&
L E 4=
Financial assets StHEE
Equity investments at fair value through  #&/A-F-(HE R HAL 2 k4
other comprehensive income SRR B E
- unlisted equity securities — TR A R 2 - - 14,970 14,970
Non-financial assets kEREE
Investment properties REm¥E
— commercial building —HEMT - - 586,100 586,100
- - 601,070 601,070
There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 for N BEWHATEFEZHL - 2R
recurring fair value measurements during the year. 3 [ M Al 438 o

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(i)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Financial assets

The valuation of unlisted equity investments at
fair value through other comprehensive income
was determined using a market-based valuation
technique. The valuation requires the directors to
determine comparable public companies based on
industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates
an appropriate price to earnings multiple, for each
comparable company identified. The multiple is
calculated by dividing the market capitalisation
by the profits of the comparable companies. The
multiple is discounted for non-marketability. The
discounted multiple is applied to the profit of the
unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value
at each reporting period.

Non-financial assets

The fair value of the investment properties is arrived
at on the basis of valuations carried out by CS
Surveyors Limited (“CS”) and Savills (Macau) Limited
(“Savills”) independent valuers which are not related
to the Group. The Group’s finance department
reviews the valuations performed by CS and Savills
for financial reporting purpose. These valuation
results are then reported to the Group’s management
for discussions and review in relation to the valuation
processes and the reasonableness of the valuation
results.

The fair value of the investment properties were
arrived at by using the direct comparison method
based on market observable transactions of similar
properties in similar conditions and locations of
the subject properties and adjusted to reflect the
conditions of the subject properties including
property size and property floor level. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DVHEEGR)
(iii) Reconciliation of financial assets and non-financial (i) REIBAVEFEZEMEERKE
assets measured at level 3 SRIEEHR
Equity
investments
at fair value
through other
comprehensive Investment
income properties
BRAVE
EBHM2E
W25 51 Bk #Y
RRE REME
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April 2018 #20184F411H 12,374 230,000
Revaluation surplus transfer to equity 2 T RE P E A 2 2,596 -
Transfer from property, L SE/E SR sG]
plant and equipment - 356,100
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H 14,970 586,100
Revaluation deficit transfer to equity T2 JECHE P B A e 1 (9,526) -
Change in fair value recognised in TR R R AR AT E)
income statement - (66,300)
At 31 March 2020 R2020%E3H31H 5,444 519,800

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Valuation processes

The Group’s finance department is responsible
for the fair value measurement of financial assets
required for financial purposes, including Level 3
fair value measurements. The financial department
reports directly to the CFO and the Audit Committee.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO and the Audit Committee at
least once every six months, in line with the Group’s
half-yearly reporting periods.

The main inputs used in fair value measurement by
the Group are derived and evaluated as follows:

J price to earnings multiple

J non-marketability discount rate
Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
Financial assets

The most significant unobservable input is price
to earnings multiple of 6 (2019: 7) and non-
marketability discount rate of 30% (2019: 20%).
The lower the price to earnings multiple, the lower
the fair value of the equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income. The lower
of the non-marketability discount rate or non-
controlling interest discount, the higher the fair value
of the equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

If the non-marketability discount rate increase/
(decrease) by 1%, it would result in (decrease)/
increase in fair value by HK$78,000 as at 31 March
2020.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7.
(v)  Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (v)
(Continued)

DNERTE ()

HERABBREXNFENBR @

Non-financial assets A
Significant Range of Relationship of
Valuation technique(s) unobservable unobservable unobservable
and key input(s) input(s) inputs inputs to fair value
EAFIEE FAUBE TOBRBARE
HERTRERBARE BARE BANE EE EATENEE
At 31 March 2020 Direct comparison method based 1) Unit rate From HK$98,000 to 1) The higher the unit

on market observable transactions ~ 2) Frontage
of similar properties and adjust to
reflect the conditions of the subject
property.
The key inputs are:
1) Property size
2) Unit rate
BB R ATBEN S ER 1) B
TR - AR LB 2)#im
E NI
CEL N VR
1) YR
2) BAER

202043 H31H

At 31 March 2019 and
date of transfer

Direct comparison method based 1) Unit rate
on market observable transactions  2) Frontage
of similar properties and adjust to
reflect the conditions of the subject
property.

The key inputs are:
1) Property size
2) Unit rate

MRS TTBE TS R 1) B ER
S - WAL B 2)#m
ES LIS/

R A BAR S
1) Y
2) B

®20194F3 A31H
R B

HK$842,000 per
square feet

rate, the higher the
fair value

2) The larger the shop
frontage, the higher
the fair value

FEFJ7R 198,000 1) BLATER LR
JEEB42,000M0 AT
2) FRTARA A TE
i

From HK$180,000
to HK$823,000
per square feet

1) The higher the unit
rate, the higher the
fair value

2) The larger the shop
frontage, the higher
the fair value

HFHRE180,000 1) EAERHE -

HICES23,000 A T{HMRE
It 2) MK > ATE
s

B () A RA A
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A RS R R B o

121

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive
directors review the Group’s financial information mainly
from product and geographical perspectives. From a
product perspective, the Group has two reportable
segments namely watch retail and watch wholesale trading,
segments. From a geographical perspective, management
mainly assesses the performance of watch retail operations
in (i) Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China and (ii) rest
of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods. Sales between
operating segments are carried out on terms equivalent
to those prevailing in arm’s length transactions. The
executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings before
interest and tax (“EBIT”). This measurement basis excludes
unallocated income and net corporate expenses.

The optical retail segment and certain subsidiaries under
optical wholesale trading segment (the “disposal group” or
“discontinued operations”) were discontinued and disposed
on 1 June 2018. Information about this discontinued
segment is disclosed in Note 33.

The watch retail segment and watch wholesale trading
segment together formed the continuing operations.
Unallocated income represents dividend income
from investment and gain on disposal of discontinued
operations. Net corporate expenses mainly represent
corporate staff costs and provision for senior management
bonus. Unallocated assets represent property, plant
and equipment, investment properties and right-of-use
assets at corporate level, unlisted equity investments,
deferred tax assets, pledged bank deposit and cash and
cash equivalents. Unallocated liabilities represent lease
liabilities other payables and accruals at corporate level,
bank and other borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and
income tax payable.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

8. WARZDEER A

HZE2020F38310LFE

Continuing operations

BEEEER
Watch retail
ERIEE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest  wholesale
China of Asia trading Total
BE
BAR =M E&
TEIARE W HfWE  HRER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEfFrT  BE¥Ar B BY¥AxR
Revenues from contracts with EBMEREERE155

customers within the scope BEANEFAOKE

of HKFRS 15

- Gross segment — TR AR 477,141 296,154 433,673 1,206,968

— Inter-segment — 43I - - (172,174)  (172,174)
Sales to external customers WETIKE S 477,141 296,154 261,499 1,034,794
Timing of revenue recognition O HERR IR 1H]

- Ata point in time — AR ] B e A 477,141 296,154 261,499 1,034,794
Segment results DEEE (209,178) 3,124 (64,995)  (271,049)
Unallocated income RAEIA 1,014
Net corporate expenses SEETEOR (60,830)
Finance costs s LA (50,607)
Loss before tax BREIATE 1R (381,472)
Income tax expense A3 (21,212)
Loss for the year FEER (402,684)

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIER )

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (Continued) BZE2020F3A318 LFE (#)

Continuing operations

123

HEEEXK
Watch retail
BRTE
Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch
Mainland Rest  wholesale
China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total
BB AR [+ 573
REAE  HHBE  RBEER AAE R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEfr  EEfRT  BEfx  ENfR  BEfxn
Capital expenditures BAER % (5,905) (3,273) (135) 2,133) (11,446)
Depreciation: fri
~ Property, plant and equipment  — 3 - B 25 Bk (12,019) (8,908) (2,246) (10,374) (33,547)
- Right-of-use assets — (it A (151,219) (51,181) (6,642) (3,179)  (212,221)
Impairment of: Wl -
— Property, plant and equipment  — 4% ~ #25 K (5,694) (148) - - (5,842)
~ Intangible assets — R - - (6,166) - (6,166)
~ Right-of-use assets — RS E (71,900) (5,018) - - (76,918)
Amortisation of intangible assets ~ HESH T & - - (1,430) - (1,430)
Fair value change of investment R E¥I3EATEHH)
properties (29,500) - - (36,800) (66,300)
Write back of provision/(provision) 7 &%/ ()
for inventories 4,782 115 (95,901) - (91,004)
Segment assets R 552,054 188,645 321,702 - 1,062,401
Unallocated assets KNTERE 643,514
Total assets BEE 1,705,915
Segment liabilities e 250,165 86,061 74,657 - 410,883
Unallocated liabilities KABAR 757,931
Total liabilities BemE 1,168,814

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)) 8. WARZHBEFR )
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE20194E3 31 H IR
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
HRERH B
Watch retil Optical
BHTE RE%E
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch Macau and Optical
Mainland wholesale Mainland wholesale
China ~ Restof Asia fading ~ Sub-total China ~ Restof Asia fading ~ Sub-total Total
1k ] g L) il &

AR ARME i N HEAE RRME MR it it
HKSOD  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKSOD0  HKSON0
Bt BEf ER BMTR BB BB BT e R

Revenues from contracts with ]
customers within the scope ik

of HKFRS 15 Al
- Gross segment — i 0633 0200 59991 176059 186,012 30161 409 100 1980731
- Inter-segment — i - N 1 € )] - - (1,44 (1244 (3039%)
Sales o extemal customers HEFIRER 86338 30200 291241 1457779 186012 30,161 8 18958 1676737

Timing of revenue recognifion ~~ FEABERARH

- Ata pointin ime — e G 06338 MO0 WML 4TI 186012 30,161 285 898 16767
Segment reult SR (98,853 W 9 780 9,626 648) 3 649 139
Unallocaed income ARIA 279 1403 126841
Net corporate expenses it (33,463) G (0%
Finance costs il 24920) {0 3360
(Lossprofthelore income tax W () /A1 (115475) 124,618 9,143
Income fax expense iRt (28,967) (14358) (#,52)
(Loss)profit for the year R /A (14444 110,060 (3438)

B () A RA A
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIER )

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (Continued) BAE201943 431 H IR (4

125

Continuing operations Discontinued operations
i e RIERERE
Watch retil Opticalretil
HHTE REZE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Watch Macau and Optical
Mainland Rest  wholesale Mainland Rest  wholesale
Chia  ofAsa  tading  Unallocated  Subvtotel China  ofAsa  tadng  Subotal Total
iR i i L) o R
TRRE OKBME  HEEE AW NOtEAE  MBME R it it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKY000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
DR O o i T i 111 11/ 1/ 17
Capital expenditures ERtERL o7 6187 (567) 612 6017 100 ()] N (1
Depreciation ik (19.733) (9,484) (2399 (10915 142,533) - - - - @)
Impairment of propert, UERE F BT
plant and equipment (£251) - - - (£251) - - - - (4251)
Amortiaton of prepaid lexse ST 4B
premium - (2,796) - - (2,7%) - - - - (2,7%)
Amortsaton ofinangbleasses BT - - - - - - -
(Provisionfwrite back of Fk () /80
provision for inventories (30,162) 1,48 31510 - 2,59 - - - - 259
Wt back of provision/provision) 2K A4 H /
for onerous contracts (B 4916 (761) - - 4155 - - - - 415
Segment asses g B9 150340 46157 S AU
Unallocated asets KIRAE 786,275
Total assts A 1981717
Seqment lailie fHivaf 9014 34963 78691 - 209668
Unallocate labilies REANR 779949
Total s Bl 99617

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIERH)
Geographical information b B B

22 i [ 3 M SR B WA B 7y R SEAAN T

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and segment results by
geographical area are as follows:

Continuing operations

Revenue Segment results
WA DEELE

2020 2019 2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BEATT AT T BT T AT T

Hong Kong itk 434,085 721,668 (195,849) (37,872)
Macau el 69,663 115,553 (21,927) 18,843
Mainland China Hp R 84,027 128,906 (31,665) (43,520)
Rest of Asia CHEH SN 445,072 489,154 17,722 15,659
Europe i 1,947 2,498 (39,330) (11,000)
1,034,794 1,457,779 (271,049) (57,890)

Discontinued operations
HRIFEEEK

Segment

Revenue results

A GiESy

2019 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

WA AT

Hong Kong HHE 145,265 15,632
Macau M 9,956 2,242
Mainland China EHT NS 32,741 (7,896)
Rest of Asia RPN [ 30,996 (3,482)
218,958 6,496

OB () A RA TR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. WARDIER )
Geographical information (Continued) HwEER )

Fiz b [ BT 45 1) B 7 (BN THEE
At 2 T i g 27 R P R A 5 O N A0 B A T
BRERRIN MR ¢

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other
than equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and deferred tax assets) by
geographical area is as follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong ik 411,328 375,065
Macau M 322,640 360,574
Mainland China H K 26,113 10,858
Rest of Asia Y A 3 [ 147,278 97,264
Europe N 36,639 39,598
943,998 883,359

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

There were no revenue transactions with a single external
customer which amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
revenue during the year (2019: Nil).

Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

EARA BRI R % TR A

GRWNIIN %Y = IR S ST O 2k ]

AREFULAIT10%E LA L (20194 ) o

TEHC TR A SR B T RS A

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Sales of watches B Sk 1,058 2,887

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

8. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)) 8. WARZHBEFR )
Performance obligations RS
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery J& #) AT A SE AT B Wy R AR > AR B
of the goods and payment is mainly on cash and credit e fF N R EHEES RS > K
card settlement, except for wholesale customers, where AT IS BT - HiR20204F3
payment is due within credit period from delivery. As at JI31 H B3R5 40 3R ORIl 2 B0RR 0 ok
31 March 2020, the remaining performance obligations T ) b S T I R A R TR 5 — R A R
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are part of contracts BRI — B4 > AR U S R A E 5
that have an original expected duration of one year or less, TSSRAIRER 5 1% - 3l M2 51 43 WL Y 32 5 (8
the transaction price allocated to which is not presented #
according to practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
9.  OTHER LOSSES 9. HttEE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, EWE - HEE KGR
plant and equipment Wess  (E548) 40 (3,841)
Impairment loss of investment properties % &) 3 H{H (66,300) -
Exchange losses HEE 52 5 18, (2,032) (16,141)
(68,292) (19,982)

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

10. OTHER INCOME 10. EHfplrA

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Building management fee income M A LA 2,460 2,340
Rental income A A 11,483 9,148
Rental concession FHA 13,100 -

Dividend income from unlisted FE TR E
equity investments R A 1,014 2,798
Interest income FLE A 836 1,096
Sundries A TE 4,412 3,418
Shared service income FLE MRS YA 20,400 22,824
53,705 41,624

11.  FINANCE COSTS 1. BAEAA
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Interest on: FILE
— bank borrowings and overdrafts —HRATR I IIE L 25,334 24,913
— lease liabilities —HEAMRE 25,273 -
— finance leases —MEHE - 7
50,607 24,920
1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

12. LOSS BEFORE TAX 12. BRBIAIEE

AR B ) 1R A B SE B R BRI S R T 40
B GEA) Igi R AR IEA -

The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations
has been derived after debiting or (crediting) the following
items in the income statement.

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 21) #ESH#EIE & (F5E21) 1,430 2,322
Amortisation of prepaid lease premium  #ESH AT BB (HHEE19)
(Note 19) - 2,796
Auditor’s remuneration A BRI <5
— Audit services — U ES 2,646 3,045
— Non-audit services — IEZHIR 424 1,286
Cost of inventories sold and raw B A7 B AR KRR AR
materials consumed 529,403 718,595
Depreciation of: Ireg -
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) —#13& ~ ¥ XM (F5E17) 33,547 42,533
— Right-of-use assets (Note 20) — i R E (F5E20) 212,221 -
Employee benefit expenses (Note 13) i SAR A S (B5E13) 238,686 312,844
Fair value changes of investment BB A TEEE)
properties (Note 18) (fEE18) 66,300 -
Impairment loss of: WH
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 17) —#3& ~ B XMl (BH5E17) 5,842 4,251
— Right-of-use assets (Note 20) — i FHREE 2 (B 5E20) 76,918 -
— Intangible asset (Note 21) — oy & A (BEE21) 6,166 -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, WY - B St
plant and equipment (e ts) /58 (40) 3,841
Lease rentals in respect of land and B A 1 b S i
buildings R A
— Minimum lease payments — ARFH A K - 279,756
— Short-term lease payments — R B A K 25,995
— Variable lease payments — A S E TR 4,733 9,826
— Rental concession — &% (13,100) -
Reversal of impairment of trade SR VE AR ] (i 5E24)
receivables (Note 24) (368) (386)
Write back of provision for onerous ARG H B0 )
contracts - (4,155)
Provision/(write back of provision) FrE B ()
for inventories 91,004 (2,596)

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

13.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES EBEEFNZH
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Salaries and allowances M SR 215,982 284,632

Pension contributions less forfeiture BAR G ALK (TR E B Y

utilised (Note a) WUHER) (B sEa) 19,488 23,465
Others HoAth 3,216 4,747
238,686 312,844

(@)

Pensions-defined contribution plans

The Group operated a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors of the Company.
No further employees and contributions have been
added to the ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme and ORSO scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund.

Meanwhile, relevant employees of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong contribute to the local pension
schemes, contributions to the local pension schemes
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of the
local pension schemes. The assets of the pension
scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, forfeited
contributions totalling HK$5.678 million (2019:
HK$2.337 Million) arising from employees leaving
the ORSO scheme of the Continuing Operations,
were utilised to offset contributions during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year include two (2019:
two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 14.

The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2019: three) highest paid individuals during the year

13. EEBRXH#@

(b)

EfURESHMAL

A JE A ] 4 B N L B
T (0194F 1 ) EH > HFMEE
158 B A R EE 1420 M S ke o

RERNEMNSTHBRETH =2
(20194 : =) ALZB&nT -

are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T fioki X s

Basic salaries, allowance and HAH A > B EY R
benefits in kind 4,103 3,950
Performance bonus RKIAEAL 3,178 5,205
Contributions to pension plans EL N i DR 181 181
7,462 9,336

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

IR T HIM PR

Number of individuals

AE

2020 2019

Emolument bands (in HK dollars) ST AL A (s )
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 000,001 70 E ##2,500,0007C 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2 500,001 FE ##3,000,0007C 2 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 T E##3,500,0007C - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 02 #5%4,000,0007C - 1
3 3

(c) Senior management emoluments

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

(0 BREBEAEME
AT AR

Number of individuals

AE
2020 2019
Emolument bands (in HK dollars) AR (7 )
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 %%2,000,001 ﬁﬁ%mz,SO0,000fE 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 W ¥3,500,001 6. % H5 #4,000,000 - 1

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )

132



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. ESEANRER
(@ Directors’ emoluments @ EE#E
The remuneration of every director of the Company is AR AR EEM T

set out below:

Emoluments paid or payable i respect of a person's services as a director,
whether of the Company or ifs subsidiary underlaking:

FATENEAACNESIERRNEN

Emoluments

paid or payable

in respect of

director's other

servicesin

connection with

Remunerations  the management
paid or payable  of the affars of

Basic salaries, ~~ Contributions inrespectof ~ the Company
dllowances,and ~ toretirement  Discretionary  accepting office orifs subsidiary
Name Fee  beneftsinkind beneft schemes honus i) asdirector undertaking Total
SGEL L
LYEEEG]
Exfd AIREEN
Eife 2 Rite FEL S RfER
124 Lk REfHE fzatel BERA)  ESRAEME FLLLES a8
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

kv BT BT i kv kv kv

For the year ended 31 March 2020 EIZ2020%3A31R
il

Joseph C. C. Wong (i 1] - 1391 5 - - - 149
Kwan ChiKin, Wallace HE 80 1,589 18 973 - - 2,630
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes i 1 - - - - - 122
Wu Chun Sang ek 1 - - - - - 12
Wo Chi Man, Lawrence WX 0 - - - - - 1
M6 2,950 76 973 - - 4445
Forthe year ended 31 March 2019 E2019431131
Joseph C. C. Wong i Rl 100 1730 6 2657 - - 455
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace [ 80 1558 18 2,633 - - 4289
Kiwong Yi Hang, Agnes i 13 - - - - - 13
W Chun Sang & 135 - - - - - 135
W ChiMan, Lawrence X 135 - - - - - 135
585 3,308 81 5270 - - 9,244
1 33 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@

(b)

(o)

(d)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(i) Discretionary bonus represents the amount paid
during the respective year.

(i) Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019, none of the directors waived their emoluments,
except for Mr. Joseph C.C Wong waived director
fees of HK$100,000 for the year ended 31 March
2020 (2019: waived nil director fee and discretionary
bonus of HK$1.45 million was waived) and Mr. Wu
Chun Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man and Dr.
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang waived 10% of director fees
(HK$13,500) each for the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: nil wavied).

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for
making available directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and controlled entities with such directors (2019:
Nil).

14. EBETERRER )

(@

(b)

(9]

(d)

BEEME D

i FYBIEALIE E N DA I S5

ii BRI ST R AL AT ECRA -

HE2020%3H31H &201943 A31
HEAFEE > AMAIEAT{o] 38 S0 SE N 45
Rt Bl 3G Se A A B E 202043 H31H
T R4 100,0007C (2019
A M S T IT R AL
¥1.4516 #o0) KA A A - &
Bz LR S AL # 2 20204E3 H
31 H IR4F & 1 0% % F 44 (s
#$13,5007C) (20194F : HEHEE) o

EERNBENRBEBER

AR o M S IR AT ]
AR RAE F) S B AR R (20194F + ) o

RERNESRBEAE=FXZNT2RE

HE2020F3 31 H IFFERE > ARATH
SIf7 4 48 T S RS T e AT ] 5 =
FAHRE 20194 © 41) o

EHLES  RSEEXIRHLE
REBERATHEAZEN  EEK
REMR 5 2 AR

HME202093 A31H I4EE > HE4ELL
W B 2 S P B
W B2 25 N2 BE3K - MR R
38 ) 2 PE (20194F © 4E) o
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14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 14.

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions, (e)

arrangements or contracts

Except as disclosed in Notes 33 and 36, no other

significant transactions, arrangements and contracts

in relation to the Group’s business to which the

Company was a party and in which a director of the

Company had a material interest, whether directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

15. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

ESEARES @

EXEXS  HRAISRNEAFE

PREF5E33 36 0T i 58 & 4 » AAE
N SAEGE IRE > AR R S S5 5T ATl 9
KA 2 EH AN R 2 R %
oA Hrp A ORI 4 2 AR
Gy ~ Wik sl TR o

15. FiEHixH

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Current income tax AT
— Hong Kong profits tax —HHEAIGEL 3,925 7,500
— Overseas profits tax — g INFIAR R 5,268 23,041
— (Oven/under provision in prior years — AR i ) ) (523) 192
8,670 30,733
Deferred income tax (Note 28) HEAE BB (Ff5E28) 12,542 12,792
21,212 43,525
Income tax expense is attributable to: PN BEAG BT 3 B0 52 i
— Continuing operations — R BE TS 21,212 28,967
— Discontinued operations — LB TS - 2,281
— Gain on disposal of discontinued — AL SR AR
operations - 12,277
21,212 43,525

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) based on the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 31 March 2020 less tax relief, if
any. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on
the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of

taxation prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

operates.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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15.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15, FRfgBi (40
The taxation on the Group’s loss before income tax differs A 8] 4% L I BT A5 B JE 48 T Rt A B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the T Bl L A 57 8 T ) 9 B R (e
applicable tax rates, being the weighted average of tax SF-22) it PR BLEA A > R
rates prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group I

operates, as follows:

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Loss from continuing operations TR E S5 bR T AL A 18
before tax (381,472) (115,475)
Profit from discontinued operations H 117 SETS R IS B i 2 A
before tax - 124,618
(381,472) 9,143
Theoretical tax at weighted average rate of & /IHET-3316.75% (20194
16.75% (2019: -18.64%) -18.64%) T &1 54 1Y 22 5w A IE (63,915) (1,704)
Tax effect arising from: Bigs s BEE A
— Non-taxable income — I ERBL AT I (14,060) (6,905)
— Non-deductible expenses — RAl LAY B 58,010 11,207
— Recognition of temporary differences — FRERR AT A R WA 1) R IR
not previously recognised A 13,050 13,031
— Utilisation of previously unrecognised ~ —fff FI1E4F A e RR 1B T e 15
tax losses (5,005) (16,124)
— Tax losses not recognised — RAERR R B TE 12 33,505 31,648
— Others — HiAt 150 65
— Capital gain tax on discontinued — AR SERS 2 EAILAR
operations FEAE R BIIE - 12,277
— Tax relief — AR A - (162)
— (Oven)/under provision in prior years —IBTEAENE GBI B L (523) 192
Income tax expense Fr SR S 21,212 43,525
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 16.75% (2019: JHEF- 34 78 AR R £516.75% (20194F
-18.64%). The increase is caused by a change in the -18.64%) o T A A< 5 A 458 B K
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in PR AT 8 2 0 1140 s R e T e B T 3 o

the respective countries.
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16.

LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the Group’s
loss attributable to equity holders of the Company by

during the year.

T BRE A H DUAE AR 24w RE i 5 A B
M L R LA L AT 20 S - 24 S

the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue "o

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Loss from continuing operations S R TR (402,898) (144,611)
Profit from discontinued operations K1l 2E 5 ) LR - 110,060
Loss attributable to equity holders A A RE S A AN REAG S 1R
of the Company (402,898) (34,551)
Weighted average number of ordinary E 3847 4 ST 14 4
shares in issue (thousands) (LMTERT) 1,046,474 1,046,474
HK cents HK cents
pe= 311 A
Basic loss per share from continuing FREVE N B IR A 1
operations (38.50) (13.82)
Basic earnings per share from discontinued #%& 117 ¥ 25 B AR 24 1]
operations - 10.52
Basic loss per share attributable to the AN FIRE AR A A EAL B
equity holders of the Company AR (38.50) (3.30)
Diluted e

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 31 March 2020 are the same as the basic loss
per share amounts as there were no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issues during two years.

1 37 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% - WBREEE
Equipment,
Leasehold leasehold
Land and improvements
buildings and others Total
e A~ T
T RMT R R S HA k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T AT T AT T
Cost D%
At 1 April 2018 A20184£4 41 H 361,690 408,104 769,794
Additions RE 770 29,377 30,147
Revaluation upon transfer to LLEX14 - ¢/ETX LTI ¢
investment properties 225,498 - 225,498
Transfer to investment properties LLEXI§-L/ES (368,465) - (368,465)
Disposal/written off i /R - (45,915) (45,915)
Exchange realignment e 5. 7% (2,389) (12,925) (15,314)
At31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 220194331 H K%20194£4 71 H 217,104 378,641 595,745
Additions RE - 11,446 11,446
Disposals/written off hE - (74,263) (74,263)
Transfer to right-of-use assets W REE - (9,431) (9,431)
Exchange realignment B i, 25 45 (3,064) (8,918) (11,982)
At 31 March 2020 2020538310 214,040 297,475 511,515
Accumulated depreciation and RAHERAE
impairment losses
At 1 April 2018 H20184F4H1H 119,850 327,172 447,022
Charge for the year AT 5,193 37,340 42,533
Impairment loss BilE - 4,251 4,251
Transfer to investment properties EEREY¥E (12,365) - (12,365)
Disposal/written off e ok - (39,337) (39,337)
Exchange realignment i 5.7 (621) (11,149) (11,770)
At31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 120194331 H %20194£4 71 H 112,057 318,277 430,334
Charge for the year RAEFEHTE 4,872 28,675 33,547
Impairment loss BlE - 5,842 5,842
Transfer to right-of-use assets R RS - (7,092) (7,092)
Disposals/written off R - (73,406) (73,406)
Exchange realignment [ 8,25 48 (1,136) (7,889) (9,025)
At 31 March 2020 $20205F3A318 115,793 264,407 380,200
Carrying amount fREE
At 31 March 2020 #2020%F3A318 98,247 33,068 131,315
At 31 March 2019 #201943H31H 105,047 60,364 165,411

B () A RA A
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17.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Note:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of equipment
under a finance lease arrangement amounted to HK$51,000.

As at 31 March 2020, carrying amounts of retail stores
assets represent property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of approximately HK$13.199 million (2019:
HK$28.252 million) and HK$146.823 million (2019: Nil)
respectively.

The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable CGUs and the recoverable amounts of the
CGUs is determined with reference to their value-in-
use. Management carried out an impairment assessment
for the retail store assets, including property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets, which exhibited an
impairment indicator. Given the potential adverse impact
on the performance of the Group's retail stores as a result of
the social events and COVID-19, management performed
impairment assessment for all the retail stores. The carrying
amount of the retail store assets is written down to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount. The estimates
of the recoverable amounts were based on value-in-use
calculations using discounted cash flow projections based
on the forecasts approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such
as percentage change in revenue and percentage change of
running cost.

As a result, during the year ended 31 March 2020,
impairment of property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$5.842 million (2019: HK$4.251 million)
and impairment of right-of-use assets of approximately
HK$76.918 million (2019: Nil) were made as their carrying
values are not expected to be fully recoverable. Impairment
loss was included in other operating expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for
the recoverable amount as follow:

J Revenue: based on estimated timing on lifting
restrictions in all regions and the consequential effect
on the Group’s retail stores.

. Running cost: based on the estimated change related
to the Group’s cost saving plan and measures.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment pledged as security for
the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 31) amounted to
HK$66.060 million (2019: HK$69.556 million).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. BEYFE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
At 1 April R4H1H 586,100 230,000
Transfer from property, plant and HYZE - W St (MF5E17)
equipment (Note 17) - 356,100
Change in fair value recognised s 2 A HERR B A B )
in income statement (66,300) -
At 31 March A3A31H 519,800 586,100
In year 2019, the Group transferred three owner occupied 20194F - ALEEE =f B Y& =5
properties to investment properties. 7E
The investment properties were revalued by independent EFia-e/ENSE/E B SV G4 YN
professionally qualified valuer as at the date of transfer LR EEAMR A BB BES ERNE
when they were transferred from property, plant and Bt o
equipment, and as at balance sheet dates.
(i) Amount recognised in income statement for (i) BREVEABZRTEINSEHE
investment properties
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Rental income A 9,587 7,359
Direct operating expenses from properties & EfHE LA MY EZ H%
which generated rental income B (132) (335)
9,455 7,024

B () A RA A
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18.

19.

141

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18. BEWFEGH)
(i) Lease arrangements Gy HEZH
Commitments for minimum lease payments A B BB W) S B ISR AR A B AR R Rl
receivable on leases of the investment properties are IR EE35(b) ©
set out in Note 35(b).
The Group leases out retail stores under operating AL MTER ST BT S TFE
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases JEEE > B AU 4 - FH B L0
typically run for an initial period of 3 years, with 34F - ARG S AAERER] - 7EK
unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial AT AR RERY - RZ B E R
period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease W E TSR -
contracts contain market review clauses in the event
the lessee exercises the option to extend.
The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as R T A E S A LR E R4 A
a result of the lease arrangements, as all leases are B D) e & T > O AR A e R AR
denominated in the respective functional currencies L PEm AR Z AN B - S48
of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain AL E BRSO > 72 B i R AR
residual value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to NI B R -
purchase the property at the end of lease term.
(iii) Pledge (i) KA
The Group’s investment properties have been AL BRGSO SR T I
pledged as security for the Group’s bank borrowings BRERAT B (B 5E31) o
(Note 31).
PREPAID LEASE PREMIUM 19. BENBAEHE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
At 1 April R4H1H 11,135 14,266
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 PR A A B 5 e R RN 28 1 65% (11,135) -
Amortisation 4 - (2,796)
Exchange realignment T 8,26 86 - (335)
At 31 March R3HA31TH - 11,135

Amortisation for prepaid lease premium for premises was
included in selling expenses in the consolidated income

statement.
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20. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 20. ERAEERE
Total

HK$’000

BT
At 1 April 2019 #20194F4H1H 457,007
Addition NE 31,079
Depreciation charge for the year AT (212,221)
Impairment (note 17(b)) WAE (BEEE17 (b)) (76,918)
Exchange differences BEE 5, 2= 58 (243)
At 31 March 2020 #*20204F3 A31H 198,704
The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following EFE R A R W R DL BRI
types of assets: FE

2020

HK$’000

BT
Land use rights -l fe I HE 3,911
Property: Wk
— office premises — WA= 47,970
— retail stores —F 5 146,823
Total sl 198,704

Lease liabilities of HK$295.561 million are recognised
with related right-of-use assets of HK$198.704 million as at
31 March 2020. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants other than the security interests in the leased
assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

20204F3 H31H > #¥295.5611f & o
5 B 15 2 ] R 8 1 98. 70441 # o 1 A BE 8
FAREEE T LITRER - 5% %5 A B 1 3t Jm it
TATAAT 2255 - M R A B & & R
A IYE R RE R B A0 o B E A
B H W AEHER -

The Group leases various offices for its operations. AEMBEES THAZETEE - HES
Generally, lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of A4 B3 [E E AR HART 5L > MERT B

1 year to 3 years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

NIRRT SE R R 1L R R o A AR
Ty AR A S HE B RE o P A R AN B
MR ANGEAT o 7 5 AL B 4 J0) B P i A T 4t
BT A0 FR BE IR A S R T A0 B E 3R
L 16 5 3 A T SR AT RO SIH] o
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20.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 20. EREEEE)
Some leases include an option to renew the lease for an AR AR B B AR IR G A A5 R AR SR AR AN
additional period after the end of the contract term. Where ] o AL B AR o T PR T AT RO DL
practicable, the Group seeks to include such extension o AR R A A A AR SR AT 5
options exercisable by the Group to provide operational FEREFERERAE - AR BtE E T
flexibility. The Group assesses at lease commencement A SR BR A B B 4G B B RE AL R 5 B E
date whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the REAT (1 S 1= 3 4R E o ik AN 42 B MGk 5 P e
extension options. If the Group is not reasonably certain to FEAT A R R ARAE o AT R I [A] I B0 R AR A
exercise the extension options, the future lease payments B ARG A E A FHER - %%
during the extension periods are not included in the RACKH B AL VA JEL B M B T
measurement of lease liabilities. The potential exposure to
these future lease payments is summarised below:
Office Retail stores
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Lease liabilities recognised as at *20204F3 A 31 H R 10 B A fi
31 March 2020 (discounted) (G37) 28,935 3,720
Potential future lease payments under A FETER B B A g 4
extension options not included in lease A &1L M AR AAH & 75K
liabilities (undiscounted) (CRRGE) 22,548 21,021

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 March 2020, there has
been no such triggering event.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in Note
34(c).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group leased
a number of retail stores which contain variable lease
payment terms that are based on sales generated from the
retail stores and minimum annual lease payment terms that
are fixed. These payment terms are common in retail stores
in Hong Kong, Singapore and Malaysia where the Group
operates. The fixed lease payments and variable lease
payments are disclosed in Note 12.
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21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEEE
Technical
Goodwill  Trademarks  Know-how Total
me 5] HERM FkC]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
L XA WA AT AT
Cost 2%
At 1 April 2018 R2018F481H 10,773 84,584 75,195 170,552
Exchange realignment HEE 5 2 (445) (644) (775) (1,864)
At 31 March 2019 and 201943 H31H X

1 April 2019 201944 1H 10,328 83,940 74,420 168,688
Exchange alignment EE 31, 2% (1,049) 394 475 (180)
At 31 March 2020 72020%F3 8318 9,279 84,334 74,895 168,508
Accumulated amortisation and B HFERRE

impairment loss
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4A1H - 29,906 71,210 101,116
Charge for the year AR JE 5 - - 2,322 2,322
Exchange alignment EE 31, 2% . - (383) (383)
At 31 March 2019 and J#20194E3 A31H &

1 April 2019 20194F4H1H - 29,906 73,149 103,055
Charge for the year AR 5 - - 1,430 1,430
Impairment loss BE - 6,166 - 6,166
Exchange alignment HEE 502 - - 316 316
At 31 March 2020 720203 A31H - 36,072 74,895 110,967
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2020 72020%E3 8318 9,279 48,262 - 57,541
At 31 March 2019 201943 H31H 10,328 54,034 1,271 65,633

B () A RA A
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21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment assessment for technical know-how

In 2015, in order to secure a stable supply of mechanical
movements in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA,
a Swiss watch movement manufacturer, and recognised an
identified technical know-how of HK$70.816 million. As
at 31 March 2020, the technical know-how has been fully
amortised/impaired.

Impairment assessment for trademarks

Management assesses annually whether the Group's
trademarks exibit any impairment by considering the
economic benefit generated from the trademarks. The
recoverable amount is determined based on a value-in-
use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets performed by
management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budget based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2019: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 0% (2019: 0%) which was considered reasonable

with reference to subsequent sales growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 14% (2019: 10%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of trademarks to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

Impairment provision on trademarks amounted to
HK$6.166 million during the year ended 31 March 2020
(2019: Nil).
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21.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is
attributable to the watch wholesale trading operations.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-
tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
performed by management covering a five-year period.
Management determined the financial budgets based
on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are
as follows:

(@  Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the five-year budget period of 0% (2019: 0%).

(b)  Growth rate used within the five-year budget period
of 0% (2019: 0%) which does not exceed historical
growth rate.

(c)  Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 14% (2019: 10%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill (2019: Nil).

21.
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22. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. BRATEZEBHEME2EKRIIRNRGIIR
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME &

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEAT T AT T

Equity investments at fair value through — #%/3 (B0 18 oA 4 1 i R A

other comprehensive income ety B &
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value — 3F I ii/A "l A& (A TH) 5,444 14,970
On 1 April 2019, the above equity investments were 20194F4 1 H » Bl RAGHEEE A ATl
irrevocably designated at fair value through other [\] 4 R 25y 4 2~ (EL 25 2t A 22 T W 4 57
comprehensive income as the Group considers these R > T e TR AR T R AR % A L R
investments to be strategic in nature. B o
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the fair value loss HAE2020%F3 H31 H L > R HAMAH
in respect of the Group’s equity investments at fair value WA A e R ) A I e Y- (95 e HL At 4 i
through other comprehensive income recognised in other W 4 51 SR ) I 9 5 T~ (B 538 T s 4L 7 s
comprehensive income amounted to HK$9.526 million ¥9.5264A E T (20194F « AP EB B ik 4
(2019: fair value gain of HK$2.596 million). 2.5964H #57T) ©
23. INVENTORIES 23. FE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Raw materials JEA R 183,722 130,073
Work-in-progress e R 14,850 5,561
Finished goods SR 471,429 630,103
670,001 765,737
Less: Provision for inventories W AR (296,961) (205,908)
373,040 559,829
The cost of inventories sold recognised as expense 202043 H31 H IR4EFE T RERR 2y BH ¢
and included in cost of sales for continuing operations S FE AR AR SE S Y 8 6 AR I AF B
amounted to HK$529.403 during the year ended 31 March JEA By 52940316 B JC (20194F « I
2020 (2019: HK$718.595 million). 718.595/A #7T)

1 47 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24. BEREMEWRIRR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT bioki K s
Trade receivables, gross B Sy MRk > HEER 80,107 86,036
Less: Impairment loss (note (b)) W WA (M Db) (112) (494)
79,995 85,542
Other receivables HoAt ENR 35,155 38,116
Deposits s 78,912 95,148
Prepayments A A 6,030 18,762
200,092 237,568
Less: non-current portion W IR B (36,638) (55,080)
Current portion Ry 163,454 182,488

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on

B HE S H 3 M 0 kB B R R e

invoice date is as follows: T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
0-60 days 0-60K 28,692 35,027
Over 60 days 60K E 51,415 51,009
80,107 86,036
Note: Btk
(@) The Group engages designated import and export agents (@)  AIEEIEMESE E M HE D O AR A S R

JB N T Y S R A A ML R N T o R
T JREAST affe 10 AR A & A ) i [ 58 1) 3 B
SR GERIMEREH - BHE
20204F3 H31H » A 4L [ WS ARk S JRE AT
SR A R g e A o o 1 AR P &5 B 2
3459610 # 0 (20194F © #EH533.096
{6 #T) °

for the importation of products from the subsidiaries in
Hong Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The
balances due from and due to the import and export agents
are settled on a back-to-back basis, and such balances are
repayable on demand. The Group’s trade receivables and
trade payables include balances due from and due to the
import and export agents of HK$34.596 million as at 31
March 2020 (2019: HK$33.096 million).

Io9% JEE Wi R JRE AsF 3l 1 0 A QB Y A R A 5 AN4E
[ 45T L E Y 5 MR B8 5 R
60 KM f5 & H) -

Other than the balances due from the import and export
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60
days from the invoice date to its trade receivables.

B () A RA A
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24.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note : (Continued)

(b)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region, and customer type).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome,
the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
when the counter party is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovering e.g under
liquidation or entered into bankruptcy.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers for whom
there was no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, management believed that no impairment
allowance was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances were still considered fully recoverable. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

Meanwhile, the Group applied general approach to provide
for expected credit losses for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables under HKFRS9. The Group
considers the historical loss rate and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data in calculating the expected
credit loss rate. As at 31 March 2020, the Group estimated
the expected loss rate for financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables is insignificant.

Movements on the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

24.

B 5 R H AR

(b)

()

A B TP 5% i B 7 T 488 4 P A 47 3k
M7 - ARHE TRIE S - ATy
HLTR HAT AR I DU (1) n 35 b e DA %
FE R RRP A 2 A% S B 2
I TR S o AH B S ST RE i
B~ BN R BB (B DA B i i H AT
TEA BRI 2 BB S w] SRR
BRI DL LA B R AL IR DL o — g
F o EACH BT R R A B IR T L
TSR % AN RE R I W (52 5 3 A A
AR B ) BB MACIRAR & T LA -

980 0 L A Ol i ) TR S 2 5 MR B 22 42 9
SE S AT > AP A NG X2 R
B oo MIRAIEALER > S A BB IR IE /Y
o SRR AT BRI > RGRATIAR T
DA Bl ml > PRI o AR S5 1 o 9
(ELTBEAR o A% S12 B SIf 6 5% 5 R RRRe AT AT A
A o

LM [R] BR > A B [ M P — R 9 A s A
A5t YE B SR 9 T S 4 4k 4 M At
JRE AT R R ) A S T R TR e A -
AR AR A T B SR RIS R S
AR Sl T I T 2 A T R A R
4o JR20204E3 A31H » AREEAEFHES
T LA R S SR T T 650 45 1) 4 T 2 1) TR
R R A E K o

TN 5 MR S R M S B I

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

At 1 April raH1H 494 933
Reversal of impairment losses SRR R A (368) (386)
Exchange realignment e 56 230 (14) (53)
At 31 March 3A31TH 112 494

Trade and other receivables included amount due from
related companies of HK$12.193 million (2019: HK$8.451
million). Details of amounts due from related companies are
disclosed in Note 36.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. BZREMEKERR
Note : (Continued) =)
(e)  The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, (e)  HH L HAMERRK ~ Fe s K FE A R IE
deposits and prepayments are denominated in the following IRM(E I B 2FT
currencies:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars ey 81,820 89,738
Renminbi UNETL 41,612 52,930
Singapore dollars BrmEoe 23,426 24,170
Malaysia ringgit FEATY 47 30,424 28,910
Thai bahts ek 3,726 10,391
Swiss francs Fi 12 S 2,942 8,735
Others HoAthy 16,142 22,694
200,092 237,568

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25. RERRSEEVRERBITER

DEPOSITS

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT WA

Cash at banks ATHE 126,193 207,093

Cash on hand FHH A 36 7,218

Time deposits TEWIAE K 787 20,558

Cash and cash equivalents Bl B B 55 H ) 127,016 234,869

Pledged bank deposits KPR TAF K 54,579 56,649

181,595 291,518

Note: BFGE -

(@)  The above balances mainly represent cash at banks. Bank (@  FEREREH R A ARATH S o SRATIEAKEREH
balances are deposited in banks with sound credit ratings to TAEHORAE WP RAF I SRAT A7 > DL
mitigate the credit risk. TRAE R -

(b)  Bank deposits were pledged as security for the Group’s (b)  HRATAF K C AR AR SRAT LU 13 1A Y

bank borrowings in Note 31. SRATEEK o

B () A RA A
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK 25. BE&RASEEYRERRTERGE
DEPOSITS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) st : (39

() The cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank deposits (€) Bl BB S Y SRR T A7 3k i £ W

are denominated in the following currency: 250 -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT W T
Hong Kong dollars iy 36,013 103,245
Renminbi AR 5,037 18,318
Singapore dollars G IR O 36,173 47,377
Malaysia ringgit FE AP 4 35,509 43,532
Thai bahts ES S 62,833 68,564
Swiss francs i RB 3,123 1,073
Others HoAty 2,907 9,409
181,595 291,518

(d)  The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and (d) N B Sy A RS N\ B R PP [

R e 232 v IR I AN 114 A R 2 R ) I

remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules

and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the TRAIBLIR o
PRC government.
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
Number of
shares of
HK$0.1 each HK$'000
BREE
0.1 TH
BHEE BT
Authorised: RERR
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, 201844 H1H > 201943 H31H >
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 201944 H1H )202043 A31H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: CBAT AU IBA -
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, 201844 H1H > 201943 H31H
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 20194E4 71 H 202043 A31H 1,046,474,025 104,647

1 51 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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27. RESERVES 27. fRE

Property,
plant and
equipment
Share  Revaluation ~ Exchange  revaluation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve eanings Total
ik
BitvaR  EffRR  EXBk  EfEH  REEN |
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT R EWT EW B R

At1 April 2018 #2018%4A1H 1977 10,123 (470400 201,644 749,439 915,943
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (34,551) (34,551)
Other comprehensive income for the year EREh2ERE - 2,59 (6,874) 202,040 - 197,762
Dividend paid note 32) FATHLE (Hf3E32) - - - - (1988300 (198,830)
At31 March 2019 120193 A31H 1977 12,719 (54,114) 403,684 516,058 880,324
At1 April 2019 #2019%4A1H 1977 12,719 (54114) 403,684 516,058 880,324
Loss for the year EREH - - - - (402,898)  (402,89)
Other comprehensive loss for the year ERif2mEs - (9,526) (42,101) - - (51,627)
At31 March 2020 1202043131 H 1977 3,193 (96,215) 403,684 113,160 425,799
28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 28. EIEFE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax RIE R T P SO B H A A

liabilities is as follows:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT

Deferred tax assets R Aol T 38,384 49,553
Deferred tax liabilities AR SE L IE A 1 (32,933) (31,004)
Net deferred tax assets % SUE R T o Y 5,451 18,549
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28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28. REEFTEH (4D
The gross movement on the deferred tax accounts is as IRIERIEAR H RSB N -
follows:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
At 1 April WaA1H 18,549 55,407
Charged to income statement (Note 15) 1R [ it 2 (B 5515) (12,542) (12,792)
Charged to property, plant and BR AW - HRES St AN
equipment revaluation reserve - (23,458)
Exchange realignment T i, 26 4R (556) (608)
At 31 March W3H31H 5,451 18,549
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A R AL B T A N B A ) R % TR
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of FHE B B R [ A R T
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:
Deferred tax assets BEHIREE
Provision for
unrealised Other
Depreciation profitin Tax Other temporary
allowances ~ inventories losses provisions  differences Total
FETA
il fift
B Ml BEBR  JUERE  ERHEER it

HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$'000
LCHDTNR 4 AiDANE 4 DR 41D -t { D - {5

At1 April 2018 201844 1H 4168 11,946 31,642 12,408 6,041 66,205
Charged to income statement e Eir s 2121 (780) (12,552) (1,018) (1,663) (13,892)
Bxchange differences RS 2 (512) - ) (136) (653)
At31 March 2019 1201943 H31H 6,291 10,654 19,090 11,383 424 51,660
At1 April 2019 J22019%4H1H 6,291 10,654 19,090 11,383 4242 51,660
Charged to income statement D¢z (3,146) (1,260) (10,070) (279) 2,068 (12,687)
Bxchange differences R =R (17) (213) - (95) (264) (589)
At31 March 2020 12020431311 3,128 9,181 9,020 11,009 6,046 38,384
1 53 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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28. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 28. IRSEFTISHL (4D
Deferred tax assets (Continued) BAEHIREE (4)
Out of the unrecognised tax losses of HK$887.241 million JIT & e LI B o Al E SR B 2 S e R A JE S
(2019: HK$964.103 million) carried forward, an amount AR B 887 24 1MHH IC (20194F «
of HK$656.724 million (2019: HK$655.83 million) can be 964.1031f #T) » HrhikHr656. 72411 &
carried forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$230.517 JC (20194 : #¥655.83015 i JT) W] M FR I
million (2019: HK$308.273 million) will expire in the G HERMEN230.51 710 80 (20194 ¢
following years: HH5308.2734 B 0) AFLE T 51 IARR e -
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
In the first year A 43,021 43,075
In the second year B4 63,450 55,523
In the third year i34 62,731 93,619
In the fourth year H44F 29,159 72,422
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive SE5AE 04 (B H B W4F) 32,156 43,634
230,517 308,273
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of A AR — B [ A 728 A s 1800 B g 2 =)
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have 7 HLAR AT B 0 5 15 IR SRR R DL HE S
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered B 48 - SO A S 8 AR k% 45 s 1H e
probable that taxable profits will be available against TRARIE R I FE o
which the tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEERE
Revaluation
of property,
Depreciation plantand  Right-of-use
allowances equipment assets Total
EEE RRRER  KRREE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT R AT T
At 1 April 2018 12018541 1H 10,798 - - 10,798
Credited to income statement At AR % (1,100 - - (1,100)
Charged to property, plant and IBR BV - AR i
equipment revaluation reserve b - 23,458 - 23,458
Exchange differences T i 2 4 (45) - - (45)
At31 March 2019 1201943 131H 9,653 23,458 - 33,111
At 1 April 2019 201944 H1H 9,653 23,458 - 33,111
(Credited)/charged to income statement GUNVE el ErE (2,502) - 2,357 (145)
Exchange differences HE 52 @) - (26) (33)
At 31 March 2020 #20204E3 H31H 7,144 23,458 2,331 32,933
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES 29. HEEE
2020
Present
Minimum value of
lease lease
payment due liabilities
BIREERE
BRIEEERE ZHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Minimum lease payment due: FI A R ARA B AR
— within one year —14ER 191,602 177,310
— more than one year but not exceeding ~ — T4E&Z{H24E
two years 75,263 68,734
— more than two years but not exceeding ~ — 24 & {H54E A
five years 38,304 29,066
— more than five years — 54Dk 28,733 20,451
333,902 295,561
Less: future finance charge B ARAEAHS ST (38,341) N/A
Present value of lease liabilities HEAEDHE 295,561 295,561
Less: Amount due for settlement within W 1248 A B A A B
12 months (shown under current (R RE) BN 251)
liabilities) (177,310)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 121f H 1% 2| HA 4% H 444 118,251
The lease liabilities are denominated in the following HERFIEER2IT
currencies:
2020
HK$’000
BT
Hong Kong dollars I 197,119
Renminbi NG 24,244
Singapore dollars Hrmo 40,465
Malaysia ringgit LY LR 29,802
Thai bahts sk 3,931
295,561
1 55 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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29. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 29. HERE@H
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the A 42 B T 5% RGBS W18 01k 0 20 E T A T
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening B R MRS 1658 AR 201944 A1
balances at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities H 8 B A7 4 5 Bk LA e 0 B AL B A B ) AL B
relating to leases which were previously classified as B ZE M E A T R E St
operating leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information RSB 798 A B S T - 2019483
as at 31 March 2019 has not been restated. Further details A 31 H Y e R M T 41 o i 2 A
on the impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in T 75 i A YR RS 1 6 900 B S B AR U M 3
Note 3(a). 3() e
30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EERHMEMERR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Trade payables (note a) JEAT R 5 IRk (Ft ik a) 61,826 87,451
Contract liabilities (note b) HHAE (f5Eb) 451 1,058
Other payables HoA EAT R 45,741 20,838
Accruals FESF2E 64,565 118,971
Provision (note ¢) s E (ko) - 9,154
172,583 237,472
Trade payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 JEAT 52 5 MRk 2 SR - 28 R ERR A% 30
days of recognition. H A SZAS
Note: RARE -
(a)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice () FEHESEE AT I E AT B S R R OIR B
date is as follows: B
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT WHAToT
0-60 days 0-60K 22,192 45,722
Over 60 days 60K LA I 39,634 41,729
61,826 87,451
Trade and other payables include amounts due to related B8 J HC A JRE AT R B4 AT BRI W 2 | 3k
companies of HK$3.611 million (2019: HK$1.943 million). T H3.611/HH 0 (20194F « #s%51.943
Details of amounts due to related companies are disclosed TEETT) o BEAY B 2 W R B R0 4 B
in Note 36. 361 % -
(b)  Contract liabilities include short-term advances received (b) B & B A B A G S E ik R Y R A
to deliver watch products. The decrease in balance of P o AR AR B R BT A 4
contract liabilities is due to a change in the time frame for a PR IR FH] 522 AL BT 38

performance obligation to be satisfied.
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 30. BB REAMEMSIRR G
Note: (Continued) =)
(c)  The provision relates to amount for onerous contract is as () AAEEEEFSABMESEIT -
follows.
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT W AT T
At 1 April w4H1H 9,154 13,309
Utilisation EE A - (4,155)
Transfer to right-of-use assets 2 i A G 9,154) -
At 31 March A3HA31H - 9,154
(d  The trade and other payables are denominated in the () Eo KA AR B AT
following currencies:
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars ik 89,945 128,819
Renminbi NG 29,691 21,316
Singapore dollars G DIIE) O 5,525 9,331
Malaysia ringgit FEA PG REA 11,926 15,558
Thai bahts ES 8,230 21,149
Swiss francs Bty {2 BB 9,168 9,040
United states dollars ESIn 16,436 25,463
Others HoAth 1,662 6,796
172,583 237,472
31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. SRITREMER
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T WA
Bank borrowings, secured (note a) SATEK - HE (BT 5E () 651,449 688,250
Obligations under finance leases (note b) Rl & FH &K (i (b)) - 51
651,449 688,301
Current portion TRy (651,449) (688,301)
Non-current portion R k) - -
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31.  BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 31. RITRHMBER @)
(@ The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as (@ AEERTEFNAEEREROT
follows:

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Repayable on demand and within 1 year — BEZERAHE K —4F 2 A 651,449 688,250

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security

B4R SRAT LU HUAS 5 B SRAT (5 &

for the Group’s bank borrowings are: 19 B A MR (BN
2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Btk BT AT
Property, plant and equipment LERR &) 17 66,060 69,556
Investment properties Ei'd-¢7/E S 18 519,800 586,100
Pledged bank deposits AP ERATAF K 25 54,579 56,649
640,439 712,305

The bank borrowing of the Group is denominated in
Hong Kong dollars.

The bank borrowings bear interests at 1.5% to 2.0%
plus HIBOR (2019: 1.5% to 3% plus HIBOR). As at
31 March 2020, weighted average effective interest
rate per annum for bank borrowings was 3.6% (2019:
2.9%).

The banks imposed certain financial covenants over
the loan facilities granted to the Group. Prior to
the date of this report, the Group obtained a one-
off waiver from a bank from strict compliance with
certain covenant requirements of bank borrowings
amounting to HK$429.697 million.

AL B RAT R A CRHE -

SRAT B FOR ZRA A 1.5 T8 52 SR AT
F PR E o (20194F @ 1.5)8 & 3JHE N
SRATRIZENRE) - 1820204F3 H31H »
SRAT B 3K N RE T 3 B B AR R B
3.6)E (20194 : 2.9JH) -

SATEHZ T AREF R TE SE RS
FWAHHE o 2B B IIRT > AR4E
A — P ERA T HE AT — MR e B
B SR ERM G 2K - AR
SHAHK$429.69717 # ©
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31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)) 31. RITRHEMER A
(b) The obligations under finance leases are payable as (b) BEHEERENREERBEROT :
follows:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within 1 year 152N - 57
Future finance charges on finance lease il % HH B i1 A< 2 B 5 S A - (6)
Present value of finance lease liabilities il % fHL 5 & & i 3 (0 - 51
The present value of finance lease liabilities as at 31 201943 A31H » A SRR AR
March 2019 is repayment within one year. {EZHR AR R fE I
The carrying amount of obligations under finance il L A 97 ) R TR (L DRI 3 7
leases is denominated in Singapore dollars. i
32. DIVIDEND 32. BRE
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Special, paid of Nil (2019: HK$0.19) 20204 SEFFHICE (2019 - EIREE
per ordinary share 13 /B IR HK$0.19) - 198,830
The directors did not recommend any interim or final HEGANEREIRBE20204F3 031 H K
dividends in respect of the years ended 31 March 2020 201943 431 H IR R P ECR B RS -
and 2019.
A conditional special distribution in cash of HK$0.19 HR G A20184F1 H 23 H gk th B HR 58 26755
dollar per share was proposed by the Board on 23 January AR A A P A0 UR A R0 B 421 9%
2018 relating to the disposal of the disposal group and fily > 3 E A 2018454 H 19 H G BERAERI R &
was approved by the shareholders in the special general IR A HE o R A 20 IR AR U
meeting on 19 April 2018. The special distribution, 198.831A B ICE20184F6 H 14 H CIRAT ©
amounting to HK$198.83 million, had been paid on 14
June 2018.
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33. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 33. RIEEEEL HEXE

On 26 January 2018, the Group entered into a share 201841 426 H » AHE [ BL— {0 B Wy
purchase agreement with a related party for disposal of AT OL B SRk ot HC IR BT S 1O B
shares in the subsidiaries of the Group engaged in the Al (T B RIE ) » AR B 5 W M 44R T (v]
optical retail and wholesale business (the “Disposal”) at a TE& T %) - i EFEIHER20184F3H
consideration of HK$400 million, subject to adjustments. 22 H ) R A g K o B FIHBER O
The Disposal was communicated to shareholders on 20184F4 H19 HBAT Z AR A BRI R &
22 March 2018 through a circular. The Disposal was R A E o B HIHT R 2018461
subsequently approved by the shareholders in the special H5ERL ©

general meeting on 19 April 2018. The completion of the
Disposal took place on 1 June 2018.

The net assets disposed of and the resulting gain on R E KOS ER o A
disposal of HK$111.766 million is summated as follows: 111.7664HE T > FEFWT -
2019
HK$’000
AT T
Property, plant and equipment ERR S 70,728
Prepaid lease premium TEASHAH 5 b A 13,220
Other non-current assets Hofth IF i A 11,590
Inventories PEacy 216,403
Trade and other receivables B 5 B H Al R R 165,370
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B &5 EY 59,987
Trade and other payables 5.5 B H AR HRR (211,538)
Amount due to the Group JREAST A £ ] 4 I (403,827)
Other non-current liabilities HoAth IR ) B 1 (50,832)
Net assets disposed HEEETRE (128,899)
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33. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 33. RIEEEER HEEE G

(Continued)
2019
HK$’000
AT
Gain on disposal HEXEK K E
Consideration 1 (3,827)
Net assets disposed B A T 128,899
Release of cumulative exchange reserve H B 1% T S
on disposal 14,978
Professional fees and taxes on disposal HUEE R T ST A (28,284)
111,766
Satisified by: A
— Cash — Bl 400,000
— Waiver of intercompany debts — oy Al B F (403,827)
(3,827)
An analysis of net inflow of bank balances and cash in A7 B 65 S 0 BRAT & B S B WA T A
respect of the Disposal is as follows: ST
2019
HK$'000
AT
Cash consideration W RAE 400,000
Cash and bank disposed of 2B R B 4 MERAT A B (59,987)
Net inflow of bank balances and cash in respect A B B A B SRAT A BR
of the disposal group BB AT 340,013
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33. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS/DISPOSAL OF BUSINESS 33. RIEEEE HEEE G

(Continued)
The financial performance and cash flows information BAE2018455 431 HILmfE A - diE£E
presented are for the two months ended 31 May 2018. BB R B R B RSN
Two months
ended
31 May 2018
#WE20184F
5H31H
1218 A
HK$'000
AT T
Revenue A 218,958
Other losses HAth 18 (2,004)
Other income HoAtnlse A 5,738
Expenses S (222,117)
Profit before tax BRBL AT F 575
Income tax expense BB i (2,281)
Loss from discontinued operations KRILEEXBHER (1,706)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, HH B A B SR A R B AR i AR
net of tax 111,766
Profit for the period AR 110,060
Release of exchange reserve relating to H 11 S5 R S0 Aot
discontinued operations (14,978)
Total comprehensive income from discontinued =~ &I &EEKNZENESEE
operations 95,082
Two months
ended
31 May 2018
#E2018%F
5H31H
1218 A
HK$’000
AT
Net cash outflow from operating activities T ) P B (51,380)
Net cash outflow from investing activities P ) i ) B A v (1,576)
Net cash outflow from financing activities il O ) O P B v (31,410)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl S EY) D 15 (84,366)
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34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. HRERERERME
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash (@ BRAESHAIBEREZETHMERS
generated from operations: FEREER
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt BT AT
Loss before tax from B BT 15 B AT e 18
— Continuing operations — A S (381,472) (115,475)
— Discontinued operations — LB TS 33 - 575
Gain on disposal of discontinued i # &8 3B BB i
operations before tax W 4s - 124,043
(Loss)/profit before tax including ~ EL& £ 1148 2575 1) B B
discontinued operations AT Uk548) s F| (381,472) 9,143
Adjustments for Bk
Depreciation of: e -
— Property, plant and equipment  — 43 ~ #25 JGRAM 33,547 42,533
— Right-of-use assets — IR 212,221 -
Amortisation of: ey -
— Intangible assets — I 1,430 2,322
— Prepaid lease premium — TEATH & H - 2,796
(Gain)/loss on disposal B  HRAs E
of property, plant and (APl 7!
equipment 40) 3,841
Fair value change of investment — #& 20T (EHAEB)
properties 66,300 -
Provision/(write back of R ()
provision) for inventories 91,004 (2,596)
Inventory written off B HUIR 194 -
Reversal of impairment of trade BREARME M ]
receivables (368) (386)
Impairment loss of: A
— Property, plant and BL/ERR YT
equipment 5,842 4,251
— Right-of-use assets — (G E 76,918 -
— Intangible assets — I G 6,166 -
Utilisation of provision for AT A A ]
onerous contracts - (4,155)
Interest income FE WA (836) (1,096)
Finance costs S5 AR 50,607 25,360
Dividend income BB A 10 (1,014) (2,798)
Gain on disposal of H A A L S I AR
discontinued operations - (124,043)
Operating profit/(loss) before o 1 S T 1Y
working capital changes psinki| VAl 7is) 160,499 (44,828)
Decrease in inventories fF & 85,629 98,429
Decrease in trade and other Z 5 B H A RENCIR R
receivables b 30,745 156,224
Decrease in trade and other B T T FAth EAT AR ek D
payables (48,772) (82,012)
Cash generated from operations NGB T 228,101 127,813
1 63 STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2020



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. ZEBERERMT )

(Continued)

METHELNEBSD

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

A H B 25 T 7 AF B Fl T B AR Y
B I il T ) B AR RS S B )

Analysis of liabilities arising from financing activities
and the movements in liabilities arising from

(9]

financing activities for each of the years presented. Br
Bank and other
Lease liabilities borrowings Total
HESE RITRELEN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T VAT T VAT T
1 April 2018 JA201844 1 H - 928,044 928,044
Cash flows from continuing operations 4/ M3 & i & - (238,830) (238,830)
Exchange differences T 5t 2% % - (913) (913)
31 March 2019 #20194E3 31 H - 688,301 688,301
1 April 2019 JA201944 1 H - 688,301 688,301
Impact on application of HKFRS 16 B A0 s B )
EAYiva Z 456,646 (51) 456,595
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 201944 71 B iRAHE 456,646 688,250 1,144,896
Cash flows Bagin g (192,316) (36,801) (229,117)
Non-cash flows FB B E 31,079 - 31,079
Exchange differences e 50724 152 - 152
31 March 2020 J#20204E3 31 H 295,561 651,449 947,010

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for

leases comprise the following:

(0 HERESRHAH

MEHERERP LTSRN

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Within operating cash flows R TR B BB N 42,901 289,582
Within financing cash flows A RES E B TR A 192,316 58
235,217 289,640

OB () A RA TR
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34. CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW INFORMATION 34. HEBRESHRERMFT )

(Continued)
(¢) Total cash outflow for leases (Continued) (0 HEBESREMAIEG)
These amounts relate to the following: EEZ IR
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Lease rental paid AT 4 235,217 289,640
35. COMMITMENTS 35. A
(@ Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group (@) THHNMEEHES (REEELE
is the lessee) AA)
As at 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease R20194E3 A31H » /] $hs 482 1
payments under non-cancellable operating lease are B R AR E AT ZamsEm |
repayable as follows:
2019
HK$’000
AT
Commitments for minimum lease payments in <4 B /£ R AT S8 & SEA0 6 R i A2k
relation to non-cancellable operating leases FARREA TR G 485U T
are payable as follows:
Not later than one year 14 1R 224,862
Later than one year but not later than five years 1 fZ{H54 4 213,022
Later than five years 54ELLE 1,823
439,707
The Group leases certain stores under non- ARSI T 5 AR B2 2 % 548 0 B
cancellable operating leases expiring within 2 to AT Y AR AT AL R o %5
5 years. The leases have varying terms, escalation FECA AR ~ 3R ek i 29
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of FELAER o 5T 0% il 0 B SR AL A )9
the leases are renegotiated. Lease payments are based 2 e I ARt A e i B R A 4 (DA
on the higher of a minimum guaranteed rent and a R A HE) ST o AHITRS RO A R
sales level based rent. The commitments disclosed PEA LA AR RS B ICT-REE 1 7] B
above do not include variable rentals determined e

based on sales level.
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35. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 35. AE )
(b) Non-cancellable operating leases (where the Group by FTHAHENEXHE(REEERY
is the lessor) HA)
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of T B AT 08 SRk e A
certain land and buildings are as follows: WA SRR T
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Investment properties REMHE
Commitments for minimum lease ASE BT A TG S A N
payments receivable in relation to 18 A 26 e ALK B L 45 AL A
non-cancellable operating leases LU
are payable as follows: 7,374 10,422
Not later than one year T4ER 1,815 10,074
Later than one year but not later than ~ T4EAZ{H54E A
five years 9,189 20,496
Properties L/ES
Commitments for minimum lease ASEE BT A AT G AT N
payments receivable in relation 118 A A SR AL e i 43 FH FH 46
to non-cancellable subleases of gy
operating leases are payable as
follows:
Not later than one year 14N 1,241 2,012
Later than one year but not later than  T4EZ{H54
five years 662 722
1,903 2,734
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36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The ultimate shareholder of the Company is Mr. Chumphol
Kanjanapas (aka Joseph C. C. Wong).

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, Yee Hing
Company Limited held 855,200 shares of the Company
through its subsidiary Active Lights Company Limited. 55%
of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company
Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the
trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust, therefore deemed to be
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the
Trust’s interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

Apart of elsewhere disclosed in the financial
statements, the following is a summary of the
significant related party transactions carried out in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The related
parties are entities which have directors in common
with the Company.

(i) Provision of services to related companies

36.

BFEBALXRS

AN T 2 A RO A S

x20204F3 A31H 201943 A31H » %
LAY BR 2% ) 8 388 L J8S 2> W] Active Lights
Company Limited$§H 4222 7 855,200/ /1
%y = Klayze Holdings Limited PAE 55— E Y
WHEF(MEED) ZZ A AREA
PR F] 2 B8 AT I Z 55 % Mt o B
%‘Jiﬁ'aii%{ééﬁzfﬁﬁ/\ HCREAR F 8
5 A FEBLA BR A W) 2 HE 45 1 B 45 22 )
855,200}315%53\1‘%@ °

(@ HEEBATETZEARS

W B 5 i 3 HAR R 23 B4 g5 5 - R 3
T 7 B T BLAT R e N - 22 TR BT HEA T Y
HRZGHME > ZEZGIRALE
H WS B P T o B A LR R LA
AT LR A

() AL A IR T

2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA

Building management service ES S LLIONiFE Y
income (note a) 2,460 2,340
Shared service income (note b) I RFS WA (Ft5Eb) 20,400 22,824
Rental income (note c) A A () 5,522 5,633
Royalty income (note d) FERFREE O (K 3Ed) 778 1,088
29,160 31,885

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Significant transactions with related parties

(Continued)

(i) Provision of services to related companies
(Continued)

Note:

(a)

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
entered into a renewal agreement with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Yee Hing Company, for the provision of the
following services for the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 March 2022 (2019: T April 2016 to
31 March 2019):

(@)  contract administration with respect to
contracts entered into between MPIL
and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(c)  management of the property manager of
Stelux House; and

(d) other miscellaneous administrative
services.

The fee for the provision of the above
services was agreed at HK$205,000 (2019:
HK$195,000) per calendar month during the
agreement period.

The Group provided administrative services
to a related company which has directors
in common with the Group. Shared service
income was charged at cost basis allocated
based on the counterparties’ usage of each
type of service, taking into account factors
such as headcount and the number of shops.

The Group provided leasing services to related
parties which have directors in common with
the Group. Rental income was charged to
related parties based on the occupied area
ratio times total actual costs incurred.

The Group provided licensing service to
related parties which have directors in
common with the Group. Royalty income was
charged at 10% of the amount invoiced by
suppliers or vendors of the counterparties.

36.

BRBALRS (4

(@

ERBBATETZEARS (#)

(1)

11 Bl 2 I P IR 7 (7))

&

2 AJE 1 A O N ) B 3 L
S NCINE L E S <y
A BRZAE (TA#E]) 542019
AE4H1THE20224E3H31H
) TR DA ROBS ST 57 ok
(2019 : H120164F4A1HE
20194E3 H31H) =

(@)  WHFEBLES = ) RIFAT
S AR Z A RTT
s

b)) WEMAEBHLHEE
E

(0 EHELHESOY
EEHAT s K

(d)  HABATELRFS o

ARG Wk AR A > Rt
IR 5 0 B 2 R T
H#%205,0000C (2019 ¢ i
#195,0007T) °

AL [ 1] BELAS A 1 A 3 1)
A B N R A B
B o L2 B B AR AR R
58 5y 4y 25 1R 1) 1 A
H A% & B TN BORIE i #
4 R R AR

AR [ 1) LA A P A 3L 1)
) N N
B o < AR 55 A Hb 1 75
ofe LI [ 7 AR Y BT R AR AR

1) [ i A A
AR [ 1) LA A P A 3L 1)

10 BRI N - B A3 R
B o FF HEGE 2R A R A1
JRE 7 B 22 B 3 2 A3 T A
BB SHEE R 10% W -
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. HAERABALRZS ()
(@) Significant transactions with related parties (@ HAEBRBAIETZEARS #)
(Continued)

(if)  Purchases of services from related parties (i) [ BN LA B R
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T fiokix s
Rental expenses (note a) 4 3 (Mt Ea) 16,775 18,742
Lease management expenses (note b) FHEE P S (D) 600 600
17,375 19,342

Note: FffzE: -

(@ During the year, certain subsidiaries of the @ N Z’—‘%@%?Kﬁ%@ﬂ
Group entered into tenancy agreements with BT 91 A5 B i A L AT ST AL
the following related parties for office premises bk > DAFH AW % JE
shops, warehouses, showroom and car-parking fﬁ ~ BE - B E K
spaces: fir

2020 2019

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT T

MPIL EEE 8,245 11,259
Other related parties HoA A B AL 8,530 7,483
16,775 18,742

(b) A related company provided lease management (b)  —FKA B A ) A 4 ]
services to the Group. The fee for the provision PR 5 A B BS - 4RI R% 4%
of such services was charged at pre-determined 5 1) 2 T % Tih e 0 1A 4
amount during the agreement period. FEE W IO -

(b) Balances with related parties (b) HEEBEBALZENEE
The balances arising from service income and rental R 5 WS B L 4 5 8 AR ) AR S i
expenses are as follows: L
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T WA
Trade and other receivables (Note 24) & 5 I H At REY IR 2K (Fft3124) 12,193 8,451
Trade and other payables (Note 30) B 5 K HC At A AR (B 3E3.0) 3,611) (1,943)
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BEEALRE (H)
(b) Balances with related parties (Continued) (b) EEEEEEAL BN GD
The balances due from/to related companies are R g e JREAST IRt 2 ) [ ) K T % S
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. - B R R AR -
The related companies are entities which have R M 2 wl f B AR S F A LR S 2
directors in common with the Group. i o
() Key management compensation (0 FEEEEHRM
2020 2019
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Salaries and other short-term i P HoAt A 1 i B A A
employee benefits 6,625 8,403
Other long-term benefits oAt = 45 A 141 146
6,766 8,549
37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. BARAE
In April 2018, a third party filed a legal claim against one R2018%E4 ] - — L% = Jr m AL
of the subsidiaries (the “Subsidiary”) of the Group for e — [T B 2 =] (TR% B A /1)
outstanding management service fees plus interest and R AR B M 5 2 D ) ) A o
surcharges amounting to THB143.67 million. Subsequently RMEFRBR > W REH143.6710 8
on 31 January 2020, both parties mutually settled the JC o HARTR20204F1 31 H > BJ5iE
dispute while the Subsidiary agreed to pay THB18.45 LR ek > 5% BB 2 W IR) 2 1 2 =
million (equivalent to approximately HK$4.428 million) to T5 AT B8R 8.454E B T (T A A
the third party, who agreed not to pursue the case further. 4.428fFETT) o w5 =T7 IR A

— BT
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38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 38. AREEEGBRFAFEEDE
COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company RAEEEER
2020 2019
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
R 5T BT T AT T
ASSETS 'E
Non-current assets FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary Wi 2 W % 39 - -
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE VA B Jog 2 v R I a 766,848 766,848
Trade and other receivables & oy B HoAh RE R K 142 176
Cash and cash equivalents e M5 EY) 2,304 2,320
769,294 769,344
Total assets EERE 769,294 769,344
EQUITY B
Share capital A 104,647 104,647
Reserves ot b 34,714 34,714
139,361 139,361
Total equity A
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B4 ) B HCA A5 Rk 2,017 2,024
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST Bt JoS 2 W) R I a 627,916 627,959
629,933 629,983
Total liabilities BERHE 629,933 629,983
Total equity and liabilities ERRAGEHEE 769,294 769,344
Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
g B s %
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

I RATEA TTEHF L P A

FHEIE20204E6 1 26 H i 2B A\ 7
GEAMEE -

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
board of directors on 26 June 2020 and was signed on its
behalf.
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g s b

38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF THE 38. AAIEEAGBRREEEHR D

COMPANY (Continued)
Note: BT -
(@)  The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, (@) M S AT B 2 1 04 R IE A SRR AT - R
interest-free and repayable on demand. BT -
(b)  Reserve movements of the Company (b) A\ EIfkfh s E
Share Retained
Premium profits Total
[N -
e 2F FoEc)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT IT WA AT
At 1 April 2018 20184 H1H 1,977 231,657 233,634
Loss for the year R Zi - (90) (90)
Dividend paid (note 32) EAT B E (BFaE32) - (198,830) (198,830)
At 31 March 2019 A20194E3 31 H 1,977 32,737 34,714
At 1 April 2019 20194 H1H 1,977 32,737 34,714
Loss for the year KGR i - - -
At 31 March 2020 7202043 A31H 1,977 32,737 34,714

B () A RA A
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A RS R R B o

S
39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. XEMBAT

The list of principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 and 31 BAE2020%F 201943 H31H » LEMHE

173

March 2019: ACIE U
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERTRA SEMMEEENEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value
EAE IREH E®  SRER 2020 2019
Investment}% &
Stelux Holdings International Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited KR LR actidl 157
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HK$1 100 100
FOLT S GRR) A RA R i BEER AP
Stelux Investments and Properties British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited PR LR vl EST
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
SRR SR 1370
Property#) %
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
il E NG Eit UESIE LA b
Fulani Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
ik UESIEc LV
STL Properties Limited (formerly Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
known as Optical 88 Properties i UESI8 idiabn
Limited)
ERMEARA T (45 - 188
YRARAR)
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited ik IESI8< 1007
Stelux Properties Agency Limited Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
Bt A A ik management ickiab
P R
Stelux Properties Limited Hong Kong Property management 500 HK$100 100 100
LEGRAR i IES #1 R 1007E

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. EEMEBAT )
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERTRA SEFERENE L
operation Principal activities Number Value
GV TERR B®  SKEE 2020 2019
Retailing and trading
TERES
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
o e 6 A R 2 ik HHEE #1007
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
5 T HHEEE 187
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited 7 ST TR
I T R A7 2 5,0007
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S§1 100 100
Hrinsg BT s o
City Chain (Thailand) Company Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited 3! sk % 10045k
210,000 Baht100
10045k
Pronto Watch S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt gk 1,000%i £
W
Solvil et Titus S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt K7 1,000 1:
s
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited BiS licensing (ES
T ERFEA R
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HK$1 100 100
B gl YA il management A b
SR
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
TSR A IR ] i B8 0T

OB () A RA TR
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. FEMBAR G
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERTRE EEfEEENE AL
operation Principal activities Number Value
EaA IEXH BE  SREE 2020 2019
Retailing and trading (Continued)
FELES (#)
Thong Tai Watch Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Watch distribution 2,000 HK$1,000 100 100
R AR it Bk 9 J#1,0007C
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S§1 100 100
Limited Hrns st HmseRs T
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
5% N ] 148
Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited Thailand Watch retailing and 20,000 Baht100 100 100
&M distribution 100%5k
BT E R
Universal Geneve S.A. Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 100 100
fiit: management and 1,000% 1
distribution EB
Bk LS E T R0
Catena S.A Switzerland manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100 1000
Bt movements it
TFREORER EB
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39.

40.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39.

FENBAR )

Percentage of equity

Place of incorporation/ attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital SEFMERENEDL
L B33 HREER 2020 2019
Retailing and trading (Continued)
TERESZ (B
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) The PRC (foreign-invested Watch retailing, trading ~ HK$224,900,000 100 100
Trading Limited commercial enterprise) and related services  i##224,900,0007C
Bt (5 AR L/ HEKEE MR BE TS AR
[GESEd ek
Stelux Thong Sia (Beijing) Trading ~ The PRC (foreign-invested Watch retailing, trading ~ US$20,500,000 - 100
Limited ¢ commercial enterprise) and related services 20,500,000 ¢
B L) R AR AR /R RE (SN HIHREE AR
[GESteES) HIBE RS
Stelux Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading The PRC (foreign-invested Watch retailing, trading ~ US$16,180,000 100 100
Limited commercial enterprise) and related services 16,180,000 1T
BN (L1 AR A /R RE (S BTS2 R
[GESGE il e
Baoqing (Chongging) Trading The PRC (foreign-invested Watch retailing, trading ~ HK$51,000,000 100 100

Limited
B (EE HEARAH

commercial enterprise)
/KR M
FiE R

a. Non-redeemable preference shares

and related services
B EE - Bk
B

b. 100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a

right to purchase 12% of equity interest
c. Deregistered on 234 December 2019

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

40.

After the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the globe. The Group
is paying close attention to the development of, and the
disruption to business and economic activities caused
by, the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on
the financial position, cash flows and operating results of
the Group. Given the dynamic nature of the COVID-19
outbreak, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of its impact on the Group’s financial position,
cash flows and operating results at the date on which these
financial statements are authorised for issue.

JE#£51,000,0007C

a AN AT [

b 100%HE 3 145 8 8 % A [ LA B A 58 HERE
HH 1 2% B HE

c 20194812 23 H 18

BEMBRSEH

15202 04411 38 87 B e IR 2 2 1 2 4%
A RR A b L AR I A A T — AR 4 T By A 4
il Tt o A< B — B U B 1 5 B e R
TR AT 1) 3% % DA S JFC 3 S 5 A0 A8 3 0 ) o
BT S Sl S AR SR L
B U B AN KL SRR B o R R
ARG B 21 B RE A - AR A A IS A S
R H o B DL BETE T HE A 42 1 B RS
IRV > Bl it i AR SRR o

B () A RA A
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD
s EMEFRTE
As at 31 March 2020 2202043 31 H

Attributable
interest of
Location Lot Number Type Lease term the Group

1 B 1 BSRE BE b AEMELER

Hong Kong
&

Shop 5 On Ground Floor 6817 Commercial Medium 100%
Chungking Mansion LES H

Nos.36-44 Nathan Road

Kowloon, Hong Kong

s LRSI BUE 3 6-445%

HEER BT 5 e

Macau

B

Em Macau 712 Commercial Medium 100%
Rua de S.Domingos N.21-A [GES i

TR > A A

21-A%E

Em Macau 12125-GR/C Commercial Medium 100%
Estrada da Areia Preta [ES Hh

N.5, Kei Kuan Bairro

(Bloco TA Bloco 6)

Res-do-Chao G

WM BRI IES9E

7 TR (B — e 22 55 75 A8

i Gz

Em Macau 10253-FR/C & GR/C Commercial Medium 100%
Rua da Palha N. 20, [HES i

Beco da Palha N. 1-A

San Vo Res-do-Chao F and G

P > B S #2057

iz (b [E) 1-AE

BT AN B 1l e R G
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)

RE - EREARARE ((BE HEREBKRE )

ESG STRATEGY AND REPORTING

This Report is prepared in accordance with the “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” of
Appendices 14 and 27 respectively of the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. This Report covers reporting on environmental, social and
corporate governance (“ESG”) issues of the Group’s businesses
comprising of retail and wholesale trading of watches, and
watch supply chain management of its house brands and where
meaningful provides y-o-y comparisons.

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting. The Board is further
responsible for evaluating and determining ESG related risks and
ensuring that effective ESG risk management and internal controls
are implemented. Management has provided confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

RS @R EARKERER

AR A TR AT U b TR R B Bk (A S A IR
SR B (A SRR ) M Bk — 1B BRI - A
B RERBEIRT) AR R - AHCE NN A EE
ASEE T (AT E LM BER Y - UK
2% i W) S o (1L T R ) O BRBE - AL Redl
SEAA (TESG) HH. » 7R8I 91 DL T f2 b 47
FELHLER o

AR AR R AL B IR RS
Je MESORIE 2T - I8 ARG SR E A B R
B A BRI 2 Ja B o SO A A 2 3R
S5~ AhE BRI AR B KA AR B R A o A R
J& O ] 3 2 G i el S R AL AR

B () A RA A
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R - EREARARE ((BE HEREBHRE)D

Stelux has a long business history in the watch industry. We own
CITY CHAIN, a leading retailer, and also Swiss watch brand,
SOLVIL et TITUS. Stelux is also the sole distributor for “SEIKO”
watches and clocks and “GRAND SEIKO” watches in Hong
Kong, Macau, Singapore, Malaysia and Brunei.

Stelux’ ethos is to engage and work with our stakeholders in a
responsible, fair and honest way. We strive to:

J provide high quality products and services of best value to
our customers;

J grow, respect and reward our employees as they develop
together with us;

. serve and contribute within our communities; and

e create and safeguard shareholders’ value in a sustainable
manner.

Our management approach and the corresponding strategies
adopted for ESG issues are founded on the above principles.
Appropriate systems, SOPs and internal controls are built
upon these core foundations to achieve the Group’s business
objectives.

We strive for our employees to work within a culture where
respect for others is encouraged, rewards are fair and the
workplace is safe and conducive, allowing for an optimal
environment to engage with and deliver to our stakeholders and
others in general. The Group’s vendors and suppliers are a key
part of the success equation as we work with them to source,
produce and deliver high quality products to our customers.
Procedures are in place to ensure that we partner vendors and
suppliers who understand our values and expectations. Our
customers are pivotal and without their support and custom,
delivery of quality products and services cannot be achieved.
Finally, our shareholders look for sustainable performance
delivered within the parameters of good corporate governance,
environmental awareness and community engagement.

Our stakeholders each interacting with and supporting the other
work together to facilitate the Group’s objectives, and its success.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

B B A IR A IR S o A4 [
NBEAT TR R ) > — ] RS A A T 5 IR
A B b 85k W SOLVIL et TITUS © EGIR A
¥ L] % [GRAND SEIKO %5 &% i & itk ~ WY ~
SN~ B A G R R OO ) R RSB T o

TR AR DL - AT Rl E O AR gf
SRERE NS 1E o AREEE

o RBUE SRR A E SRS

o RELNFE —[FBEMNE THEBNE - ZF
W RS

o e - B &

o FRETMCARANE A - REEBOR R W

32
fmi. °©

AR ARYE DA _E 09 IR AT A B R - AL e R
0 LT B S AR B SR > Sl R A AR O
BB A AR - MEUENE SERR I M R AR R A
i > UEECA S B 205 FL AR o

AR T B 7 e i AR S A A 3 S0~ SRR
F1 S8 i ) 2 L% 22 2 ELRE A A TARZE [ > [R] Bg
i N S A AR BN 4R PR A & PR BR BT - A 4R
VBB SRR 7 % M 7 S A A T PR AR
BRI ISR O T R - IS TS AR S I Y
HEITHR o AT CHETE TR - LIRS
G 5 A 10 R e B A 7 TR 40 TR AR A T Y
EME  AEBPFEF IR+ EE  HRZE
J5 SRR - AR e 0 {0 40 0 22 AR 3L R
AMRES BB 5 dedR > ASSR BN B T 1R 2 3L
RAF AR SEEG - BRIFE I T SA [ 2 B4 ] ey 3y AR
LR ANE AT -
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (“ESG Report”)
RIE - HERERRE (RR - dEREB/HED

Environmental
Aspect A1: Emissions
General Disclosure

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste

KPI' AT.1 to KPI A1.6 are not applicable. The nature of
the Group’s products, namely watches, are such that
emissions discharged during the production process are
not material. Moreover, the Group buys complete watches
from third party brands and also outsources the production
of its house brand products to third party manufacturers.
Emissions discharged from the services the Group provides
are also not material.

There are no relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land,
and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that
the Group has to comply with.

A BER T it AR ~ 7]k K £ i
HE)T ~ R E R 19 A B
H s KRBT BTN EA R BN %
1 R AR Vg B

B BRI AT B B S AR AT 61
ANTE Y o AERH E i (RP 8 k) 764 i e b
(1935 Qe PE R A BT o 340 - AL 1 5
=T i R O G R A B o IHE K
JRLE il ) AR TP AR 5 = Oy T
ASSE BB S T 5 | B 75 G PR OIR A e

AR A0 A 32 [ ZE R ST 1) A7 I B SR D L 3 SR
Bemt ~ K B R PETS - A E O
TENY 9 7 A A IO AR BRI T SR R AR SR
[EE N Z X

B () A RA A
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources
General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials

The Group has policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials are based
on 3R’s — reduce, reuse or recycle whenever feasible or
practical.

KPI'A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility)

Since the Group buys complete watches from third party
brands and also outsources the production of its house
brand products to third party manufacturers, direct energy
consumption figures are not available. The Group's indirect
energy consumption for electricity for shops, offices and
warehouses is not material.

KPI' A2.2

Water consumption is not material in the production of the
Group’s house brand products or the services it provides.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

EEA2 : ERER
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A B IR (BLAEREIR ~ K B HAt bR
R

AR A R R (LR RE TR~ K
b JEUE AR B BSR T HE A AE W AT DU T Y 3R
PRIRIEHINI E » 437l 2% 38 i (Reduce) ~
FIH (Reuse) XA E{H T (Recycle) ©

BRSAUR IRA2 1

BRI 7 1 B I SRR RE VR (07
SRE) BBFE R (DL T FORS D) B (i
HERRA - BHEBUEFH)

7 A AR B ) 25 = T it A B R ) S AR
FE il o 0N F S AR R i 9 REAE TR AR
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RE - EREARARE ((BE HEREBKRE )

KPI'A2.3

The Group has numerous energy efficiency initiatives
currently in place. These include the following:—

. Store fixtures and fittings are designed to be reused.
Percentage of reuse ranges between 80% to 90%
with a life expectancy of between 5 to 7 years.
Natural materials like metal, wood and glass that
are easier to reuse and recycle are the main building
materials utilised in our store fit out and these
materials constitute between 80% to 90% of store
fixtures and fittings.

e Office equipment are switched off or on electricity
saving mode at the end of the work day.

e Office air conditioning and lights are switched off
when not in use.

. Office lighting are switched off during lunch.

. Energy saving lighting is used in most of our offices,
stores and warehouses.

J Paperless meetings are encouraged. For example,
the Company’s board meetings are paperless and
directors are assigned ipads. When printing is
necessary use of double sided printing is encouraged
and single sided printed paper is reused.

. Communal use of office stationary, like staplers,
erasers, hole punchers, calculators instead of
assigning one unit to each employee.

e Ordering of office stationary, including paper,
letterheads and name cards are centralised for better
monitoring and control.

] Pre-approval is required for all staff air travel and
staff are encouraged to use teleconferencing, video
conferencing or other virtual meeting tools, like
zoom, Microsoft Teams, Skype, FaceTime, WhatsApp
or WeChat to conduct meetings to reduce travelling.
Our offices in different regions are supported and
linked by video conferencing facilities.

BSE AR IZA2.3

A5 B A O HEAT 2 THAE VR 0 T AL AR R
# o

o HFJEHFIMBEE MM o SHHERMN
H LA F80%ZE90% - THMIFMN
P57 o 15 T AR ER 5 1)
GG~ AWM KIS RIRM AL TG A4E
Bl B 0 - R AR > 5 B A
HT80% ZE90% MY 2 B A Ml th i% %% K
SRR o

o BERIELN R A AR Bl 4 I L B
B )i 2= E R

o TR/ I B 4 R AN ] AR A o

o FHUNMBIL -

o TERERIIEAE G P R A A
AEMRIIZE A -

o BUBMEARRAA - Bl AL A9
SRR AR -
SriRipad o 7 B HIEIRE - AR
PO ) 5 P S 6 065 o

o AgmEHE THIRSCE > Mk > 8
JE) B TR E FETH % - BB - 4T4L
W RS SO, -

o BRI AESCH (AR - F
BRRR) > IR -

o A B LR 22 AR SR T S AL
iR i1 N SN N5 = I e T
gk R eRsSE R Kk
A (B4 : zoom ~ Microsoft Teams *
Skype * FaceTime * WhatsAppik
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KPI' A2.4

Water consumption is not material in the production of the
Group’s house brand products or the services it provides.

KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material

Packaging that the Group uses include bags and watch
boxes, made from paper, plastic or metal and was not
material in FY19/20.

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

General Disclosure

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on
the environment and natural resources

The Group’s policies are based on 3R’s — reduce, reuse or
recycle whenever feasible or practical.

KPI'A3.1

Policies are adopted to enable the manufacture of house
brand watches to meet higher European standards like
CE, RoHS and REACH to the extent possible, even though
these standards are not mandatory in Asia, our primary and
major market. More information on these standards can be
found on the following links:—

CE-European Conformity

https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market/ce-marking_en

RoHS - Restriction on Hazardous Substances

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/waste/rohs_eee/index_
en.htm

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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B AR TEA2 .4
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CE-European Conformity (BM & #&2 &)

https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market/
ce-marking_en

RoHS - Restriction on Hazardous

Substances (B EH Y ERFIES)

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/waste/
rohs_eee/index_en.htm
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https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market/ce-marking_en
https://ec.europa.eu/growth/single-market/ce-marking_en
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/waste/rohs_eee/index_en.htm
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REACH - Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and
Restriction of Chemicals

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/chemicals/reach/reach_
en.htm

For details on managing these policies, please see “Aspect
B5 Supply Chain Management” on page 188 to 189.

Social

Employment and Labour Practices
Aspect B1: Employment

General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare

The Group has established employment policies and
guidelines that are compliant with applicable local
employment and labour legislation, regulations and
practices.

These policies and guidelines are:—
Recruitment and Promotion

1. We are an equal opportunities employer. We
promote and adopt a policy of equal opportunities
to eliminate discrimination on the basis of gender,
family status and disability amongst others, in
employment and the workplace. For example, City
Chain Hong Kong, employs persons with disabilities
as watch technicians.

2. We hire and promote based on merit.
3. We hire and promote those who share our values and

work ethics; and those who demonstrate initiative,
responsibility and integrity.

REACH - Registration, Evaluation,
Authorization and Restriction of Chemicals

(LR ~ FFfh ~ RENMPREDER)

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/chemicals/
reach/reach_en.htm
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Compensation

1. Remuneration and benefits are benchmarked against
prevailing local industry norms and commensurate
with experience and qualifications.

2. For certain employee categories, performance
bonuses and commission schemes are adopted as
part of remuneration packages to incentivise.

Dismissal

This is based on employment policies and guidelines that
are compliant with applicable local employment and
labour legislation, regulations and practices.

Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare

Working hours, rest periods, and other benefits and welfare
are in line with applicable local employment and labour
legislation and regulations, local industry practice and/
or where applicable commensurate with experience,
qualification and seniority.

During 2019/20, there was no material non-compliance
with applicable employment or labour legislation and/or
regulations.

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazardls

One of our foremost priorities is to provide employees with
a safe and conducive working environment.

1. Office employees are assigned individual work
stations unless due to the nature of work, this is

considered unnecessary.

2. Offices, stores and warehouses are properly lit and
ventilated and kept clean and tidy.

3. Offices, stores and warehouses are smoke-free.
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Furniture, fittings and other office equipment and
air conditioning and ventilation systems (where
applicable) are regularly inspected and maintained.

Security measures are in place at our offices
and warehouses to restrict entry and exit only to
employees and permitted visitors.

We follow applicable government work guidelines,
for example in Hong Kong, on typhoon and rainstorm
warnings.

Free yearly influenza vaccinations are offered to staff
in Hong Kong (and to their families at discounted
rates).

Eligible managerial staff and above in Hong Kong are
offered free basic body check-ups every two years.

Due to COVID-19, extra precautionary measures like
temperature screening, compulsory wearing of masks,
increased cleaning and strict measures disallowing
staff to attend work should they exhibit flu-like
symptoms or if they have been in close contact with
a confirmed or suspected case of COVID-19 have
been adopted to provide a safe working environment
for staff.
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Aspect B3: Development and Training

Policies on improving employees” knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work

Our customers enjoy and have come to expect a personal
experience when they shop with us. As there is a direct
correlation between service standards and employee
development and training, proper emphasis is given to
training.

Group policies on employee development and training are
set out below:—
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1. Store staff receive both regular and ad hoc training. 1. JEHE T8 R I -
2. New staff undergo orientation. 2. HBETHWHE -

3. Training is generally conducted internally.

4. Training and development are given in relevant areas
like, product knowledge, customer servicing, correct
sales techniques and new laws and regulations that
impact on business operations.

5. Follow-up evaluation is carried out after training and
development to ensure effectiveness.

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

Issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour

The Group has a zero tolerance policy on bonded or
underaged labour.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain

1. The Group outsources the manufacturing process of
its house brand products by partnering suppliers who
share our principles to conduct business in a fair,
honest and responsible manner.

2. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to ensure that
they do not employ bonded or underaged labour.

3. Our suppliers are contractually obliged to supply
products that are free from toxic materials.

4. Our suppliers are encouraged to align their values
with the Group by agreeing to adopt certain
Standards of Engagement which form part of the
contracts they sign. These Standards include the
following:—

(i)  No compulsion to work through force or
intimidation of any form.

(i) Employment to be based solely on the ability to
perform the job and without any discrimination
due to ethnicity, gender, age, disability or
marital status.

(iii)  Fair wages and all other legally mandated
benefits should be paid.

(iv)  Provision of a safe and hygienic working
environment which complies with local laws or
practices.
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(v) Integration of sustainability principles into
business decisions.

(vi)  Community involvement.
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress

As a provider of high quality products and services, we
take our responsibilities relating to the products and
services that we deliver very seriously. Customer safety is
paramount. Quality control and assurance processes are
closely monitored.

Personal data policies and SOPs are in place to ensure that
applicable laws are followed. Our policies on consumer
data protection explain the meaning of personal data,
and the general principles relating to its collection, use,
retention and disposal according to local applicable
privacy laws.

The Group takes the confidentiality and handling of
personal data very seriously and employees who breach
policies or the Group’s related guidelines may face
disciplinary action.

We do not engage in false advertising or false labelling.
Products sold generally come with warranties and our
warranty and exchange policies are clearly stated. There
are SOPs relating to product after-sales, product warranties
and product exchange.

Our intellectual property rights are protected and managed
through registration, maintenance and enforcement
measures. Copyright relating to designs for our house brand
products are systematically stored. We respect third party
intellectual property rights and will not knowingly use third
party intellectual rights without authorisation.
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
General Disclosure

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering

The Group has established anti-corruption policies and
all employees are expected to discharge their duties with
integrity and to follow relevant local laws. Our anti-
corruption policies are set out in our Employee Handbooks
and Operations Manuals.

The Group has a whistle blowing policy with clearly stated
reporting procedures set out in Employee Handbooks and/
or on the intranet.

In Hong Kong, the ICAC are invited to conduct training
seminars annually.

Aspect B8: Community Investment
General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand the
needs of the communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests

Through community engagement, the Group aims to:—

J show love, to give hope and to support the
disadvantaged;

e encourage compassion and empathy in our
employees;

e foster a sense of community within Stelux; and

e empower through education.
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With the above objectives in mind, we engage with those
within our communities with specific emphaisis on:—

the elderly poor

the homeless

o poor immigrant families; and

children and youth
to provide them with:—
e basic sustenance and daily necessities

e social interaction and integration with the wider
community; and

. education
Our policies on giving are:—

. to partner reliable registered charities. Partnerships
are reviewed annually

. to adopt a “no frills” approach to maximise each
dollar donated

e employee volunteering during work hours are capped
at 6 hours per employee for each financial year.
There is no cap outside of work hours

e activities and giving focus on target groups and their
identified needs

e receipts must be issued by a charity for the donations
with a breakdown of costs, where applicable

Periodic appraisal meetings are held with the charities
we support to understand specific needs and to ensure
contributions are appropriately disbursed.
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During the year, Stelux continued to collaborate with charities
like The Tsung Tsin Mission of Hong Kong Social Service,
Evangel Children’s Home, Hong Chi Association, Food Angel,
Saint Barnabas Society and Home and Orbis which target
low-income families, orphans and children from broken
families, those with intellectual special needs and sight saving
respectively. Sponsorships included year long donations of
free tutorial classes for underprivileged students; gifting food
containing packages, rice, fresh fruits, vegetables and fish to
a food bank for low-income families. Sponsorships further
included ad-hoc activities like art jamming and pottery-making
workshops; attending a food charity to understand its work and
mission and helping in food preparation, sponsoring the “Hong
Chi” Flag Day, helping to raise donations for “ORBIS World Sight
Day 2019. Our volunteer employees appreciate the engagement
and interaction, especially the opportunity to share with and
embrace those within our communities who are less fortunate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to improve transparency and
protect the interests of shareholders in general. The Board
of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
making sure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to
protect the interests of its shareholders. These include a
Board comprising experienced and high calibre members,
board committees, and effective and sound systems of risk
management and internal controls.

This section describes the Company’s corporate
governance practices with specific reference to the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). During the financial
year ended 31 March 2020, the Company complied with
the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code except
for certain deviations. These deviations with considered
reasons are set out in this Report.

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has also made specific enquiry of all its
directors to ascertain whether they have complied with
or whether there has been any non-compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Board has established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in respect of these employees’ dealings in the
securities of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs. Every director is expected to discharge his or her
duties in good faith and up to the standard of prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, acting objectively in the
best interests of the Group.

Proposals for appointments to the Board are based on the
Company’s board diversity and nomination policies.

The Board currently comprises of 5 members; two
executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors (with a female independent non-executive
director).

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisation
structure of the Group, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is the
Chairman and CEO of the Group. The Board believes that
with Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong acting as both Chairman and
CEO ensures consistent leadership and further enables
better strategic planning for the Group. The Board also
believes that the non-separation of roles does not affect the
balance of power and authority within the Board.

The independent non-executive directors are highly
experienced individuals with a broad range of expertise
and experience including in areas such as accounting,
tax, engineering and environmental and healthy life style
consulting. Together, they ensure that the Board maintains
high standards of financial accounting and other mandatory
reporting; providing adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders in general and the
Group as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, there are
established written procedures to enable the directors,
upon reasonable request, to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

The term of office of the Company’s non-executive
directors, including the independent non-executive
directors, is 3 years, subject to retirement by rotation
(pursuant to Bye-law 110(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws),
whichever is the earlier.

Under Code Provision A.4.2, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Not all directors of the Company retire strictly under
Code Provision A.4.2. The Company’s Bye-Laws 110(A)
stipulates that, one-third of the directors of the Company
who have been longest serving in office since their last
election, except the Chairman or CEO, shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Both the Board and management have clearly defined
roles and responsibilities. The Board is ultimately
responsible for establishing the overall long term strategic
direction and objectives of the Group, monitoring the
performance of senior management and oversees corporate
governance and risk management and internal control
systems. Management is responsible for formulating and,
implementing operational and business strategies and
plans to achieve the Group’s strategic direction. Directors
have access to management for enquiries, explanations,
briefings or informal discussions on the Group’s operations
and businesses.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board held a total of ten board meetings and passed
circular resolutions during the financial year ended 31
March 2020 and up to the date of this Report. At the board
meetings, different issues and matters were discussed and
reviewed including, approval of the Group’s FY19/20
interim results and FY18/19 final results; reviewing
financial and operating performances of the Group;
approval of new and/or renewals of borrowing facilities;
annual review of continuing connected transactions;
appointing a replacement auditor; conducting an annual
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
controls of the Company and its subsidiaries, reviewing
risk management framework and identifying top risks
and corresponding mitigation actions. Details of the
directors’ attendance at the board meetings during the
financial year and up to the date of this Report are set out
below. All businesses transacted at the board meetings
are well documented and the records are maintained in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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Total no. of No. of Directors

Directors present
Date of board meeting EEgeRETAY ESBA" HEESAR
22 May 2019 201945722 H 5 5
20 June 2019 201946 H20H 5 5
5 August 2019 201948 5H 5 5
2 October 2019 20194102 H 5 5
21 November 2019 2019%E11 H21H 5 5
16 January 2020 202041 H16H 5 4
16 April 2020 202044116 H 5 5
22 April 2020 20204422 H 5 5
12 May 2020 2020457 12H 5 5
26 June 2020 202046 H26H 5 5
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) =30
No. of board meetings
attended/held in FY19/20
Director M18/19BBEEHE
2= BHZEEE2SEEAE
Executive Directors THES
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and A A
Chief Executive Officer) (TG B ATEAEER) 10/10
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chief Financial Officer) — BREEJEA: (27 1 A A0 10/10
Non-executive Directors FITHES
Mr. Wu Chun Sang (independent) WA S () 9/10
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent) WS SO () 10/10
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent) YR S NE A 10/10

During the financial year, the Company held its Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) on 23 August 2019. No other
general meetings were held during the financial year.
Details of the directors’ attendance at the AGM are set out
below:

R ABUERE » AN FER20194:8 H23 H 82
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23 August 2019 201958H23H
Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong HAIE A
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B E
Mr. Wu Chun Sang BAAR SR
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang i 23 A 1 1

The Chairman of the Company attended the AGM together
with the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Group's
auditor was also present at the AGM.

The Board is supplied with relevant information by
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to internal
controls, risk management or financial performance of the
Group before each regular board meeting. At least 14 day’s
notice of a regular board meeting is given to all directors
giving them the opportunity to attend. Board papers are
despatched to directors generally at least 3 days before
the meeting and in any event as soon as practicable, in all
instances, ensuring that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and are adequately prepared for the meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The proceedings of board meetings are generally conducted
by the Chairman of the Company who ensures that
sufficient time is allocated for discussion and consideration
of items on the agenda and also ample opportunities are
given to directors to speak, express their views and share
their concerns. The Chairman held a meeting on 22 April
2020 with the independent non-executive directors without
the other directors present.

Under Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. As such
the directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development. Courses have been regularly
circulated to directors for their selection and materials are
circulated for their reading. E-training on the website of the
HKEX was also made available to the directors. In general,
each director participated in at least 2 hours of reading/
attending relevant courses on topics including taxation,
technology and ESC.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company confirms that it has received from each
of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and the Company still considers the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.
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5. BOARD DIVERSITY
(1)  Policy on Board Diversity

e We believe that board appointments should
first and foremost be based on merit

o We embrace diversity by being inclusive and
support gender, ethnic, cultural, generational
and geographical diversity, amongst others

. We believe that an optimal and balanced
board should comprise of both male and
female members with an appropriate balance
of different skills, educational and industry
background, experience, knowledge and
independence

(2) Objective and Benefits of Board Diversity

We believe in diversity and inclusiveness as these
bring to the boardroom a spectrum of perspectives
and opinions, necessary as we navigate our
businesses through a more complex market place and
as our customers’ aspirations grow in sophistication.

6.  NOMINATION POLICY

] Nomination Committee to consider director
retirements, re-election and eligibility within a
reasonable time before proposing to the Board

J To review and assess proposed candidates’
backgrounds, experience, expertise according to a)
Board diversity policy of the Company; b)current
board composition of the Company and c¢) Group’s
strategic objectives

J To consider how a proposed candidate (whether new
or seeking re-election) can contribute to and support
or has in the past contributed to and supported the
Board

. For directors considering re-election, to review and
assess if they have attended board, committee and
general meetings, and, frequency of attendance
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6.  NOMINATION POLICY (Continued)

J To consider if a proposed candidate can devote
sufficient time to discharge his/her duties and
responsibilities

. If the position is for an INED, to ensure listing rules
requirements on independence, are met

7.  PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION

(i)  Refer/propose name to Company Secretary who will
inform the Nomination Committee with CV of the
proposed candidate

(i)  Presents candidate and his/her CV and where
possible, other relevant background information
to the Nomination Committee for consideration
according to the Nomination Policy.

(iii)  Where necessary, the Nomination Committee or the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee meets the
proposed candidate to assess suitability

(iv)  Nomination Committee confirms or rejects proposed
candidate with proper reasons.

(v) To restart process when a proposed candidate is
rejected.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day to day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. She
reports to the Chairman and CEO. The Board has access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary attended various professional
development seminars and read materials on legal and
corporate secretarial updates, receiving more than 15 hours
of training during the financial year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the Group’s accounts and has delegated
this responsibility to the Group CFO. The Group CFO
and his team are responsible for preparing interim and
annual financial statements based on Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) ensuring that the financial
statements present a fair and true view of the results
and the financial position of the Group and that they
comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Group CFO maintains
regular communications with the external auditors. He also
plays a role in reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the Group’s financial risk management.
During the fiscal year, the Group CFO was also responsible
for overseeing the Group’s investor relations activities.

A statement by the Group’s external auditors, RSM Hong
Kong about their reporting responsibilities on the Group’s
financial statements are set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 33 to 43.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company and its subsidiaries ability to
continue as a going concern. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis (see notes to financial statements “2. Basis
of Preparation” on pages 50 to 51). Post reporting period,
there was the COVID-19 outbreak (see notes to financial
statements “40. Event after the Reporting Period”).
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11.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young was re-appointed as the external auditors
of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries at the 2019
AGM until their resignation effective from 14 April 2020.
The Board appointed RSM Hong Kong as external auditor
of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries to fill the
casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young,
from 16 April 2020 until the conclusion of the 2020
annual general meeting of the Company. During the year,
HK$1,734,000 was paid or payable to RSM Hong Kong for
the provision of audit services.

The Group also engaged other auditors in Hong Kong and
overseas for auditing and miscellaneous services and total
fees paid amounted to HK$912,000.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties, the Board is
supported by four board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.

All businesses transacted at board committee meetings are
recorded and minuted with copies provided to the Board.
The terms of reference of these board committees are
available on the Company’s website at www.stelux.com.

(1)  Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Wu Chun
Sang (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Professor
Lawrence Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi
Hang.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(1

Audit Committee (Continued)

The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned
with the recommendations set out in the Listing Rules
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee provides advice
and recommendations to the Board and oversees all
matters relating to the external auditors, thus playing
an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of the external auditors.

The Committee met seven times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report (together with
the external auditors, in two meetings) to discuss
matters, including, the Group’s audit service plan,
the review of accounting standards (including HKFRS
16 Leases principles and practices adopted by the
Group and other financial reporting matters; to
ensure the completeness, accuracy and fairness of
the financial statements of the Company; to discuss
the effectiveness of the systems of internal control
throughout the Group including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
to review all significant business affairs managed by
the executive directors in particular on continuing
connected transactions and to review the Group’s
interim results for FY2019/2020 and results for
the year ended 31 March 2020 before they were
presented to the Board for approval.

Attendence of directors at the Audit Committee
meetings held on:

8 April 2019

17 June 2019

19 November 2019

1 April 2020

16 April 2020

22 April 2020

24 June 2020

Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2)

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises
of Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Wu Chun Sang,
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (all independent non-
executive directors of the Company) and Mr. Joseph
C.C. Wong (Group Chairman and CEO).

Code Provision B.1.2 deals with the terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision B.1.2 except that the terms of
reference do not include reviewing and determining
the remuneration packages of senior management.
The Company believes that the remuneration
packages of senior management should be the
responsibility of the executive directors as they are
in a better position to appraise the performance of
senior management. The Remuneration Committee
determines with delegated responsibility the
remuneration packages of its individual executive
directors. The basic salaries of its executive directors
were frozen in line with the Group’s office staff in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong did not participate in the
Group’s executive bonus scheme for FY19/20.

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin’s annual target bonus
base under the annual bonus scheme was reduced
for FY19/20 in line with other senior executives
participating under the same executive bonus
scheme.

The circular resolutions were resolved by the
Remuneration Committee comprising of:

Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (abstaining with respect to his
remuneration)

Mr. Wu Chun Sang
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(3) Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee, Group
Chairman and CEO) and three independent non-executive
directors, namely, Mr. Wu Chun Sang, Professor Lawrence
Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang.

Code Provision A.5.3 deals with the terms of reference of
a Nomination Committee. The Company has adopted the
terms of reference under Code Provision A.5.3. During
the financial year, and up to the date of this Report, the
Committee met once. The Committee considered the
independence of its retiring independent non-executive
director and confirmed having received from each
of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his/her independence. Dr. Agnes Kwong
Yi Hang and Mr. Wu Chun Sang are due to retire at the
forthcoming AGM. Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang, being
eligible has put forward herself for re-election, Mr. Wu
Chun Sang has decided not to put himself forward for re-
election. In the nomination process for a new independent
non-executive director to take the place of Mr. Wu, the
Committee has received and assessed the CVs of several
prospective candidates. The Committee proposes the most
appropriate individual with the right balance of skills,
experience, and industry background for the position based
on the Company’s board diversity policies and nomination
processes for appointment or election/re-election of
directors. In line with the Group’s strategy to move to an
omni-channel business model, the Committee selected a
candidate with an e-commerce related background to add
to the balance of relevant skill sets on the Board.

Attendance of directors at the Nomination Committee
meetings held on:

20 June 2019

18 June 2020

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong
Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

4)

Corporate Governance Committee

Stelux recognises that adopting proper systems,
running our businesses within a strong legal
framework of rules and procedures, underpinned by
sound business ethics are essential to safeguarding
the economic performance of the Group and our
shareholders’ interests in a sustainable manner. The
Corporate Governance Committee comprises Mr.
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee and Chief Financial Officer)
and three independent non-executive directors,
namely, Mr. Wu Chun Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu
Chi Man and Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang.

Code Provision D.3.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a corporate governance committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision D.3.1. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the financial
year. At this meeting, the Committee amongst other
things, reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Quarterly sales turnover
updates are voluntarily issued by the Company
and a whistleblowing policy is in place. With the
implementation of the statutory disclosure regime for
inside information under the Securities and Futures
(Amendment) Ordinance 2012 on 1 January 2013,
systems are in place on reporting and dissemination
of inside information.
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12.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
(4) Corporate Governance Committee (Continued)

Attendance of directors at the Corporate Governance
Committee Meeting held on:

22 April 2020

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Prof. Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility
for ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate risk management and internal control systems
and for reviewing their effectiveness. The Group’s risk
management and internal control systems are designed
to manage and minimise risk of failures in the Group’s
operational systems, and to achieve our objectives. Such
systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

During the year, the Group has complied with all the code
provisions on risk management and internal control under
the Corporate Governance Code.

The main features of the Group’s Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems, include:

(1) Risk Management

The Group's risk management process is a four-step
process involving identifying, assessing, responding
to and monitoring risks which could affect the Group
from achieving its strategic or business objectives.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(M

Risk Management (Continued)

In order to ensure the risk management process is
executed effectively and as an integral part of our
business, the Board has established the following
risk management and reporting framework which
specifies the responsible parties and their roles and
responsibilities for managing risks of the Group.

The Board

e oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems

J evaluate and determine the Group’s key risks
which would significantly affect it achieving
strategic or business objectives

o review the Group’s key risks and mitigation
actions and ensure the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems

Audit Committee

o oversees design and operating effectiveness
of the Group’s underlying risk management
process and internal control systems

J review effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal controls with support
from the Internal Audit Function and reporting
to the Board

Risk Steering Committee

J members comprised of key executives of the
Group

e assess and determine the Group's key risks and
ensure appropriate mitigation actions/controls
are in place

e track progress of mitigation actions/controls
over identified key risks and report to Audit
Committee

o provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems annually
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(1) Risk Management (Continued)

Business Units and Functional Support
Management

J management meets periodically to identify
new and review existing risks

J design, implement and monitor mitigation
actions and internal control activities in their
day-to-day operations

e ensure risk management process and
mitigation actions and internal controls follow
guidelines or recommendations provided
by the Risk Committee and Internal Audit
Function

Internal Audit Function

J carry out analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control
systems

J support the Audit Committee in reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems

(2) Internal Control

Internal control is a process for the Board and
management to assure achievement of the Group’s
objectives in operational effectiveness and efficiency,
reliable financial reporting, and compliance with
laws, regulations and our internal policies.

The Group has the following major internal controls
in place:

J Policies and standard operating procedures are
set to govern staff in shop operations, integrity
of trading practices, compliance on handling
personal data of customers, acquisition and
disposal of capital assets, financial reporting,
etc.

e Authorisation and approval matrix are set based
on nature and type of transactions.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 12. EREERAZBEIE 7

(Continued)

(2) Internal Control (Continued) 2) RWEPEE ()

Employees’ Code of Conduct is available on the
Company’s intranet. Employees are required to
strictly follow the Code of Conduct to ensure
the Group operates to the highest standards of
business behaviour and ethics.

Business plans and budgets of individual
business units are prepared and monitored by
management regularly.

Regular management meetings to review
business updates and cash positions and
monitor operating performance against budgets
and relevant benchmarks.

Regular reviews on store portfolio.

Information access from accounting, Human
Resources and other IT systems are restricted
and managed on a need-to-know basis in order
to protect data and ensure data integrity.

Major or material connected transactions
require pre-approval of independent non-
executive directors and all continuing
connected transactions are reviewed on an
annual basis pursuant to the requirements of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

The Group has a “whistle-blowing” mechanism
to allow our staff to anonymously report any
suspected fraud or employee’s misconduct to
the Head of Internal Audit Function who will
refer the report to the Audit Committee and the
Board for further investigation and/or actions.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(2) Internal Control (Continued)

e The Company has a system which sets out the
requirements and procedures for handling and
disseminating inside information to the public.
Any material information which comes to the
knowledge of one or more officers should be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated,
where appropriate, to the attention of the
Board.

e Our internal audit function conducts regular
reviews and ad hoc engagements which cover
risk assessment and monitoring, operational,
financial and compliance aspects.

(3) Internal Audit

Under Code Provision C.2.5, an internal audit
function should be in place. The key tasks of the
Group’s Internal Audit Function include:

(i)  provides independent and objective assurance
to the Audit Committee and the Board with
respect to the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems;

(i) conduct independent audits on the Group’s
financial, operational and compliance controls
and make recommendations on improving
work flow efficiency and effectiveness;

(iii)  conduct special reviews on areas of concerns as
identified by senior management or the Board;

(iv) conduct investigations on business ethics,
employee misconduct, fraud cases and
other violations of the Group’s policies and
standards; and

(v)  oversee the “whistle-blowing” mechanism.
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12. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

“)

Annual Review by the Board

Under Code Provision C.2.1, the directors should at
least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls system reporting
to the Company’s shareholders in the Corporate
Governance Report. The review should cover all
material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

Under Code Provision C.2.2, the Board’s annual
review should, in particular, consider the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

The Board through the Audit Committee, reviews the
overall effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management
process and internal control systems annually. During
the current financial year, the reviews covered the
following:

(i) any significant change in the nature and
extent of significant risks and in the control
environment of the Group;

(i)  the significant control weaknesses (including
financial, operational and compliance controls)
as identified by the Internal Audit Function
and the consideration of effectiveness over
its recommendations on improving internal
business environment;

(iii)  major investigation findings on internal control
matters as presented by the Internal Audit
Function;

(iv) the effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance
processes;
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12.

13.

14.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

(4)  Annual Review by the Board (Continued)

(v) the Group’s risk management system, key
risks and corresponding mitigation actions
which were summarized by the Risk Steering
Committee and the Internal Audit Function
based upon discussion with senior management
of different business units and functional
supports; and

(vi) the performance, staff qualification and
experience, training and adequacy of the
Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions.

The Board and the Audit Committee respectively,
conducted an annual review of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 March 2020 on 22 April 2020 and concluded
that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s decision to pay dividends to its
shareholders is based on a combination of factors
including, the financial performance of the Group, its
future developments and capital investments, its liquidity
requirements for business operations and external market
conditions, like the general operating environment.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote and enhance investor relations, meetings are
held with the investment community. We value constant
dialogue with existing and prospective investors as a way
to promote a greater understanding of the Group’s business
model and the way we conduct our businesses.
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15.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

(1

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Shareholders may request to convene an
extraordinary general meeting in accordance with
section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981:

i.  The directors of a company, notwithstanding
anything in its bye-laws shall, on the requisition
of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital
of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, or, in the case of a company
not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the said date a right to vote at general
meetings of the company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of
the company.

ii.  The requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.

iii.  If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall
not be held after the expiration of three months
from the said date.
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15. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS (Continued) 15. BREER )

215

(1

How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (Continued)

iv. A meeting convened under this section by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by directors.

v.  Any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the company,
and any sum so repaid shall be retained by the
company out of any sums due or to become
due from the company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to
such directors as were in default.

(1
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(2) Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the 2 BRUNESSRHLEANER X
board and sufficient contact details to enable these RUERHNBEENUEERESA
enquiries to be properly directed BRERE
Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board JI R AT LA Ty 2 A 2 A )
by addressing them to the Company Secretary in e M > AL
writing to:
the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698 Frvts JLHE BT i oK T3 69898 E Ok
Prince Edward Road Fast, San Po Kong, Kowloon, P02 7HEAR N B A 5 1)
Hong Kong; or (ii) by email to ir@stelux.com. HIEir@stelux.com °

(3) Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting B) ERRASREZZNEFREHAN

forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may, subject to (1) above, by way of
request in writing request a shareholders’ meeting to
be convened for the purpose of considering a certain
matter, addressing the request to the Company
Secretary at:

the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

TEZ BRI BRI (D RAITE UL > JBOR
T[] 2% F RS B L T R > EOR
IR & L5 e T3 H - A it
AR

7 5 JUBE T i K T R 698 5EE L
P S L2 7 HEAR N R B R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRiE - EREARABS

16.

17.

18.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with its shareholders and investors. To foster effective
communications, the Company provides extensive
information in its annual report, interim report and also
publishes information relating to the Group and its
businesses on its website: www.stelux.com.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide
an important opportunity for direct communications
between the Board and the Company’s shareholders. All
directors and senior management will make an effort to
attend. External auditors will also attend the AGM. The
Chairman and CEO of the Company, the Chairman of the
Audit, Nomination and Corporate Governance Committees
were all present at the Company’s AGM held in 2019.
Shareholders are given at least 20 clear business days or
21 days’ notice of the AGM (whichever is the longer).
The Company supports the Corporate Governance Code
principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.

Shareholders may send any enquiries they have by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; or (ii) by email to ir@stelux.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the ethical standards of employees, the
Company has an employee handbook, setting out the
Group's requisite standards and an ethical code of conduct
for all employees of the Group. Employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company recognises that adopting good corporate
governance principles and practices are important for
the success of the Group and as such we will continue to
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
Group’s corporate governance.
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AWARDS
#2187

CARING COMPANY
BRREE

In recognition of the Group's services and support to the wider local community, Stelux and its subsidiaries, City Chain
Hong Kong, and Thong Sia Watch, the Hong Kong sole distributor for "SEIKO” watches and clocks and “GRAND
SEIKO” watches were again respectively awarded Caring Company Awards by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
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Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton, HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

27th Floor, Stelux House
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Hong Kong

Principal Bankers
Hang Seng Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Auditors
RSM Hong Kong

Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
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Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Ltd.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Audit Committee

Mr. Wu Chun Sang (Chairman of Committee)
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Remuneration Committee

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Nomination Committee

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading,
Wholesale and Supply Chain Management

o Stelux Holdings International Limited
J Stelux Holdings Limited
o Stelux Properties Limited

o City Chain Company Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

. Stelux Watch Limited
27/F., Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

6/F., Continental Electric Building,
17 Wang Chiu Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, HONG KONG

o Thong Sia Watch Company Limited

e Thong Tai Watch Company Limited
21/F., Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East,
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

J Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading Limited
5/F, Building 1, Industrial Park,
951 Hutai Road, Shanghai, PRC

o Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) Trading Limited
28th Floor, Xinde Business Building,
246 Zhongshan 4th Road, Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province, China
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COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

e Baoging (Chongqing) Trading Limited o  HEMEBRMEAMRAA
Shop UG-07B, Building A, Longhu Times Tianjie, o g T B T o I R V2 51 7498
174 Changjiang 2, Yuzhong District, HEWIIRE A RAFAREUG-07B i fif

Chongging, China

MACAU b

Retail &

e City Chain (Macau) Co Limited o IRFFHIERSE SR (QRI) A FRA ]
Rua de S. Domingos, {0 A A
n’s 1G, 1H, 11, R/C, 1G> THE 1158
Lojas D&E, em BRI B 3T D K E 5%l
Macau

MALAYSIA BRAE DR

Retail and Wholesale Trading TG KA ) 3

. City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd . City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd
Stelux No. 8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A Stelux No. 8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong 47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA MALAYSIA

° Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A) ° Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail Plaza
50250 Kuala Lumpur 34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
MALAYSIA 50250 Kuala Lumpur

MALAYSIA
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THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain (Thailand) Co Limited

° Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading

e City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited
63 Ubi Avenue 1, #06-04/05
Singapore 408937
SINGAPORE

e Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE

SWITZERLAND

Watch Supply Chain Management and Trading

. Universal Geneve S.A.
° Catena S.A.
. Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND
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City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd

Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd

347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road

Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District

Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

EVIIE S

T R IEE 5 0

+

City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd
63 Ubi Avenue 1, #06-04/05
Singapore 408937
SINGAPORE

Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd
31 Ubi Road 1, #02-06
Singapore 408694
SINGAPORE

b
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Universal Geneve S.A.
Catena S.A.
Solvil et Titus S.A.

Pronto Watch S.A.

38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128

1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
g J ki

Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares for
registration in order to qualify for
attending and voting at the
Annual General Meeting
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 24 August 2020

Latest date and time for return of proxy
form for the Annual General Meeting
not less than 48 hours before the time of the Annual General
Meeting (i.e. not later than 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday,
26 August 2020)

Closure of the register of members of the
Company for determining the identity of
Shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting
Tuesday, 25 August 2020 to
Friday, 28 August 2020 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
3:00 p.m. on Friday, 28 August 2020

Email Contacts
Investor Relations: ir@stelux.com
Shareholder Enquiries: ir@stelux.com

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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